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hina Everbright Greentech Limited (“Everbright Greentech” or the “Company” or

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a professional environmental protection

service provider in China, with its businesses focusing on integrated biomass
utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment, environmental remediation, solar energy and
wind power, it listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 May 2017 (Stock Code: 1257). Upholding its philosophy of leading
the way through business innovations, Everbright Greentech took a pioneer role to introduce
integrated urban and rural waste treatment project in Mainland China. Currently, the Company
has its business coverage spanning across 14 provinces and autonomous region in China,
and in Germany.

With strong support from China Everbright Group Limited (“Everbright Group”) and the
controlling shareholder, China Everbright International Limited (“CEIL”), and leveraging on its
own extensive experience in the development and operation of diversified project portfolio
as well as its unparalleled market expansion capability, the Group will continue to follow the
instruction to be “Prudent, Proactive and Practical”, bearing in mind its initial commitment and
mission as it strives incessantly to become a leader in China’s environmental business sector.
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SOLICITORS

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)
Zhonglun W&D Law Firm (Shenzhen)
Li & Partners

AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
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PO Box 1350
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WEBSITE
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PUBLIC RELATIONS

Citigate Dewe Rogerson

SHARE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2019 2018 Percentage
—E-hF ZZ—)N\F Change
HK$°000 HK$’000 Bath
BT T BETT
RESULTS 3
Revenue g 9,279,555 7,001,820 33%
EBITDAM BRALE - BB B
NESHRT RO 2,876,139 2,161,227 33%
Profit attributable to equity AN A IR R & A
shareholders of the Company 1,621,477 1,324,871 22%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) % 5 & & [0 3R (%) 16.5 14.7 1.8 ppt
Basic earnings per share® SRREARZFO B
(HK cents) 78.48 64.12 22%
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R
Total assets BERTE 26,258,315 18,602,802 41%
Total liabilities SRRk 15,670,963 9,171,728 71%
Equity attributable to equity RAE SRR E (LR
shareholders of the Company 10,346,219 9,338,852 11%
Net asset value per share AR A E=RREEEFR
attributable to equity shareholders BEFEEET)
of the Company (HK$) 5.01 4.52 11%
Cash and bank balances We RIRITERR 2,897,486 2,260,833 28%
Gearing ratio® (%) BEBFELEO (%) 59.7 49.3 10.4 ppt
Current ratio (%) 7t B £ 2 (%) 148.7 154.6 -5.9 ppt
(1) EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

2) The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
approximately HK$1,621,477,000 (2018: HK$1,324,871,000) and the weighted average of 2,066,078,000 (2018:
2,066,078,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

3) Gearing ratio is calculated by total liabilities over total assets.

(1) EBITDARNAFERFIE ~ BIE - & LEIHRI AT

2  EREARRFTIRIEA RN AR BB LB 1,621,477,0007T (ZF — )\F « 7¥1,324,871,0007) R FABE#ITE
i AR 2 hn4E T 15 iR £12,066,078,000% (= Z — /\4F : 2,066,078,000/%) F@ARFHH -

@) EEEEHEEREAGBRIAGEETH-
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
TRAEME

.

° Secured Songyang Hazardous Waste Integrated Treatment Project in Zhejiang Province
and Feng County Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy) in
Jlangsu Province

BRENIENLGEEFARERBEMIHESFEEYME RN RHE—RILER (LREF)

02/2019

e Secured Huaiyuan Hazardous Waste Landfill Project in Anhui Province and Feng County
Household Waste Emergency Landfill Site and Leachate Regulating Pool Construction
Project in Jiangsu Province

RERRA R AEEEIER T HE 8B ERFESORIR S M2 R R AN ERIER

03/2019

e Everbright Greentech announced its 2018 annual results, posting a 38.9% growth in profit
attributable to equity shareholders

KARZBREAM _F-—N\FE2FEE  EaRRELENERSI89%ER

* Obtained Pre-issuance Stage Certificate under the Green Finance Certification Scheme by
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA)
BEARERERER G RRFEFTIBRZZEESRMRE

04/2019

e Secured Yeji Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project (Phase ) in Anhui Province
and Sugian General Industrial Solid Waste Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project in
Jiangsu Province, the latter of which marked our entrance into the field of general
industrial solid waste treatment \
HERREESAYEREHMHEA _HRIHEEE —RIXEFEATHMIER - K
EA—RIFXERERE AT

e Secured Daqging Solid Waste Integrated Treatment Project in Heilongjiang Province, Chifeng
Solid Waste Landfill Project in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region and Huangshi Solid
Waste Integrated Treatment Project in Hubei Province, successfully entering the
environmental protection markets of Heilongjiang Province and Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region L

%Eaélé REBEEGSRERR - W%EQ/uEﬁ@IE&iﬁﬁlﬁa A& & A E RE
BREEE  KYWEEEREIEANMATEEARARRRTS

05/2019

* Received the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2018 (Belt and Road
Environmental Leadership Recognition Award)” from the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and Bank of China (Hong Kong)

EEEIXASEPBERT(ER)BE ﬁﬁé’*fqﬂfﬁiﬁﬁémﬁﬁa& B K018 (—H—
RIRBSLTEAE)]

* Received the “EcoChallenger” certificate and the title of “EcoPartner”, jointly awarded by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China (Hong Kong)
BEAILEQeEARHRT(FEH)BMAE ﬁﬁﬁéﬁa{%ﬁ%m%JEﬁ%&ﬁaf%{”tlj%ﬂij%ﬂasﬁ

06/2019

e Lianshui Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project in Jiangsu Province, Guixi Electricity and
Heat Cogeneration Project in Jiangxi Province and Zibo Hazardous Waste Incineration
Project (Phase Il) in Shandong Province were completed and commenced operation
IR EKREBHRMEIER  IAAERAEHMIELR RIUREEERENEEE ZHEX

BE

07/2019

* Acquired the entire equity interest in Zhangjiagang Gelin Environmental Engineering Co.,
Ltd. at a consideration of RMB68 million
UREARKES800&E TWHRF EBMREIREBR AR 2 AZE
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08/2019

CORPORATE MILESTONES
EEABHE

Everbright Greentech announced its 2019 interim results, underpinned by a 26% growth
in profit attributable to equity shareholders

RARZERARAM _F-NFPHRE  EahkREERNRS26%ER

09/2019

10/2019

11/2019

12/2019

Huai’an Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project in Jiangsu Province and Guoyang
Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project in Anhui Province were completed and
commenced operation

THEEZREME NP EE-—RBIEEBRZBERGRAEM AR EZRIE

2019 interim Resulls Anncuncemant

Included in the Han Sen orate Sustainability Benchmark Index
BERANIE E—H%ia? &4

Secured Harbin Hazardous Waste Treatment Centre Project in Heilongjiang Province, being
the Company’s first project in a provincial capital city; successfully tendered for Shenzhen
Bao’an Golf Course Environmental Quality Enhancement Project in Guangdong Province,
being the first environmental remediation project undertaken by Everbright Greentech in
Guangdong Province

BRERETILANREGEREDT LER  HARQRMEHNE—FESHTIAR : AT
Frﬁéx Y8 tmﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%mi&iﬁ%ghﬂlﬁﬁ : xetjiii@fa{%&r%é%&m%
—EBEIEEEE

Recognized as “Honored Companies (Power Sector) in Asia” in the 2019 All-Asia Executive

Team organized by Institutional Investor - ‘ .

<<§EET%& S )RR 2019F DMKERREREKR P ETERIDMIE R (BUR
[

Guanyun Hazardous Waste Landfill Project (Phase Il) in Jiangsu Province was completed
and commenced operatlon

TEAREREIEERE —MERRE

Weihai Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project in Shandong Province and

Zhongxiang Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy) in Hubei

Province were completed and commenced operation

%?éﬁi’_{%g@%ﬂéﬂ%lﬁ Bt AEFEMERNIREE—B(LEE (UREE)E
8

Awarded the “InnoESG Prize 2019” by SocietyNext Foundation, UNESCO Hong Kong
Association Glocal Peace Centre, Rotarian Action Group for Peace, Wofoo Social
Enterprises, etc.

EESometyNext Foundation « & /&5t & BIZUR SCAR B = A F R0~ thdm o AT EhfEIR - AN
EAECEZRERSEIE2019 INnnoESG] #2158

Sheqi Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project in Henan Province and Shayang

Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Biomass) in Hubei Province were

completed and commenced operation

%gﬁéiﬁgiﬁ%%f&iﬂ&%*—mftlﬁ Bt EbFEmE R RES—8BIER (&
=4 51

LTI

G it U T

Secured Wenling Hazardous Waste Integrated Treatment Project in Zhejiang Province, with
an investment of approximately RMB1.366 billion . N
BENMIAREEEGARERE  PRREHDARK1366ET

Awarded “Hong Kong Outstandipg Enterprises 2019” by Economic Digest
BRE— B RI2019F EE BB B X
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHE

PROGRESS IN STABILITY
opportunities amidst changes

iInnovation through progress

2 o R &2
i R 3

Chairman =%

WANG Tianyi
BN
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As we celebrated the 70th anniversary of the founding of new
China in 2019, our nation was determined to win the critical
battle against pollution and generally build a moderately
prosperous society with outstanding performance. From a
macroscopic perspective, the world faced increasing volatility and
instability, while at home the increasing pressure of an economic
downside was being felt. Given evolving scenes of a scale
unseen in the past century, Everbright Greentech stayed focused
as it sought to seize firmly every opportunity in the environmental
sector by capitalising on market trends, sustaining steady
development amidst various challenges and difficulties.

Everbright Greentech sustained rapid growth in 2019 with a
string of outstanding performances to lay a solid foundation for
the next cycle of development. During the year, the Group
successfully diversified into the business of general industrial solid
waste electricity and heat cogeneration and established its
presence in the environmental markets of Heilongjiang Province
and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, extending the
geographic coverage of our business to 14 provinces and
autonomous region in China. As of 31 December 2019, the
Group had 108 environmental protection projects and 27
environmental remediation projects. During 2019, the Group had
32 integrated biomass utilisation projects in operation, driving
50% and 125% growth, respectively, in the generation of on-grid
electricity and steam as compared to 2018. We had 20 operating
and completed hazardous and solid waste treatment projects,
with a 45% increase in the volume of hazardous waste treatment
as compared to 2018. Everbright Greentech secured 23 new
projects and entered into 5 supplemental agreements during the
year, involving additional total investments amounting to
approximately RMB5.702 billion and new environmental
remediation contracts amounting to approximately RMB113
million. The said new projects included 1 biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project, 15 hazardous and solid waste
treatment projects and 7 environmental remediation projects.
During the year under review, the Group was granted special
subsidies amounting to RMB162 million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRHEE

As a company that has only been listed for over two years, the
Group was honoured with a number of awards in 2019, thanks
to the concerted effort of its staff. These accolades included the
“BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2018 (Belt
and Road Environmental Leadership Recognition Award)”, the title
of “EcoPartner” and the certificate of “EcoChallenger” from the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China (Hong

Kong); awarded the “InnoESG Prize 2019” by SocietyNext
Foundation, UNESCO Hong Kong Association Glocal Peace
Centre, Rotarian Action Group for Peace, Wofoo Social

Enterprises, etc.; recognized as “Honored Companies (Power
Sector) in Asia” in the 2019 All-Asia Executive Team organized by
Institutional Investor, a renowned international financial magazine;
named “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises 2019” by Economic
Digest and obtained Pre-issuance Stage Certificate under the
Green Finance Certification Scheme by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency (HKQAA).

Year 2020 will mark the conclusion of the nation’s “13th Five-
year Plan” and the commencement of its “14th Five-year Plan”, as
well as the conclusion of the general development of a
moderately prosperous society. It will also be a year for the
implementation and assessment of a range of environmental
policies and laws, as well as a crucial year for the booming
development of the environmental industry. The ecological and
be presented with a period of

in the past century. To address such

environmental sector will
opportunities unseen
opportunities and challenges, Everbright Greentech will firmly
implement the principles of “progress in stability, opportunities
amidst changes, and innovation through progress”, seeking
consistent improvements in results through firm adherence to our
strategic positioning and intensified efforts in all departments, with

a strong focus on the delivery of value.
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Finally, on behalf of the Group and the board of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”), | would like to express
my most sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors and
business partners. | would also like to express my appreciation to
each Director, management team and all staff members for their
dedication and efforts which have led, and will continue to lead,
Everbright Greentech to greater success.

WANG Tianyi

Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 February 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBFWR DM

OPERATING RESULTS

As we celebrated the 70th anniversary of the founding of new
China in 2019, we also witnessed a crucial year for achieving
success in the general realisation of a moderately prosperous
society and winning the critical battle for the prevention and
treatment of pollution. Internationally, the world faced volatility of
a scale unseen in the past century, as global uncertainties and
instability continued to escalate, while profound and complex
changes were taking place in international relations, leading to the
transition to a new phase of the external landscape in relation to
China’s development.

On the domestic front, the environmental industry benefited from
the successive announcements over the past few years of a
range of policies and regulatory measures at various levels that
had given rise to a policy regime and regulatory framework
such as the water

focused on key environmental issues,

environment, soil, solid waste and atmospheric conservation.

Overcoming prominent environmental issues, improving
environmental quality, driving quality economic growth, as well as
attaining sustainable development remained some of the key
tasks and objectives for national development. Such tasks and
objectives have not only outlined a more lucid blueprint for the
development of the nation’s ecological civilisation, but have also
called for higher business standards and more ambitious
development goals on the part of the environmental sector,
thereby presenting business opportunities with greater potential to

environmental enterprises.

As a provider of specialised environmental protection services in
China, Everbright Greentech achieved stable growth in various
aspects and reported further improvements in business scale and
efficiency in 2019, mindful of its initial commitment while staying
current in its endeavours as it continued to uphold the corporate
mission of being “Devoted to Ecology and Environment for a
Beautiful China” and the vision of “delivering better investment
value and undertaking further social responsibilities”.

16 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

PO
“g<<< ;E

—NFRFPEKILHEF  BABEE
EECNEE TSR EB RN R
Fo-HRER BHIEBFREZARER]  BER
REIHEMN  MREWIHE LT BBRBERD

- =

EBERD  ER0EL PEEROINBER
EE R AR BRI -
GEER  BROTETENBELESREEA

EEEBRERELe  BHKRE - T8 BEER
AREFZRREFVBEBRAREERBEE
AN WAEHRERE RNERELEE
HKEREERRURERIFELR AR
ERERMNIFESRERF ETEABRAERE
NHRERIEIHHENENNERER - TR
RR1UTXRLETEMNEBZENBREEEZ - &

RRCEARTEABNNERZR -

ER—RTPBEEXRARBKRERE —F—Ah
FARBERERAIENL - BHEEE  BEF
EMBBERRE  £2XBETEINCXEEH
UTRIEF iR EEE  AEEZHERME]I /D
FER BEERZHMUER  BRTEBKRE
MR R R — PR Tt -



The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment,
environmental remediation, solar energy and wind power. As of 31
December 2019, the Group had 108 environmental protection
projects with a total investment of approximately RMB28.908
billion; and had undertaken 27 environmental remediation projects

with a total contract amount of approximately RMB725 million.

In terms of market development, the Group achieved a double
breakthrough in terms of entering new geographic regions and
new business sectors during the year under review. We further
broadened our business portfolio by diversifying into the business
of general industrial solid waste electricity and heat cogeneration,
while continuing to extend its business footprint by successfully
entering the environmental protection markets of Heilongjiang
Province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, expanding the
Group’s business presence in China to 14 provinces and
autonomous region. Our environmental remediation business also
gained momentum following a breakthrough in the environmental
remediation market of Guangdong Province, resulting in a total of
7 provinces and municipalities in which the Group has secured
environmental remediation contracts.

The Group accomplished stellar results in business expansion
during the year under review, as it secured 23 new projects and
entered into 5 supplemental agreements involving additional total
investments of approximately RMB5.702 billion and environmental
remediation project contracts with a total amount of
approximately RMB113 million. Such new projects included 1
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration project, 15 hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects and 7 environmental
remediation projects. In terms of project scale, our aggregate
power generation designed capacity was increased by 7 MW,
while our biomass processing designed capacity was increased by
approximately 120,000 tonnes per year. Our designed capacity
for steam supply and designed capacity for hazardous and solid
waste treatment were increased by approximately 1,242,400
tonnes and 965,000 tonnes per year, respectively. In addition, the
Group completed the acquisitions of 3 environmental companies
during the year under review, including Jiangsu Jiayuan
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (LE#r{EFERBERITAREA
Remediation CO., Ltd and
Zhangjiagang Gelin Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.* (SR
BMRBEIRBRAA).

7)), Suntime Environmental

*

For identification purpose only
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During the year under review, the Group secured Wenling

Hazardous Waste Integrated Treatment Project in Zhejiang
Province with an investment of approximately RMB1.366 billion.
The project will be constructed in two phases. The first phase
commands an investment of approximately RMB388 million, with
a designed annual hazardous waste incineration capacity and
physicochemical treatment capacity of 30,000 tonnes and 10,000
tonnes, respectively. The second phase is a rigid landfill which
commands an investment of approximately RMB978 million, with
a designed annual hazardous waste treatment capacity of 30,000

tonnes.

In terms of project construction, the Group reported smooth
progress in its project works which continued to contribute to the
steady growth in revenue from its construction services. During
the year under review, 20 projects started implementation or
construction, while 26 projects were completed and commenced
operation. As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 27 projects
under construction or implementation, including 13 integrated
biomass utilisation projects, 5 hazardous and solid waste
treatment projects and 9 environmental remediation projects. The
Group has enhanced safety management at project sites to
ensure steady progress of construction works by further
amending and improving its engineering management systems
and regulations.

In connection with technology research and development,
Everbright Greentech Research Institute commenced research
primarily on general industrial solid waste treatment,
physicochemical treatment of hazardous waste, industrial waste
salt treatment and resources recycling. During the year under
review, we commenced work in relation to the assessment of the
current status of vertical curtain anti-seepage at domestic
hazardous waste landfills and developed methodologies and
standards for the assessment of vertical curtain anti-seepage at
hazardous waste landfills in a systematic manner; moreover, we
have formulated through our research options for technical routes
and equipment choices compatible with the Group’s general
industrial solid waste treatment business, providing
comprehensive technical support for the implementation and
advancement of our general industrial solid waste projects. As of
31 December 2019, the Group held 105

including 32 invention patents and 73 utility model patents.

licensed patents,
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During the year under review, the Group continued to deepen the
implementation of its environmental, safety, health and social
responsibility (“ESHS”) system, as it refined its “dual prevention
mechanism” for hierarchical safety risk control and potential
hazard rectification and total environmental management. It also
tightened specific control over high-risk operation locations and
procedures, while improving the safety conditions at project sites.
To enhance the development of the safety culture on an ongoing
basis, the Group organised a Safe Production Month campaign
and a contest for the promotion of the ESHS culture. Sessions
were held for ESHS management personnel to share their
experiences, while a range of activities such as ESHS inspections,
knowledge quizzes, keynote lectures and educational visits were
arranged, capped by the development of a database for training
materials. Meanwhile, the Group continued to advance and
improve the development of the ESHS management system with
the announcement of the “System of Accountability for ESHS
Incidents” aiming to regulate ESHS duties and reinforce “straight-
line management” accountability; two sessions of environmental
management compliance examination had been organised and
weaker segments with greater risks had been identified, followed
by the formation of a task force that conducted research and
evaluation on weaker segments with greater risks and the
preparation and publication of 10 management standards,
including “Standards for the Management of Public Visits (Trial)”,
“Proposed General Contingency Plan for Emergencies at
Hazardous Waste Incineration Projects (Template)” and “Proposed
General Contingency Plan for Emergencies at Hazardous Waste
Landfill Projects (Template)”.
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In terms of risk management, the Group implemented effective
tier-based management by making further improvements to its risk
management system. Our risk management system has been
further enhanced following the formulation and announcement of

r “Risk Management System” during the year under review.
Meanwhile, a key point audit process system and a standardised
process system have been developed to effectively lower the
probability of risks occurring at various points and operational
levels and include risk control results in performance appraisals,
so that risk awareness will be enhanced among risk management
personnel at various levels. During the year under review, the
Group’s key risk management measures were robustly enforced
with notable effect.

In 2019,
protection, community contributions and corporate governance, as

the Group played an active role in environmental

it continued to develop its environmental business in a robust
manner and endeavoured to drive global green and sustainable
development on the back of its staff's concerted effort and
proactive commitment. During the year under review, the Group
received the

Awards 2018
Recognition Award)”,

“BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership

(Belt and Road Environmental Leadership
the title of “EcoPartner” and the certificate of
“EcoChallenger” from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Bank of China (Hong Kong); awarded the “InnoESG Prize 2019”
by SocietyNext Foundation, UNESCO Hong Kong Association
Glocal Peace Centre, Rotarian Action Group for Peace, Wofoo
Social Enterprises, etc.; recognised as “Honored Companies
in the 2019 All-Asia Executive Team

organised by [nstitutional Investor, a

(Power Sector) in Asia”
renowned international
financial magazine; named “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises
2019” by Economic Digest and obtained Pre-issuance Stage
Certificate under the Green Finance Certification Scheme by the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA), in a further

testimony to the Group’s industry influence and business
strengths. Moreover, Mr. QIAN Xiaodong, Chief Executive Officer,
came second (buy-side) and third (overall) among the Best CEOs
named under “Power Sector” in the “2019 All-Asia Executive

Team” announced by /nstitutional Investor.
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As a member of the Standing Committee of the Biomass Energy
Branch of China Association for the Promotion of Industrial
Development (“BEIPA”), the Group worked in tandem with BEIPA
during the year under review and assisted the Ministry of Finance
to conduct research on issues concerning the subsidisation of
biomass power
biomethane. The Group compiled the “Implementation Plan for the

generation and policies on subsidising

Industrialisation Development of Biomethane” and “Master
Proposal for Subsidy Policies”, both of which were critical to the
formulation and modification of relevant subsidy policies. To
analyse the current status of the industry, the Group prepared
and published the “China Biomass Power Generation Industry
Ranking Report” and
Waste-to-Energy Power Generation in Cities and Towns (2019)”.

In order to cope with ultra-low emissions from biomass power

“Industry Report on China Household

generation, it submitted the “Proposal for Study on Emission
Limits of Agricultural and Forestry Biomass Direct Combustion
Boilers” to the Ministry of Ecology and Environment, in a
persistent effort to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities and
drive the healthy development of the biomass

addressing difficulties encountered in the development of the

industry by

industry.

The Group firmly believes that effective environmental
management and accurate and timely disclosure of environmental
to the
enterprise’s responsibilities in pollution treatment. During the year

information are instrumental implementation of an
under review, the Group continued to drive its initiatives relating
to the opening of its environmental facilities to the public in a
resolute manner, seeking to enhance the level of standardisation
and normalisation of such initiatives through major efforts to
facilitate announcements via environmental information networks
and the opening of its environmental facilities to the public. Flue
emission and sewage discharge data of all operating projects of
the Group was linked with and uploaded on a real-time basis to
the government’s regulatory public announcement platforms for
governmental and public supervision. To propagate knowledge
and ideas of environmental protection to a broader spectrum of
people, the Group established a team of 144 personnel for the
reception of public visitors. A total of 16 projects were officially
open to the public in 2019, during which 555 sessions of public
visits were organised, welcoming a total of 8,545 visitors. Surveys
and polls indicated a 100% satisfaction level on the part of
visitors for the Group’s “open to the public” activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group is committed to building long-lasting and close
relationships with its customers and suppliers. Over the years, the
Group has won the approval of governments at various levels
through the stable operations and compliant discharge standards
of its environmental projects, as well as assistance offered to local
governments to improve the living environments of and create job
opportunities for local communities. In connection with suppliers,
the Group consistently adheres to the principle of fairness and
impartiality in its selection of suppliers. During the year under
review, the Group arranged numerous visits to our suppliers for
and paid
connection with services provided by major suppliers, as we

inspection purposes, return visits to projects in
persisted in further refining our suppliers’ list through merit-based
selection.

In terms of operating results, the Group reported encouraging
growth in revenue and profitability for 2019. The Group’s revenue
from construction services reached a historical high as compared
to the same periods of previous years, thanks to enhanced
project management at the preparatory stage and steady
progress of project construction. In connection with project
operation services, revenues from the operation services segment
continued to grow in line with the sustained increase in the
volume of projects processed. For the year under review, the
Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$9,279,555,000,
an increase of 33% over HK$7,001,820,000 for 2018. EBITDA
amounted to approximately HK$2,876,139,000, an increase of
33% over HK$2,161,227,000 for 2018. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the year
approximately HK$1,621,477,000, 22% more than
HK$1,324,871,000 recorded for 2018. Basic earnings per share
for 2019 amounted to HK78.48 cents, HK14.36 cents more than
HK64.12 cents for 2018. The Group had ample cash flow and
reporting sound

was

ready access to various financing options,
financial indicators across the board.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

For the year under review, revenue generated from the integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment,
environmental remediation and solar energy and wind power
segments amounted to approximately HK$9,279,555,000 in
aggregate, comprising approximately HK$4,919,759,000 from
construction services, representing a 19% growth compared to
HK$4,127,440,000 for 2018, and approximately
HK$4,165,265,000 from operation services, representing a 52%
growth compared to HK$2,733,532,000 for 2018. Analysed by
the nature of revenue, construction services, operation services
and finance income accounted for 53%, 45% and 2%,
respectively, of our total revenue.

Major financial data of integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous
and solid waste treatment, environmental remediation and solar
energy and wind power projects for 2019 are set out as follows:
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2019.

The Company remains committed to enhancing value for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). To reward
Shareholders for their support while taking into account the
Group’s long-term sustainable development, the Board has
recommended a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK8.0 cents (2018: HKB.5 cents) per share to the
Shareholders.
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Integrated biomass utilisation

The Group mainly utilises biomass raw materials to generate both
electricity and heat. Biomass raw materials are categorised into
yellow culms and grey culms. Yellow culms consist of agricultural
residues, such as wheat straw, rice straw, corn straw, rice husks
and peanut husks, etc.; while grey culms consist of forestry
residues such as branches, barks and other manufacturing wood
wastes, etc. In addition, the Group has developed a unique
business model of urban-rural integration combining integrated
biomass utilisation projects and waste-to-energy projects to
provide one-stop services for integrated treatment of agricultural
and forestry residues and rural household wastes in a pioneering
attempt at treatment of the ecological environment in county
areas.

While our comprehensive biomass raw material collection and
conveyance system have safeguarded adequate fuel supply and
the stable operation of our integrated biomass utilisation projects,
we have also acquired biomass raw materials from nearby
locations through regional coordination to lower our transportation
costs. Benefitting from the combined effect of technological
optimisation and detailed management, the Group’s integrated
biomass utilisation projects have been able to sustain long cycles
of stable operation in a major boost of the operational standards
and economic benefits of our projects. Moreover, the unique
advantage of the Group’s urban-rural integration business model
has not only contributed to project cost reduction and stronger
competitiveness in the industry, but has also further facilitated the
expansion of the Group’s business footprint.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 48 integrated
biomass utilisation projects, located variously in 10 provinces in
China, including mainly in Anhui Province, Jiangsu Province,
Shandong Province, Hubei Province and Henan Province. Such
projects commanded a total investment of approximately
RMB14.947 billion and provided an aggregate power generation
designed capacity of 1,002 MW, an annual aggregate biomass
processing designed capacity of 8,089,800 tonnes, and a daily
aggregate household waste processing designed capacity of
8,850 tonnes.
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During the year under review, the Group had 32 integrated
biomass utilisation projects in operation, generating approximately
3,826,504 MWh of on-grid electricity which
increase of 50% over 2018. Meanwhile, the Group processed

represented an

approximately 4,635,939 tonnes of biomass raw materials and
approximately 1,439,893 tonnes of household waste,
representing increases of 47% and 63% over 2018, respectively.
During the year under review, the Group supplied approximately
818,804 tonnes of steam, representing an increase of 125% over
2018. As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 13 integrated
biomass utilisation projects under construction, with an aggregate
power generation designed capacity of 246 MW, an annual
biomass processing designed capacity of approximately
1,870,000 tonnes, a daily household waste processing designed
capacity of approximately 2,950 tonnes and an annual steam
generation designed capacity of 960,000 tonnes.

During the year under review, EBITDA of the Group’s integrated
biomass utilisation projects was approximately HK$2,192,943,000,
an increase of 34% over 2018. The integrated biomass utilisation
projects contributed net profit of approximately
HK$1,345,056,000, an increase of 29% over 2018. The increase
in profit was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
construction services thanks to the steady progress of various
projects in construction coupled with the substantial increase in
revenue from operation services in tandem with the continuous
growth in total on-grid electricity from projects in operation,
during the year under review.

Major operating and financial data of the integrated biomass

utilisation segment in 2019 are summarised in the table below:
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Integrated biomass utilisation projects EYEHEEFAER
On-grid electricity (MWh) LHES JERER) 3,826,504 2,557,059
Biomass raw materials processing volume EVERMEIRES (B§)

(tonnes) 4,635,939 3,159,990
Household waste processing volume (tonnes) A= J& 7 3 BR 3E & (1) 1,439,893 881,254
Volume of steam supplied (tonnes) At ES (8) 818,804 363,391
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - IR - TE R
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PEAXGRBIRRARAE 95
—E-NFFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRR D

Hazardous and solid waste treatment

The Group is principally engaged in the safe treatment and
integrated utilisation of wastes including general industrial solid
hazardous wastes and infectious animal

wastes, carcasses.

Currently, the Group conducts the disposal by way of
incineration, landfill, physicochemical treatment and integrated

utilisation.

The Group is a leading industry player in the hazardous waste
treatment business, with capabilities for the safe disposal of 43
out of 46 categories of hazardous wastes listed in the National
Catalog of Hazardous Wastes. During the year under review, we
further expanded into the business of general industrial solid
waste electricity and heat cogeneration, giving us the ability to
fully meet various requirements for hazardous and solid waste
treatment on the back of our solid technical strengths and ability
to provide one-stop services.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 51 hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects, located mainly in Jiangsu
Province and Shandong Province. During the year under review,
we established our presence in the environmental markets of
Heilongjiang Province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
expanding the geographic coverage of our business to 9
provinces and autonomous region in China. Such projects
commanded a total investment of approximately RMB12.566
billion (including approximately RMB581 million in Anging Solid
Waste Integrated Treatment Project, in which the Group held
49% interest) and an aggregate annual processing designed

capacity of 2,229,400 tonnes.
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During the year under review, the Group operated and completed
20 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects. For
detoxification treatment, approximately 184,248 tonnes of
hazardous and solid waste were treated in aggregate, an increase
of 45% over 2018. For integrated resource utilisation, 13,654
tonnes of hazardous and solid waste were treated in aggregate
and approximately 5,242 tonnes of recycled products were sold.
There were 5 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects under
construction with an aggregate annual processing designed
capacity of 160,000 tonnes. Among the projects in operation and
completed construction, Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.* (L&#RERIRERE AR AA]), which was
acquired in early 2019, is currently in suspension pending the
renewal of its license for the operation of hazardous waste
disposal. Lishui Industrial Solid Waste Landfill Project, completed
construction during the year under review, has yet to contribute
any operating revenue.

During the year under review, the Group’s hazardous and solid
waste treatment projects contributed EBITDA of approximately
HK$571,824,000, an increase of 54% over 2018. Hazardous and
solid waste treatment projects contributed net profit of
approximately HK$362,936,000, an increase of 48% over 2018.
The increase in profit was mainly attributable to stable business
development and sustained increase in the aggregate processing
capacity of projects in operation.

Major operating and financial data of the hazardous and solid
waste treatment segment in 2019 are summarised in the table
below:
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REBEFEEA  RNEEES k7T INGRERERE
REBEHE mECEEFE  HEBEGER
BEEE#)184,248MF - =T — \FIEIN45% : EIR
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FTERMER I ERIR SN EER AR BAIER
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¥EFEEREEANODBEFENEKTI - HARF
5B RhE & I Es o

REOBEFERN AEENCEMEREEEEE &S
BBRAE ME TERBHAAFLEBE
571,824,0007C * 8 —ZF— \FIHEN54% - BREN
EREEEIRE SBNFRFIAE362,936,0007T
BT — \FIEN48% c BFEMEBHREL
HEXFRREEBRMECEHENBEREERE L
ﬂ- o

“ENFREMEERED M EEELEM
BHEBENT

Hazardous and solid waste treatment REREEEEEB
projects
Hazardous and solid waste processing volume & &% & [E BE 2 32 & (Nf)
(tonnes)
— Detoxification treatment —BEEVRE 184,248 127,052
— Integrated resource utilisation — BR&RE T A 13,654 =
Sales volume of recycled products (tonnes) BRIEFBAERHBEES
(W8 ) 5,242 —
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - BE - TERE
sHAT AR (BT T) 571,824 370,246

* For identification purpose only
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Environmental remediation

The Group’s environmental remediation businesses cover mainly
the restoration of industrial contaminated sites, restoration of

contaminated farmland, restoration of mines and landfills,

treatment of industrial gas emission, integrated treatment of oil
sludge, treatment of river/lake sediments and industrial sludge,
construction and operation of wetland parks, environmental

stewardship services and anti-seepage at landfill sites.

In connection with qualifications, as of 31 December 2019, the
Group held the following accreditations: First-grade Professional
Contracting Qualification for Environmental Protection Projects, the
Environmental Engineering EPO License (Class B) (for pollution
the Third-Grade
General Contractor for Municipal Public Works, the Environmental

remediation and prevention of water pollution),

Pollution Control License (Class A) (contaminated water body and
soil remediation) in Jiangsu Province and the Environmental
Pollution Control License (First Class) in Jiangsu Province. It had
also obtained an “AAA” corporate credit rating and an “AA” credit
rating awarded by a credit rating agency and China Construction
Bank, ISO9001, OHSAS18001 and
ISO14001 management system accreditations. Also, the Group
holds the China Metrology Accreditation (CMA) which qualifies it
to issue valid data and results with proof.

respectively, as well as

In addition, the Group’s competitiveness and brand influence in
the environmental remediation sector has been further enhanced
following the national accreditation of Everbright Environmental
Remediation (Jiangsu) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, as a
national hi-tech enterprise and approval for its assumption of the
status of post-doctoral base for innovative ventures in Nanjing, as
well as the successful passing of Suntime Environmental
Remediation CO., Ltd. of an annual assessment as a Jiangsu
provincial engineering and technology research centre during the

year under review.

As of 31 December 2019,
remediation projects under implementation,

the Group had 9 environmental
located mainly in
Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province and Jiangxi Province, with a
total contract amount of approximately RMB334 million. There
were 3 projects in the preparatory stage with a total contract
amount of approximately RMB112 million.
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For the year under review, the Group’s environmental remediation
projects contributed EBITDA of approximately HK$55,454,000, an
increase of 126% over 2018. The environmental remediation
projects contributed net profit of approximately HK$30,683,000,
an increase of 54% over 2018. The increase in profit was mainly
attributable to the completion and implementation of 21
environmental remediation projects by the Group during the year
under review, which was 13 more than those completed and

implemented during 2018.

Major financial data of the environmental remediation segment for
2019 are summarised as follows:
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REIEFERA - AEERIRRISEEEB ERBRF
B TIE - T E R AT & R 49785 #555,454,000
T BZE— \FIEIN126% © IRRIS1EIEE
B B F 4975 ¥.30,683,0007T © B =T — )\ F I
54% c BFIEMEZHREBEFERNAEETT
RAITHRIRBEBEEER H21E =T —\F
2 AN134E o

—E-NEFRBEESH 2T EVHKEBEHEN
-

RBEHEER

Environmental remediation projects
EBITDA (HK$’000)

BRAE - IE - ERE
A BN GE%TIT)

55,454 24,515

Solar energy and wind power

The Group has 7 solar energy projects and 2 wind power
projects in operation located variously in Jiangsu Province, Anhui
Province, Shanxi Province and Germany respectively, involving a
total investment of approximately RMB1.395 billion and providing
an aggregate power generation designed capacity of 125.9 MW.
The Group is responsible for building, managing and operating
these projects and selling electricity generated by such projects to
local power grid companies.

During the year under review, the Group’s solar energy and wind
power projects sold approximately 268,675 MWh of electricity,
representing a decrease of 15% compared to 2018. EBITDA
contribution decreased by 18%, as compared to 2018, to
approximately HK$185,683,000. Solar energy and wind power
projects contributed net profit of approximately HK$83,398,000,
representing a decrease of 24% as compared to 2018. The
decrease was attributable mainly to the weaker wind resources for
wind power projects during the year.
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Major operating and financial data of the solar energy and wind

power segment in 2019 are summarised in the table below:

ST AFKREERABH Bz EEELRHY
BEBRBEMT :

Solar energy and wind power projects KXRBEERREIER
On-grid electricity (MWh) EHEEE KK 268,675 316,811
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - BIE - TERE

SHRT AN BT T) 185,683 225,605

The Group strives to realise sustainable development for the
corporation and the community by making vigorous efforts to
drive energy conservation and emission reduction, in persistent
fulfilment of the mission and undertaking of being “Devoted to
Ecology and Environment for a Beautiful China”. During the year
under review, the Group generated approximately 4,095,179
MWh of green electricity, which was sufficient for the annual
electricity consumption of 3,412,649 households,
standard coal consumption by 1,638,072 tonnes and carbon
dioxide (CO,) emissions by 3,383,615 tonnes, while saving
532,373,293 trees. The Group also treated 301,095.5 m?® of
leachate in its waste-to-energy power plants and hazardous

reducing

waste landfills eliminating aggregate chemical oxygen demand
(COD) by 9,728.4 tonnes.

Business prospects

“| see everywhere opportunities waiting to be transformed into
grandeur and majesty; as innovation never ceases by nature’s
design or men’s intelligence.” Year 2020 will mark the conclusion
of the general development of a moderately prosperous society,
while it will also be a crucial year for the Group as it aspires to
accomplish more ambitious goals at the point of convergence for
two Five-year Plan periods.
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The political drive and pressing need for addressing climate
change and seeking improvements in environmental quality among
global nations will remain unchanged, while China’s determination
and persistence for advancing the development of ecological
civilisation,

strengthening ecological protection as well as

preventing and controlling environmental pollution will stay
unaltered, for the time being and in the foreseeable future. While
doubtlessly present a golden opportunity for the

development of the environmental industry, enterprises will be

this  will

subject to greater challenges and pressure given an evolving
external business environment where changes occur in an ever
faster pace, greater depth and broader scope, the instability and
uncertainty of the environment for development will become more
evident. The Group will address such changes in a proactive
manner and seek progress on the back of stability. By focusing
on the essentials, overcoming hurdles, eliminating blind spots and
nurturing new growth niches, we will cement the foundation for
sustainable quality development and drive a new cycle of growth.

The Group will continue to focus on the creation of value and
enhancement of investor return, while persisting in efforts in the
“three dimensions”: extending the length of the industry chain,
penetrating the depth for more market shares and broadening the
scope of our business. To further optimise its business mix, the
Group will drive the expansion of its hazardous and solid waste
treatment business with greater efforts by continuing to enhance
its position in the industry and increasing the percentage share of
such business in its principal businesses, while developing the
environmental remediation business with full force. The Group will
actively advance the transformation of its businesses, including a
general transition of its integrated biomass utilisation business to
electricity and heat cogeneration and high value-added
businesses; the transition of the hazardous and solid waste
treatment business from a standalone model to an integrated
model and base model; and make more intensive efforts in
business expansion for the environmental remediation business
underpinned by exploring new business models compatible with
the Group’s development. In the meantime, the Group will step
up with its search for projects that are compatible with national
industrial policies, technically mature, commercially viable and
risk-proof, in a bid to achieve business transformation and
upgrade with asset-light operations accounting for an increasing
share by extending and broadening the industry chain covered by
its businesses.
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With persistent, technology-guided efforts, the Group will continue
to enhance its research on frontier technologies and development
of applied technologies by further increasing its investment in
scientific research and strengthening its research team. We will
seek in-depth applications of our integrated biomass utilisation
and hazardous and solid waste treatment technologies, while
expediting the development of technologies relating to new
businesses, such as the disposal of waste old tyres, oil sludge
treatment, integrated utilisation of organic solvents and bulk
general solid waste treatment, such that the Group would be
technologically prepared for tapping new environmental sectors
and a new cycle of development guided by technology and
innovation would be ushered in for the greater benefit of national

development strategies.

Looking to the future, with the solid backing of Everbright Group
and strong support of CEIL, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, and on the back of its extensive experience in the
development and operation of diversified project portfolios and
strong ability in market development, the Group will work in close
tandem with national policies and market trends with a firm
strategic focus, as it continues to uphold the corporate vision of
“delivering better investment value and undertaking further social
responsibilities” and strive incessantly to become a leader in

China’s environmental business sector.
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The pneumonia epidemic caused by the novel coronavirus has
been spreading in China before the Spring Festival in 2020.
Confronted with the severity of the epidemic, the Group is
determined to comply with national decisions and plans on
winning the battle against the epidemic and implement on all
fronts the working plans of Everbright Group for epidemic
prevention. Undertaking responsibilities with all members of staff
mobilised for relevant actions, we have adopted preventive and
control measures in a scientific approach and executed policies
with precision as we stand at the forefront of the battle against
the epidemic. Taking into account the challenge for epidemic
prevention presented by the Group’s geographically dispersed
business presence and staff deployment, the Group has also
swiftly set up a three-tier epidemic prevention regime comprising
the head office, the business management centres and the
project companies, with specific duties, tasks and guidelines for
epidemic prevention allocated to each level to ensure that there
would be no blind spots in epidemic prevention. At the project
level, staff of the Group’s project companies have showed utmost
commitment during the epidemic prevention period, making
meticulous planning and performing their duties with firm
dedication to ensure the stable and full-speed operation of the
projects with compliant emissions. They have provided
detoxification treatment of household waste and medical waste for
local communities to eliminate the possibility of any secondary
transmission of viruses through waste and garbage. The
protection afforded to the residential communities through their
reliable and efficient environmental services has won strong
recognition from the local governments, public and media. As of
the date of this report, most of our projects have resumed
normal operations, except for certain projects with operations
temporarily suspended as required by local government
authorities. The impact of the epidemic of novel coronavirus on
the operation status of the Group has been controllable as a
result of the adoption of the plans mentioned above, and whether
the Group will be further impacted is subject to the evolution of

the epidemic in China.
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The “Opinions on Facilitating the Sound Development of Power
Generation Through Non-water Renewable Energy” (Cai Jian
[2020] No. 4)* KEARR KA BARREERRERNE TR
8)) (B132[2020]45%) and “Measures for the Administration of
Additional Subsidies for Renewable Energy Electricity Prices” (Cai
Jian [2020] No. 5)* ((FI BAGREEM MBI E S EEIDE)) (I
##£[2020]55%) were jointly announced by the Ministry of Finance,
National Development and Reform Commission and National
Energy Administration on 20 January 2020. On 12 March 2020,
the Ministry of Finance issued the “Notice on Relevant Review
Work on the Projects List of Renewable Energy Power Generation
Subsidies” (Caibanjian [2020] No. 6)* (BN FHRAI B AERERES
HMUTERBEERAEM IENBM) (3 913E[[2020165%) (the
“Notice No. 6”). The promulgation of the documents show that
the government is doing its best to solve the problem of arrears
in subsidies for renewable energy power generation, which is
beneficial to improving the Group’s cash flow. Based on the
Group’s understanding on the Notice No. 6 and preliminary
estimation, the Group has 12 projects that may meet the
application requirements of the subsidy list. As of 31 December
2019, the
approximately RMB1.8 billion. Moving forward, the Group will

involved national subsidies receivable were
closely follow up and implement the first batch project inventory
declaration and national subsidies related work, and prepare for
the declaration of the next batch of list projects in advance. At
the same time, the Group will continuously optimize its business
structure, actively promote business upgrade and transformation,
and comprehensively propel the development of integrated
biomass utilisation to high value-added services, to give back to
the Shareholders and

outstanding results.

investors by achieving even more

Subsequent events

In January 2020, the Group won the bid for Wujiang Household
Waste Landfill Outsourcing Service Project in Jiangsu Province
with a contract amount of approximately RMB37.69 million. The
project primarily provides household waste landfill operation and
management services to Wujiang District in Suzhou for a term of
three years.

* For identification purpose only

3% CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

—E-TF—A=+H FEGFEH BERER
MR EZBEMBERERRBEAS M T (ENRE
HEIEKAIBAEREERERENE TER Y
#£[2020]45%) A R BAEREENMBHE S
B WR) (B B[2020155%) c — T T HF = A
+ZH PR BEES TCERFERAT B AL
REEMAIBRIEEE BB IENR) (B
#£[2020]65%) ([€65%BEY]) o RIISHBBEM -
EPBREENFRTBEERESHEEDH
REE BARAEERSRNE - BREASE
O BA) IR RV LS HET - NEB P RETF
AEMHAEERREHNIERE12E B2
T-NF+_A=Z+—H8 HSREKERHIE
SHARBISEITL - T—# AEEREYRE
MEAEEMBEEEERRNBEREUHESERT
1 - IRAIRT T — 8RB BB E REHITE
RINEERLLEBEE BOBEEKARE
B 2EESEYELLS PR EB RS INER
FREBER UEMEENKEREEARRE R
BEE -

RERKSEHE

“EoTF-R AREPRIGERTIAEL
FEEBREBSIIBREER - FRARASEHA
R¥3769B T - ZH BT ERHMTRITIRE
AR FORIB S E LB RTE - MISHR A=
£ o

Y EREE



FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial position

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$26,258,315,000 (31 2018:
HK$18,602,802,000) with net assets amounting to approximately
HK$10,587,352,000 (31 December 2018: HK$9,431,074,000). Net
asset value per share attributable to equity shareholders of the

December

Company was HK$5.01, an increase of 11% compared to net
asset value per share of HK$4.52 as at the end of 2018. As at
31 December 2019, gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets)
of the Group was 59.7%, an increase of 10.4 percentage points
as compared to that 49.3% as at the end of 2018. Current ratio
of the Group was 148.7%, a decrease of 5.9 percentage points
as compared to that of 154.6% as at the end of 2018.

Financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and lower the costs of
funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally generated
cash flow and bank loans. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had cash and bank balances of
HK$2,897,486,000, an increase of approximately
HK$636,653,000 as compared to HK$2,260,833,000 as at the
end of 2018. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

approximately
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Indebtedness

The Group endeavours to develop a diverse range of financing
options and increasing banking facilities to reserve funds for the
development of its environmental protection business. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$11,094,776,000, an increase of approximately
HK$5,088,217,000 as compared to HK$6,006,559,000 as at the
end of 2018. The borrowings included secured interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$6,472,644,000 (31 December
2018: HK$4,026,843,000) and unsecured interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$4,622,132,000 (31 December
2018: HK$1,979,716,000). The borrowings of the Group were
mainly denominated in Renminbi, representing approximately 71%
of the total, and the remainder is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All of the borrowings were at floating rates. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$17,423,770,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$11,261,010,000), of which approximately HK$6,328,994,000
(31 December 2018: HK$5,254,451,000) was unutilised. The tenor
of banking facilities ranged from 1 year to 16 years.

In June 2018, the Company entered into a comprehensive
strategic cooperation agreement with Bank of China Limited,
Shenzhen Branch (“BOC”) to deepen the two parties’ strategic
cooperation in energy conservation and environmental protection.
BOC will provide RMB4 billion
funding to the Group in the coming 3 vyears, which will offer

Pursuant to the agreement,

strong financial backup for its development. The RMB4 billion
funding is subject to definitive agreements to be entered into by
the Group and BOC.
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The Company entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Branch
(“PSBC Shenzhen Branch”) in July 2019, paving the way for
cooperation in the fields of ecology and environmental protection
between the two parties. Pursuant to the strategic cooperation
PSBC Shenzhen Branch will provide financial
cooperation of RMB5 billion in aggregate to the Group in the
coming 3 years. By extending its full support to the investment in

agreement,

construction and working capital requirements of the Group’s
environmental protection projects, it will offer comprehensive,
quality, efficient, preferential and personalised financial services to
the Group. The Company will take this strategic cooperation as
an opportunity to deepen the cooperation of both parties and
establish a long-term, stable and mutually beneficial cooperative
relationship with PSBC Shenzhen Branch.

Foreign exchange risks

The Company’s financial statements are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company. The Group’s investments made outside Hong Kong
(including Mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks. The
Group’s operations are predominantly based in Mainland China,
which makes up over 95% of its total investments and revenue.
Most of the Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions
are denominated in Renminbi, basically forming a natural hedging
effect. The Group closely manages its foreign exchange risk
through an optimal allocation of borrowings in different currencies,
controlling borrowings in non-base currencies at a moderate level,

and the adoption of appropriate financial instruments.

Pledge of assets

Certain banking facilities at the Group were secured by revenue,
contract assets and receivables in connection with the Group’s
service concession arrangements, bank deposits, property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land held for own use
of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate net book
value of assets pledged amounted to approximately
HK$14,193,658,000 (31 December 2018: HK$7,597,951,000).
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Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding purchase
commitments of approximately HK$1,934,256,000 (31 December
2018: HK$1,578,260,000) under the construction contracts and
capital commitments relating to the capital injection to an
associate of approximately HK$33,148,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$56,216,000).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2018: Nil).

Tax relief and exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) and Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements and certain
BOO arrangements are service concession arrangements under
Hong Kong Financial Interpretations
Committee) (“HK(IFRIC)”) Interpretation 12, because the local

government controls and regulates the services that the Group

(International Reporting

must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service

charge. In respect of BOT arrangements, upon expiry of

concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to be

transferred to the local government at nil consideration.

Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is used in the service

concession arrangements for its entire or substantial useful life.
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The following chart sets forth a summary of the accounting TNXREFIREFBHIEREEN((EHBUBRE
treatment for service concession arrangements and non-service YRl |) ¥ RIS S ST HE N IERIE I RF A&
concession arrangements under Hong Kong Financial Reporting fEZ T E st RIBZHE ¢

Standards (“HKFRSs”):
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
> BT EE T

Projects with

Projects fulfiling all of (1),
) and (3)

MREN) - (QRE)ER
EHTEE

CRITERIA #£%

(1) The grantor of the project

controls or regulates what
services we must provide with
the infrastructure, to whom we
must provide the service, and
at what price

BEMEEALGIREERM
WA Z RE - R

- the consideration receivable for the
construction service is recognised as service
concession assets, which is an interest
bearing contract asset
HRRERBHOERKEER RN BENEE
NIRRT EREE

finance income receivable is classified as
service concession assets

R ERA D BRRE AR E

payment for construction costs is classified
under operating activities
BEKRAXNRESREEEEHRT

no cash flow effect for construction revenue
and finance income

HEERE M BRALRRSRELE

guaranteed Construction phase Operation phase
revenue stream BERER B
BREWRE TN
HA Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised — operation revenue (service fee received/
or loss BHEREERE receivables less partial settlement of the
Bm& — construction costs charged service concession assets recognised during
EMRZER A the construction phase) recognised
- finance income recognised B MR AR eas (R R PE BR E I e AR 7%
BRI BRA ERRRE TR EREESDDER)

— finance income recognised

BHRIBKA

— service concession assets will be settled by
allocation of service fees received during the
operation phase
FIR 7% 5 AT A 4 1 S O Y T B R R
BEREN

— service fee received is classified under
operating activities
BWRBERSBELEEHET

R BB R E S R - BB AT
BiE - EmiEakE M E
HIEZE 2 FAEAFERM
KZEZ R EER
FREEERAFHAEA

@) The infrastructure is

constructed or acquired from
a third party for the purpose
of the service concession
arrangement or is an existing
infrastructure of the grantor of
the project to which we are
given access for the purpose
of the service concession
arrangement.

&S =EaNi sy
ZHEE B RRS B E =
B RERARMEENER
AMBAEER  MEMHRR
AT SRR B B B R
AL

_

HRIARRBEER
(2) The grantor of the project % SERVICE CONCESSI?N AERANGEMENT
controls, through ownership, Projects with Bl 75545 o S A 2
beneficial entitlement or non-guaranteed Construction :
phase Operation phase
otherwise, any significant ;;;’%j;%;g?q BN B
residual interest in the =R
infrastructure at the end of the Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised — operation revenue (service fee received/
service concession or loss BRREERE receivable) recognised
arrangement or the BamE — construction costs charged ERRLE W (B EBRSER)
infrastructure is used in the EMRZER A — amortisation charge of intangible assets
service concession B AEBHER
3;;3}3?%rgent o fiis @il Statement of — the consideration receivable for the — intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
P financial position construction service is recognised as line basis over the estimated useful life
PET S5 = N f " > = o A "
BENEEAEBBEFER BB RR intangible assets 431 P DA TR £ 52 IR AR LR R 9

HRERBHEKRERRRELEE
Cash flow payment for construction costs is classified — service fee received is classified under
RenE under investing activities operating activities
BERAXNRASBEREEEHET EWRBERSBEELEEEHET
no cash flow effect for construction revenue
HEERRTERSREVE

NON-SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
PRI ISTREER S

Construction phase Operation phase
BB R B
Statement of profit — nil — operation revenue (service fee received/
or loss i3 receivable) recognised
BaRK BHREE Wz (B BERRHER)
— depreciation charge of property, plant and
equipment

¥ BERRETEER

Statement of — construction costs are capitalised as — upon completion of the construction,
financial position construction in progress and classified under  construction in progress is reclassified to the
MR R &R property, plant and equipment relevant categories under property, plant and
BRERAENMEATERIRYHEENE - equipment
BB R EIE T BRTERE  EEREEFNDBEENE K

R R EERER T
— cost of the infrastructure is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful

life
HERAATREAFRZEREERE
Cash flow — payment for construction costs is classified — service fee received is classified under
RemnE under investing activities operating activities
BERAXNRBASBEREEHET EWRBERABEELEEEHET
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As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 45 projects in
in which 34
integrated biomass utilisation projects and 7 hazardous and solid

operation and 24 projects under construction,

waste treatment projects are accounted for as service concession
arrangements. Most of the integrated biomass utilisation projects
and some of the hazardous and solid waste treatment projects
are accounted for as service concession arrangements. The
construction contracts for the biomass portion of our integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects and some of our
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects are recorded under
“intangible assets,” while the construction contracts for the
waste-to-energy portion of our integrated biomass and waste-to-
energy projects and some of our hazardous and solid waste
“service concession

treatment projects are recorded under

assets”.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the construction
revenue recorded under intangible assets and service concession
assets for projects accounted for as service concession
arrangements during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31

December 2018.

Construction revenue recorded as additions to:

BE_T-NAF+_A=1+—8 AEEHEH4
E=ERmE Ro4EEREE - Hp - 34f@4EME
REMBEE kTERE;EERESRB AR
ERGEFFRERLZHFEDNIERE - HANKS
BEMERENAEE kalo ek EREEER
BABRIIERBSFE SRR - £ME R R
BHE—RICEBLEYE R ME TR MERER
ERENEEAORIBEEIDR MAEWE
RAFEE—BCEE N RBEERD KRB ERE
KERERERBNEES IR REFFREEREE
EE NI -

TERIVNEE_FT-NFT_A=FT—BRER=F
—NE+ZA=+—BLLFE  ARIEREHE
S ERT IR R B EE KRGS L E
REERTREMNEERSOAMA -

$19F B T B A U3 ¢

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Intangible assets BREE 3,661,081 2,858,572
Service concession assets G EEEERE 1,258,678 1,268,868
Total 4T 4,919,759 4,127,440
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

Strengthening corporate management and risk control is the
cornerstone that ensures efficient, healthy and sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has always upheld a
“People-oriented, Pragmatic, Creative and Systematic”
management philosophy, as it continues to develop and improve
its management system and mechanism with a special emphasis
on fostering a corporate management culture that encourages
participation by all employees, so as to enhance management
awareness and effectively raise its management standards. During
the year under review, the Group further refined the organisational
structure by establishing a technology management department to
reinforce guidance and underpinning functions of technology on
investment value is created.

operation, such that higher

Informatisation in operation management was vigorously
promoted. The use of information technology extended the
boundaries of management, so that operation management
became more standardised, sophisticated and systematic. The
Group enhanced the standardised operation of its end-to-end
business processes with the aim of controlling operational risks
through the standardisation of processes. Improvements have also
been made to the risk management regime, following initiatives to
strengthen know-how training and practical drills in relation to the
ESHS management system and risk management system. A
comprehensive risk inspection with collective involvement across
different departments was organised, procuring closed-loop
rectification wherever problems were identified. To complement
efforts of the

Internal Audit Department, “Risk management

-oriented auditing” was incorporated into our audit process,
whereby reviews on the operating conditions and viability of our
risk management system were conducted from an audit point of
view to ensure all management systems were effectively

implemented with stringent execution.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRR D

During the year under review, the Company held the management
committee meeting on a monthly basis to conduct reviews on
project investment, preparation, construction and operation. It
plays the roles of the Investment Project Risk Review Committee
and the Engineering Technology Committee to review the
investment and construction of projects according to stringent
standards. Moreover, the Company has always been highly
concerned with legal compliance of project construction. We have
rigorously implemented requirements for work progress to ensure
that the commencement and construction of all projects are
compliant with relevant laws and regulations. The Company has
consistently adhered to the operating principle of “Pursuing
Excellence and Close to Zero Discharge”. We put a strong
emphasis on production safety and emission compliance and
management for projects in operation, and we have been
increasing our efforts in these areas. Competitions in terms of
four indicators, namely,

“Expenditure Reduction, Efficiency

Enhancement, Energy Saving and Cost Control” were organized,
on the basis that no significant safety or environmental incidents
will occur. Moreover, a “Five Minors Innovative Award” was
introduced to encourage staff creativity and facilitate quality

development through innovation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

With a special emphasis on human resource management, the
Group develops the structure of its human resource requirements
according to its business development trends to provide an
ongoing drive force for its rapid development. During the year
under review, the Group continued to actively promote and attract
talents through internal training, open recruitment and on-campus
recruitment, among others. We seek to improve staff quality
through different approaches, such as collective external training,
internal associations, technical exchange sessions and personal
learning programmes. The Group has also provided different
types of trainings designed to explore the potentials of
employees, with a view to achieving co-development with
employees and sharing with them the rewards of its business
achievements.
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To enhance technical exchanges and capitalise on its technical
resources, the Group made active efforts to build an internal
team of lecturers during the year under review and improve their
teaching standards through selection examination, training and
education, so that they could pass on their expertise to upgrade
the skills of other employees. To facilitate new employees’
integration, the Company provided training on corporate
institutions for all new employees through the “Green System
Propagation and Training” courses under the first semester of the
“Yuxiu Programme” training programme of CEIL Ecological

Institute, on top of induction training. To enhance the

development of management succession, 19 outstanding
employees were selected to undertake the Ninth CEIL-Tsinghua
Senior Management Research Study Programme, which they duly
completed. Meanwhile, management efficiency and organisational
effectiveness has been significantly enhanced following specialised
training sessions organised for chief

general managers,

commanders and back-up officers. In addition, the Group also
arranged specialised training in human resources during the year
to generally improve the professional qualities and theoretical
knowledge in human resource management on the part of its
human resources staff. To strengthen risk management and
risk-related tasks,

facilitate consensus for training in risk

management and internal control was arranged for the
management personnel of the functional departments at the
headquarters and the management of the project companies. The
risk awareness, management standards and risk control
capabilities of the management personnel have been effectively

enhanced as a result.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRR D

To further enhance its talent pool, the Group has organised, in

addition to on-campus recruitment, competitive internal
appointment and selection to identify talents and strengthen the
selection and training of back-up personnel, such that staff with
the right caliber and ambition can undertake more appropriate
positions to play to their strengths and enhance efficiency. During
the year, a range of new or revised environmental regulations and
standards, including the “Administrative Regulations Governing the
Appointment of Management Personnel” ((EIE A BRI EAR
TED),
Appointment of Positions Requiring Specialised Expertise” (%
T B 15 AT S B IR KD,
Assessment and Appointment of Professional Positions for
Functional Management” ((BkaEE IR X BT IEEIEIE)) and
“Measures for the Management, Appraisal and Reward relating to
Market Development” ({5 E &2 L Z % EE)H %)), among

others, were announced and implemented. The implementation of

“Administrative Measures for the Assessment and

“Administrative Measures for the

such regulations, measures and standards has had a positive
effect on safeguarding the Company’s routine management
procedures, regulating its management processes and enhancing

its operating standards.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had over 3,000 employees
in total in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As of 31 December
2019, our total staff cost was approximately HK$590,478,000 (31
December 2018: HK$446,230,000). Employees are remunerated
according to their qualifications, experiences, job nature and
performance, with reference to market conditions. Apart from the
discretionary performance bonus, the Group also provides other
benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory provident
fund.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk management has always represented an important task for
the Group. During the year, the Group continued to improve its

internal control and risk management systems, in an ongoing

effort to identify and assess significant risks faced by the Group.
Key risks associated with the development of the Group’s

environmental business included changes in environmental

policies, environmental compliance, construction work

management, staff turnover, trade receivables, market

competition, taxation and the supply of raw materials, among
others.
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The risk associated with changing environmental policies refers to
the failure to respond to changes in national policies and
business models in a timely and effective manner resulting in an
adverse impact to the business of the Group. The Group has
stayed alert on the changes in China’s environmental policies and
has adjusted its development path in a timely manner in tandem
with such changes. In connection with our existing biomass
integrated utilisation projects, we have been making vigorous
efforts to broaden our business model with enhanced heat supply
operations, in a bid to make up for the reduction in national
subsidy by charging fees at market-based rates. We have been
actively engaged in the development of solid waste treatment
projects by increasing the number of projects commanding faster
cash flow return to alleviate the risk of not being able to receive
national subsidy in a timely manner. Meanwhile, we have also
been engaged in vigorous development of new projects in areas
such as soil remediation and waste metal fluid recycling among
others, to fuel the Company’s future development. We have also
sought to understand relevant policy changes through public
outlets, such as industry associations and policy promulgation
staff.
communication with the authorities governing national/industry

training attended by our We maintain smooth

standards and industry associations and take part in the

formulation of relevant national policies and standards. In
“Belt and Road

Initiative” and “Targeted Poverty Alleviation”, the Group has made

response to national policies such as the
reasonable planning and employed innovative business models in
tandem with national strategies to seize opportunities for

development and achieve stated goals in sustainable growth.
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The risk associated with environmental compliance refers primarily
to the risk of the potential breach of environmental emission
limits, safety incidents and adverse external conditions resulting in
a negative impact on project construction and operation. The
Group has persisted in work design optimisation, stringent quality
control over project construction and efficiency upgrade for
equipment in a bid to enhance project management standards.
We have also exercised stringent control over emission indicators
to ensure the compliance with emission standards. The assurance
of compliance with laws and regulations in the course of project
operation represents a key task in our annual work plan, which is
facilitated through real-time monitoring of operating data via the
operating data management system. During the period under
review, the Group conducted environmental inspection on a
regular basis (monthly and quarterly) and from time to time.
Hazards identified through inspection were rectified on a closed-
loop basis in a timely manner and modifications were made to
flawed processes. Environmental management training for the
Company’s staff was enhanced as part of the effort to reduce the
possibility of any environmental incidents occurring. Meanwhile, an
liability
facilitate the transfer of risks as necessary. The Group has

environmental pollution insurance was purchased to
continued to disclose the environmental emission data of its
waste-to-energy projects in a proactive move to subject itself to
the supervision of the general public, highlighting its determination

to fulfill its environmental and social responsibilities on all fronts.
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The risk associated with construction work management refers to
the risk of non-fulfiled formalities for construction work,

deficiencies in construction work designs, construction work
budget overruns, delay in progress and substandard quality due
to inadequacies

imperfections in work management regulations and ineffective

in construction work management regimes,

implementation of construction work management measures,
among others, resulting in a negative impact on the Company.
The Group seeks to control its construction work management
risk by persisting in the lawful commencement of work after the
completion of all required formalities, introducing improvements to
design and planning, resolute adherence to approved budgets
and price quotations, and stringent control over risks associated
with the safety, quality and progress of construction work.
Feasibility studies have been enhanced in depth and quality in
respect of each project, while the furnishing of data information
between equipment manufacturers and design institutes has also
been expedited. In conducting a project, thorough understanding
of investments made in similar projects is sought in our due
diligence process at the preliminary stage; thorough consideration
is given to the feasibilty and economics of the technical
processes at the stage of feasibility study; and construction work
is carried out in strict accordance with the design scheme at the
construction. Schedules of progress are stringently stipulated in
construction work contracts with specific penalty provisions.
Control measures and assessments are implemented at each
milestone during the course of construction. Relevant safety
management regulations have been formulated and revised from
time to time; the percentage share of construction safety funds is
agreed upon at the time of the tender; contractors are required to
take out relevant accident insurance, property insurance and
employer’s liability insurance to partially transfer the risk. Safety
inspections are held both on a regular basis and randomly, as
safety management is independently appraised in assessments
conducted at various milestones and upon completion. Hazards
identified through inspection are rectified on a closed-loop basis
in a timely manner and modifications are made to flawed
processes. Random inspections are conducted on all materials
procured by contractors, while construction contracts provide for
penalties in the event of substandard quality. We ensure the
proper conduct of all construction work processes, especially the
inspection and delivery of concealed construction work; orders for
rectification shall be made in respect of any deliberate attempt to
hold back construction work of substandard quality from
inspection.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRR D

The risk of staff turnover refers to the risk of loss of key
personnel owing to the failure to formulate or effectively
implement any key personnel retention or reappointment plans
and the without suitable

replacements in the short term or effective transition of duties

resignation of key personnel

resulting in a negative impact on relevant tasks or overall
operations. The Group has been making constant improvements
to its overall human resources management standard, making
stronger efforts in the preservation and management of staff
relations to enhance staff unity and solidarity. Active efforts are
being made to investigate the reasons for staff resignation and
improve relevant management processes, with a view to making
anticipatory preparations that would alleviate the adverse impact

of staff turnover on the Company’s production and operation.

The risk of trade receivables refers to the risk of incurring bad
debt losses that would affect the Company’s profit and solvency
owing to the failure to collect trade receivables in a timely
manner. The Group has formulated trade receivables call plans,
under which the customer service department would enhance
calls on trade receivables through various means, such as
telephone calls, facsimile or personal visits. Meanwhile, a flexible
credit policy catering to different customers and subject to instant
In addition,

adjustment has been adopted. the possibility of

incurring trade receivables is reduced through proportional
adjustments to various types of businesses, the development of

new businesses and the adoption of reasonable business models.

The risk of market competition refers to the risk of intensive
industry competition affecting the Group’s business expansion
capability and To assure the
investment return rate of a project, the Group would take into full

return for project investment.
consideration of the local government’s financial strength and the
boundary conditions for the project before committing any
investment. Project development is pursued on the back of the
effective integration of various businesses within the Group to
leverage fully the Company’s strengths. The Group persists in the
delivery of quality project construction and high-standard
operational management to enhance overall project quality. Such
quality projects serves as effective marketing promotion that
strengthens our competitiveness.
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The risk associated with taxation refers to the risk of ineligibility
for the favourable tax treatment of instant value-added tax (“VAT”)
refund owing to non-fulfillment of requirements in biomass fuel
mix, resulting in a negative impact on the Company. The
Company put emphasis on adjusting the biomass fuel mix. For
companies with forestry residues accounting for close to 80%,
efforts were made to continue optimising the fuel mix with a view
to attaining the 80% threshold; companies with forestry residues
accounting for significantly less than 80% were treated with the
assumption they would no longer be entitled to the favourable tax

treatment to ensure compliance with the regulations.

The risk associated with the supply of raw materials refers to the
risk of rising costs and the inability to secure effective supply of
raw materials owing to the failure to anticipate or effectively
respond to hikes in raw material prices or failure to exercise
effective management of suppliers. The Group has formulated and
revised from time to time relevant supplier management
regulations and conducts evaluation of its suppliers on a regular
basis to ensure the quality of products and services provided by
suppliers. Relevant inspections are conducted on a regular basis
and from time to time to ensure that suppliers are in compliance
with laws and regulations when they provide the relevant services.
Issues identified through inspections are resolved in a timely
manner. Where necessary, we would probe into the supply
operations of suppliers to help them resolve in a timely manner

any issues identified.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Group has continued to make improvements to its ESHS
management system, driving ongoing upgrades in the external as
well as internal management of environment, safety, occupational
health and social responsibility and improving systematic and
standardised management throughout the Group to maximise
control over relevant risks and minimise management deficiencies.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRR D

In 2019, the Group further enhanced its ESHS systems and
regimes with the formulation and publication of the “System of
ESHS
environmental management. Safety control of high-risk operation

Accountability for Incidents” and 19 standards of
areas, such as biomass storage yard and temporary hazardous
waste storage warehouses have been strengthened with
emphasis. The management of safety hazards has been
enhanced with the inspection and assessment of environmental
compliance on a quarterly basis and prior to major festive days
and commencement of project operation to achieve hierarchical
safety risk control and potential hazard rectification. A task force
has been formed to work on weaker segments in environmental
management. Development of environmental information system
has been completed and real-time monitoring and assessment of
pollutant discharge have been strengthened. We have subjected
ourselves to public supervision by expanding the scope of

opening of our environmental facilities.

The performance of the operations and environmental services of
the Group’s projects are gauged in strict adherence to relevant
standards and requirements of their respective environmental
impact assessment reports, taking into account expectations of
the neighboring communities. Key regulations and standards
applicable to the Group’s business include the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the Standard for
Pollution Control on Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485—2014), Directive 2010/75/EU and its relevant Annexes/
Amendments (for waste-to-energy projects of urban-rural
integration projects), the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
(GB13223-2011) (for
generation projects), the Standard for Pollution Control on the
Security Landfill Site for Hazardous Waste (GB18598-2001), the
Standard for Pollution Control on the Security Landfill Site for
Hazardous Waste (GB18598-2019) and the Pollution Control
Standard for Hazardous Wastes Incineration (GB18484-2001),
among others. No breach of the said laws and regulations and

Thermal Power Plants biomass power

environmental standards resulting in significant loss for and

impact to the Group was recorded in 2019.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF OUR ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL MANAGEMENT FOR THE YEAR

Through high standards and compliance with stringent
requirements of its operations and construction projects, our
projects have gained various accolades:

— Hanshan Biomass Direct Combustion Project, Chuzhou
Biomass Direct Combustion Project, Dingyuan Biomass
Direct Combustion Project, Xiao County Integrated Project
and Huaiyuan Integrated Project obtained the honorary title
of “Water Saving Enterprise of Anhui Province”;

—  Guixi Biomass Direct Combustion Project was named
“Exemplary Enterprise for Safety Culture Development of
Jiangxi Province 20187

—  Dangshan Integrated (Waste-to-Energy) Project and Xiao
County Integrated (Waste-to-Energy) Project were graded
“AA” in detoxification of incineration plant for household
waste by Anhui Province;

—  Xiao County Integrated Project was awarded “Exemplary
Enterprise for Occupational Health Management of Xiao
County 2018”;

— Sheqi Integrated Project obtained the honorary title of
“Exemplary Enterprise for Green Development” from
Nanyang City Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion
Association;

— Rugao Biomass Direct Combustion Project obtained the
honorary titles of “Advanced Unit for Production Safety
2018” of Nantong City and “Advanced Entity for Production
Safety 2018” of Rugao City; and

— Yancheng Hazardous Waste Landfill Project obtained the
honorary title of “Advanced Enterprise for Ecological Efforts
2018” of Yancheng City Waterfront Chemical Industrial
Park.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBARR DM

ARANRIEAFERENHTZERE A
ox 2

BBEBIEE  BERMEL  RRAT
HIEE RS SEAE -

7N

iy
el

— BUEMEEMBE BNEVEEMRE

T TELMEENRE BERILOE
B-BCBRRRBIERABAUCRIS
BB

— BEEREVEEMZEERERSGIZZT-N\F
EIRELEXEERTELE]

— B8 (GREE)  BH R
%é‘%)%ﬁ?%ﬂé%ﬁji/ﬁiﬁf&’ﬁkyﬁclﬁﬁﬁ%k
AAZR

— BEBLEEESIZZE)/\FEFEB
EELEERTEEEE]

— HE-B(EBEESEEGTERRARE
ERENREERTBEE KRBT

- WNMRAEVEEMRBEHEBES _T—\F
ERBET R EEAEELM ] MINRH R
EHEEREREBIRERRE K

- HyYEHEASHAEES T \FEHERHR
MESETERIERRETEEECE]
EREREE o

PEEXGERRARLT g
—ThEER



@ ENVIRONMENTAL

REEE

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



PEAXGRBIRRARAE 53

—“T-NEFR



SUMMARY OF SUSTAINABILITY

SYNERGETIC PROMOTION OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Sustainable development is rooted in the day-to-day business of Everbright Greentech. The Group actively explores
and formulates business strategies that integrate our production and operation with social demands, with a view to
delivering values to stakeholders and constructing an ideal living environment. Facing worldwide pollution, poverty,
climate change and many other severe challenges in recent years, the Group shoulders the responsibility of providing
innovative technology solutions to the ever-growing environmental and social issues, so as to facilitate the attainment
of sustainable development goals set out by the United Nations.
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Shareholders

REBNMER

Inject funds for market
expansion and business
innovation.

RS REMEBEFEE
ANE®

RN Exercise proper control
over business risks and
bring long-term returns

through stable asset
condition and profitability.
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Investors and \

-

Business Partners and \

Suppliers
EERENMER

Reduce environmental and social

risks in supply chain via

cooperation and jointly maintain

stability in project operation.
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Explore opportunities for

improvement in performance and

business innovation via
communication and sharing.
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Employees °® . ° \
= L)
Provide constant momentum for
business development by virtue of their
skills, professional knowledge and
innovative ideas.
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Strive to provide a fair system for

employment management, a healthy

and safe occupational environment, as

well as a broad career development
platform
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Customers

Propel market development
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Local Communities

EiiE

&5,

Provide support in terms of
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Government

~
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Provide opportunities for cooperation in
projects, guidance on policies and

and provide a major source
of income with
environmental demands as
the core.
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services.
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land, materials and manpower. financial aids.
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Achieve general enhancement f °
in local economic power,

R

Assist in promoting the formulation of
policies and technological reforms in
relation to the environmental industry,
support local communities in attaining
the goal of ecologically-civilised
construction while fostering local
economic development.
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Integrated
Biomass
Utilisation

EMEREFA

Solar Energy and
Wind Power
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Resource
Input
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Creation
of Values
BEAIE

Devoted to Ecology and Environment for a

Corporate Mission

D

Beautiful China
BEARIRIE  BREXBEFEH

Delivering better investment value and
undertaking further social responsibilities
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Sustainability Governance Structure

The Board undertakes overall responsibilities for
developing sustainability strategies, risk
management, target review and performance

Corporate Vision
TEES

Areas of
Concern

BTER

ARHRBREARES

reporting, and has authorised the Chief Executive
Officer to conduct all-round supervision over the
work of the environmental, social and governance
working group.
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
EXEER

INTEGRITY AND COMPLIANCE

Law-based operation and legal compliance with integrity are the
foundation for sustainable development of an enterprise. The
Group upholds the management principle of “People-oriented,
Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic Management”, and
stresses on restriction by system to strengthen internal control,
risk prevention and management. In the course of business
operation, the Group strictly requires itself and its partners to
comply with applicable laws and regulations and steadfastly
adhere to business ethics, demonstrating its commitment to
maintaining a fair and just competitive order.
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Highlights in 2019
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Case Study
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Identified risks in relation to changes in
environmental policies, supply of raw
materials and staff turnover, and
reviewed the effectiveness of current
measures in addressing the risks.
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Developed the Supplier Code of

Conduct, regulated standards of
suppliers’ environmental and social
behaviour to foster sustainable

development of supply chain.
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No non-compliance with laws and
regulations associated with environment
and social economy was identified.
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Risk Management Training
| B 5 7 1% 3

Every person has their own definition for risks, so a sound culture of
corporate risk is the cornerstone of risk management. To ensure that
parties ranging from the Board to each employee jointly develop and
implement risk management procedures, the risk management
department consulted all business units to inquire about their needs for
training in respect of risk management.

In August 2019, the Group provided training on contract legal risks to
all employees, with a view to enhancing their understanding of risk
prevention. The training, hosted by general manager of the risk
management department, comprised an account of constitutional
documents, a summary of common risks and an explanation of
precautionary measures. In addition, to further enhance leadership in
risk management and internal control of Board members and senior
management, the Group engaged external consultants to provide
training on the responsibilities, measures and development trend of
corporate risk management at the end of 2019.
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EMPLOYEE
CARE
BTEIR
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Highlights in 2019
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G
Reviewed and amended policies and
requirements on employment, human
resources management and
remuneration and benefits so as to

improve the employment system and
further safeguard employees’ rights.
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Stepped up training and management of
its talent pool for back-up officers;
number of back-up officers increased
by 44.9% as compared to 2018.
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HERBRIR_-F—/\FHEN44.9%

Conducted quarterly safety checks for
projects and urged project companies
to complete their rectification in a timely
manner.
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED

Employees are the core factors for the Group’s long-term
development. By upholding a people-orientated strategy as to
human capital, the Group has established a fair employment
system and has devoted substantial resources for providing
various training opportunities to assist employees in expanding
their room for development. Meanwhile, the Group steadily
drives the establishment and optimisation of the ESHS
management system on both corporate and project levels, and
continuously strengthens our abilities in relation to emergency
response in order to offer maximum protection to our staff with
a rigorous attitude.
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Talent Nurturing Scheme A 7% &5t &

Case Study
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The administration and human resources department organised a 4-day
training activity in Nanjing in November 2019. Targets of the training
included a total of 53 individuals comprising back-up officers,
management personnel from green technology functional department and
command centre, and general managers and deputy general managers
of project companies, etc.

The training featured lectures given by internal and external speakers.
Internal speakers focused on deepening trainees’ understanding in
corporate culture and strategies of development, as well as knowledge in
procurement, finance, project safety and business of environmental
management. External speakers provided three courses targeting trainees
with different backgrounds, including “Enhancement in Management Skills
and Efficient Communication”, “Financial Management for Non-financial
Managers” and “Human Resources Management for Non-human
Resources Managers”, so as to achieve individualised training. Two
workshops were also held to allow trainees to discuss in groups the
practical application of the knowledge acquired and inspire fresh
perspectives.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

MANAGEMENT
RETHE

GREEN AND INNOVATION

The natural environment is essential for humans. The
Group has adopted an array of policies and procedures
to properly monitor the design, construction, operation
and maintenance of the project facilities, ensuring green
operation of the projects. As a pioneer in the
environmental protection industry, the Group knows very
well the importance of science and technology
application for environmental protection. The Group is
committed to promoting the development of
environmental protection business through investing in
Everbright Greentech Research Institute and supporting
technical innovation of staff with favourable policies.
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1 integrated biomass utilisation project,
15 hazardous and solid waste
treatment projects and 7 environmental
remediation projects were added to our
project portfolio.
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Number of invention patents and utility
model patents held by the Group
increased to 32 and 73, respectively.
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Internal competitions on conserving,
enhancing efficiency, saving energy and
controlling cost continued among
projects, improving energy utilisation
efficiency.
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Building a Green Village
ERgEEN

The Group has developed a business model of urban-rural integration, which has not only provided
a solution to rural waste problems, but also guaranteed the supply of green electricity in regions
where operations are located.

As one of the first national commodity grain base counties and a top-100 county in grain
production, Fengyang County, Anhui Province, is rich in agricultural resources. However, local
residents have been beset by the ensuing agricultural and forestry residues. To counter the impacts
of traditional outdoor combustion of forestry residues on air quality and residents’ health, the Group
constructed an integrated biomass and waste-to-energy project in Fengyang County (“Fengyang
Project”). Through acquisition of straw from the entire county to generate power from waste,
Fengyang Project prevents pollution caused by tradition outdoor combustion on one hand, and
makes use of the ashes left by combustion on the other, serving as an excellent example of
resources recycling of forestry residues. Moreover, Fengyang Project in general covers household
waste from all residents in the county, which assists in the integrated treatment of rural environment.

In 2019, Fengyang Project processed 305,600 tonnes of forestry residues (including straw, nutshells,
twigs, etc.) and 152,800 tonnes of household waste in total, generating 264 milion kWh of green
on-grid electricity, reducing standard coal consumption by 148,600 tonnes in aggregate.
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SOCIAL
INVESTMENT

HERE

JOINT DEVELOPMENT

Giving back to society is a form of corporate responsibility. The
Group actively participated in all kinds of public services,
promoted community work with respect to education and
environmental protection, while focusing on the welfare of different
social groups. The operation of different projects also helped to
address the trash problem for local residents and provided
employment opportunities and green electricity for the area,
achieving harmonious coexistence and joint development between
the Group and the community.
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Highlights in 2019
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Case Study
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Integrated biomass utilisation
projects directly or indirectly
provided over 100,000 positions for
local communities and generated
revenue of approximately
RMB1.564 billion for local farmers.
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16 projects under operation were
open for public visits to enhance
the public’s environmental
awareness, as well as their
participation rights and supervision
rights towards the projects.
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Full text of the Sustainability Report will be posted on the websites
of Everbright Greentech and the Stock Exchange.
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Targeted Measures for Poverty Alleviation

By hREERE

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Guanyun) Limited (“Guanyun Project”) is
located at Guanyun County, northeastern Jiangsu Province. The Group constructed
biomass power plants in that area, with the aim of turning waste into valuable
resources and revitalising the economy of rural areas, as well as providing
employment opportunities to the people in that area. This helps alleviate the “Three
Rural Issues”.

In line with the national policies on targeted poverty alleviation, Guanyun Project,
the County Poverty Alleviation Office and the poverty alleviation workstation of
different townships identified impoverished families living around the project. The
Company purchased biomass waste such as straw, old formwork and twigs from
local poor families on a regular basis according to the contracts, and the
purchases were conducted with a higher price. Those impoverished families can
assign an agent to sell the waste on their behalf if they cannot deliver the waste
due to distance or transportation problems.

With the encouragement of such policy, income of local poor households
increased, which solved the hunger problem among local people living in poverty in
a stable and effective manner, contributing to building a harmonious society. In the
future, the Group will continue to find ways to overcome the limitations caused by
commuting distance so as to benefit more households living in poverty.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group believes that maintaining sound and high standards of
corporate governance is not only a key element in safeguarding
the interest of the Shareholders, but also a way to enhance the
corporate value and strengthen accountability and transparency of
the Group.

Echoing the Company’s theme of “Laying a Solid Foundation and
Keeping Pace with Times”, the Group has constantly reinforced its
internal control, risk prevention and management, corporate
governance through a set of rules and regulations. The Group
strives to inculcate the risk management and sustainable
development concept into the Company’s operation and business
for cultivating the strong backup to the breakthrough
development of the Company’s business.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) has been adopted by the
Board as the guidelines of corporate governance practices of the
Company. During the year of 2019, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code save
for a deviation which is explained in the below paragraph headed
“Attendance of Meetings and Trainings of Directors of the
Company in 2019”.

Key practices adopted by the Company on corporate governance
are as follows:

— Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

— Review and monitor the implementation of the Company’s
inside information policy;

—  Review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

— Review and monitor the implementation of the Company’s
internal and external whistleblowing policy;

— Develop and implement the Company’s risk management
policy;

— Review and monitor the implementation of the board diversity
policy and nomination policy; and

— Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
Specific
enquiries have been made with all Directors regarding any non-

conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
compliance with the Model Code and all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the provisions of the Model Code for the

year ended 31 December 2019.

Written guidelines were established for the relevant employees,
including certain employees of the Company, certain directors or
employees of its subsidiaries (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealing in the Company’s securities. The Board
has also formally adopted the inside information policy which
contains the guidelines to the Directors and the Relevant
Employees to ensure that the inside information of the Company
is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner

in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

During 2019,
procedures of handling inside information and the importance of

to enhance the awareness of the specified

compliance with the regulations of insider dealing, the inside
information policy together with the enforcement actions taken by
the Securities and Futures Commission relating to insider dealing
were circulated to the Relevant Employees from time to time.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating business policies and
strategies, directing and supervising management of the Group,
adopting and monitoring internal business and management
control, approving and monitoring annual budgets and business
plans, reviewing operational and financial performance, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s systems of corporate governance,
internal control and risk management. It oversees the task of
making decisions in the best interest of the Company and
maximising the financial performance of the Company. The Board
has delegated the daily operations and the execution of Board
policies and strategies by formulating and implementing of annual
work plans and medium-term development plans for the Group to
the management committee of the Company (“Management

Committee”).
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Management Committee holds meeting every month for
discussing and reviewing the investment proposal, key personnel
matters and appraisals, project schedules, budget executions,
etc.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board consists of 9 members,
including:

Mr. WANG Tianyi (Non-executive Director and Chairman)
Mr. QIAN Xiaodong (Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YANG Zhigiang (Executive Director and Vice President)
Mr. LO Kam Fan (Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)
Ms. GUO Ying (Non-executive Director)
Mr. SONG Jian (Non-executive Director)
Mr. CHOW Siu Lui (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Philip TSAO (Independent Non-executive Director)
Prof. YAN Houmin (Independent Non-executive Director)
All' Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Under the Memorandum and
(the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint any person as

Articles of Association of the Company

a director to fill the casual vacancy on or as an additional
director of the Board. According to the board diversity policy, the
Board considers a candidate’s gender, experience, skill and
knowledge and competency and ability to fulfill duty of care and
diligence and fiduciary duties and recommendation by the

nomination committee (if any).

Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin, the
Independent Non-executive Directors, are subject to re-election at
the next annual general meeting of the Company and retirement
by rotation in accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the
Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. LO Kam Fan and Mr. SONG Jian shall hold office only until
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible and offer themselves for re-election.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed 3 Independent Non-executive Directors, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received from each
of the
confirmation of his independence and considers them to be

Independent Non-executive Directors an annual

independent in accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of office held in Hong Kong and overseas listed companies and
organisations, and their other significant commitments.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 98 to

104 of this annual report.

The Company has maintained an updated list of its directors
identifying their roles and functions on websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Independent Non-executive Directors
inall

are identified as such corporate  communications that

disclose the names of Directors of the Company.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses in carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is responsible for providing Directors with board
papers and related materials. The Company provides monthly
updates to the Board members on the Company’s performance
and position to enable them to make a balanced and
understandable assessments on the Company’s performance,
position and prospect.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board believes that the ratio between Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Group. Conforming to the international trend on board diversity, a
female Director was appointed. The Board also believes that the
views and participations of the
Directors in the Board and committee meetings provides
independent judgment on the relating to strategy,
performance, conflict of interest and management process to

Independent Non-executive

issues

ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.

As at 31 December 2019, the diversity of the Board is as below:
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The Directors come from diverse background with varied
expertise in finance, legal and business fields. All Directors,
including Independent Non-executive Directors, have given
sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group. Independent
Non-executive Directors have provided professional advices to the
Board with their diversified expertise and experience. To succeed
in the changing environment and meet the Company’s theme of
“Laying a Solid Foundation and Keeping Pace with Times”,
nomination committee has identified skills and experiences being
the measurable objectives that should be contained in the Board

and the relevant assessment was conducted during 2019:

WANG QIAN

Tianyi Xiaodong Zhigiang Kam Fan

IX®E 8BEBR

Measurable objectives to
the Board
ESRTHENER

Qualities required
ABHRBERR

Leadership skill and Outstanding leadership qualities and the ability v v

experience to identify and develop the talents of
BEARLELR other employees. Hands-on understanding

of organisation, projects, strategies and
risk management, as well as know-how in
driving reform and growth.
ABFEANBERYE  AREBRFIMEREM
BI®TRE - WHEM HE  BEBANRR
EREERIBAE - I MBI B R ER
B
Financial skill and As the Company measures its operational and
experience

BITS R BE AR

strategic performance by reference to
financial benchmarks, it is essential to
understand finance and the financial
reporting process, and accurate financial
reporting is of paramount importance to
the Company’s success.
ERAARE2EHBEEREGEHEEME
BEAB R - SRR BT RN 81 TS E MR IZ R IE R
EE I B AN B REHRAR AR

KRNEREE -
Industry experience Leadership in the environmental industry. v v
TTRER ERRITERE R BEIN -
Marketing experience Achieving the Company’s business growth v

I through product optimisation and the
development of new businesses. Paying
special attention to the development of
overseas markets in order to diversify
future development.
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Directors
=S
WANG QIAN YANG LO (c]V]o]
Tianyi Xiaodong Zhigiang Kam Fan Ying
Measurable objectives to ES 3 BEBER BEE ERD 35
the Board Qualities required
EEEWHRER FARHNBEARR
Government experience Experience in liaison with the government. The v v
BT 45 environmental business is subject to

stringent regulation and under the direct
impact of governmental behaviour and
socio-economic trends.
AFEBNBHELR REXBRIBEE
T VERRIBFNTAMHELEBS

SEZ
Corporate governance Supporting and providing recommendations on (%4
experience the system of Board and management
TEEBEBLR accountability to enhance transparency,

with the ultimate aim of safeguarding

shareholders’ interests.
ZREHEFSNERBERRSIRERE 2

IERAE - RERRA S REEBE

Knowledge on Enhancing Board supervision over sustainable v
sustainability and development and ensuring the
corporate achievement of strategies and delivery of
responsibility long-term shareholders’ value under a
UHAREERECER sustainable business model.
EE R MABRSHARELRNEE  UHRER

BEEMAIREEBRA T BREEN SR
REERDEE -

Risk management Supervising risk exposures of the Company v v
experience from the perspective of the Board.

R E AR EEFENAZNE  EEAAREBARRE
Talent management Conducive to the Company’s effort to attract, v
ASER motivate and retain valuable and talented

staff.
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BOARD MEETINGS

During the year of 2019, the Board held 5 meetings. In addition
to Board meetings, the Chairman held 1 meeting with
Independent Non-executive Directors annually without the
presence of Executive Directors. Up to the date of this report, the
Board has considered, approved, reviewed and/or formulated the
matters summarized below, including but not limited to:

° Financial results of the Company;

° Reports and recommendations from the board committees;

° Announcements/reports for publication, including release of
interim and annual report and sustainability report;

° Declaration of interim and final dividends;

° Change of Directors;

° Environmental, Social and Governance’s management
structure and its relevant policies;

° The effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems for the year of 2019;

° Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions;

° Investment transactions and related announcement;

° The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

° Any possible improprieties raised out through the
whistleblowing policy; and

° Training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management.

The valuable recommendations contributed by each committee
are highly respected by the Board and the Board takes proactive
actions to put the recommendations in place.
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At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular Board
meetings is given to all Directors and an agenda together with
Board papers are sent to all Directors no less than 3 days before
the date of meeting. All Directors are given opportunity to include
in the agenda any other matter that they would like to discuss in
the meeting. With respect to the Board committee meetings,
reasonable prior notice is given to all committee members. All
Directors and committee members of the Board committee are
urged to attend the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings in person. For the Directors and committee members,
who are unable to attend the meeting in person, participation
through electronic means will be arranged and available.

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he/she will be abstained
from voting. Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict
of interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict
of interest issues.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely audit and
risk management committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, to oversee the particular aspect of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with

sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The audit and risk management committee, currently comprises
all 3 Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHOW Siu
Lui (chairman), Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of
the committee’s membership and members’ attendance records
during 2019 are set out on page 75 of this report.

It is primarily responsible for, including but not limited to,
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process, reviewing the
completeness, accuracy, clarity and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements, considering the scope, approach and nature
of both internal and external audits and reviewing and monitoring
connected transactions and performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to

time, etc.
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The terms of reference of the audit and risk management
committee are published on the websites of both the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

The audit and risk management committee held 3 meetings in
2019 and all minutes were kept by the Company Secretary. The
audit and risk management committee has reviewed with the
management and the external auditor of the Company, including
but not limited to,
adopted by the Group, significant audit matters such as

significant accounting estimates and judgmental

the accounting principles and practices

areas and
external auditor’s audit plan; and has reviewed and discussed the
review of the
audited financial results for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the unaudited interim financial results for the six months

Group’s financial reporting matters, including

ended 30 June 2019. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control functions of the Company,
the committee reviewed, discussed and monitored the works of
risk management in year 2019, the risk management plan for year
2020 and the works done in 2019 according to the 3-year
internal audit plan of the Company. Further, it has reviewed the
compliance of continuing connected transactions, the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function and the engagement of external
auditor of the Company. The audit and risk management
committee reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability. The

aforesaid reviews were recommended to the Board.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, KPMG, the external
auditors, received the following remuneration from the Group in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to

the Group:

BE_ZT-NFT_A=T—"BLLFE IIEX
BUED 2 55 B & R = A P L A AR SR B AR (B AT I
R RS - A BUER T FIHE -

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Annual audit services FEEIRE 2,640 2,100
Interim review services FR HA 2R B AR 75 350 350
Other services, includes tax service, etc. BRI B R REE - 400
2,990 2,850

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE YL EE

The remuneration committee currently comprises Mr. Philip TSAO
(chairman), an Independent Non-executive Director, Mr. QIAN
Xiaodong, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and 2 other Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHOW Siu Lui and Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of the
committee’s membership and members’
during 2019 are set out on page 75 of this report.

attendance records

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee, which are
published on the websites of both the Company and HKEX,
setting out the duties of the remuneration committee, including
determining, with delegated responsibilities,
packages of the Executive Directors and senior

the remuneration
individual
management, etc.

December 2019, 2
committee meetings were held. It has reviewed the remuneration
policy and remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
members of senior management with reference to the goals and

For the year ended 31 remuneration

objectives of the Company. It also passed a written resolution
approving the remuneration package of the newly appointed an
Executive Director and a Non-executive Director. The aforesaid
approved matters and reviews were reported and recommended
to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently comprises Mr. WANG Tianyi
the Chairman of the Board, and all 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip
TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of the committee’s
membership and members’ attendance records during 2019 are

(chairman),

set out on page 75 of this report.

Its primary responsibilities include reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; considering the need for identifying suitable persons to
become directors and made recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, etc. The
terms of reference of the nomination committee are published on

the websites of both the Company and HKEx.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, 1 nomination committee
meeting was held. Up to the date of this report, it has reviewed
the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and the qualification and experience
of each of Directors according to the board diversity policy and
the nomination policy. It has also considered the independence of
each of the Independent Non-executive Director and assessed the
qualification and experience of Directors to be retired and entitled
to be re-elected in the forthcoming general meeting. It also
passed a written resolution in relation to review and recommend
the appointment of the new Executive Director and Non-executive
Director. The aforesaid reviews were recommended to the Board.

The board diversity policy was adopted. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, and/or professional experience. Other than the
above factors, the Company will also consider factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board.
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In consideration with the strategies and objectives of the
Company, the nomination committee takes a prime role on board
recruitment, including the appointment, re-appointment or/and re-
designation of the director(s), to ensure the Board possesses a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the business of the Company.
When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a
director’s proposed re-appointment, the nomination committee will
have regard to certain selection criteria, such as potential time
commitment for the Board/committees responsibilities, reputation
for integrity, accomplishment and experience in environmental
industry, independence of the candidate and governmental or
geopolitical expertise. Nomination committee will review annually
the structure, size and diversity of the Board, external agencies
for collecting impartial opinion in the nomination procedure may
be engaged
responsibility for selection and appointment of Director(s), will

if necessary. The Board, having the ultimate

contemplate the recommendations from the nomination committee
when considering candidate(s) to be appointed or re-appointed as
Director(s) of the Company.

The Company recognizes the importance of Board succession
planning to ensure optimal continuity and that the Board is
composed of people with proper and relevant expertise and skills
to govern and strengthen the Company effectively. To empower
the basis of talent pool of potential candidates, the Company
of skilled and
experienced employees and that, in time, their skills will prepare

develops a broader and more diverse pool

them for senior management and Board positions, by a series of
training courses.
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DIRECTORS’ TIME COMMITMENT TO THE - N/NETE SN o=

COMPANY

Attendance of Meetings and Trainings of Directors of

—E-NAFARTESHESHEREING

the Company in 2019

%

Board Committees Meetings Attendance

HEEEZE88E
Audit and Risk Annual
Management Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors Meeting' Meeting' Meeting' Meeting' Attendance’
ERRARER FMESE REZEE® HERREF
EEgE Esggl ZEEER = 283 KRR
WANG Tianyi 4/5 C 11 C 0/1
FRE
QIAN Xiaodong 5/56 M 2/2 M 1/1
R
YANG Zhigiang 5/5 M 1/1
157558
LO Kam Fan? 2/2 M N/A
& 17 )2 @A
WANG Yungang® 3/3 M 11
T =M
GUO Ying 3/5 M 0/1
EIE
SONG Jian* 2/2 M N/A
ENS @A
TANG Xianging® 2/3 M 0/1
2R
CHOW Siu Lui 5/5 M 3/3 C 2/2 M 11 M 1/1
=z
Philip TSAO 5/5 M 3/3 M 2/2 C 11 M 11
BRE
YAN Houmin 5/5 M 3/3 M 2/2 M 11 M 0/1
BER
Remarks: et
Board and Board Committees Membership: EFEREFLTEEKE
C - Chairman C-*R®
M — Member M- K8
Notes: Bt 5
1. Number of meetings attended/held. 1. HE/RITEHRAH -
2. Appointed as Executive Director on 24 June 2019. 2. Eé T NFNAZTUNHEZRTARPTES -
3. Resigned as Executive Director on 24 June 2019. 3. RIZE-NFAAZTEBEBEEHNTES-
4 Appointed as Non-executive Director on 24 June 2019. 4 RZE-NFRNAZTHNBEZEAERITE
=o
5. Resigned as Non-executive Director on 24 June 2019. 5. RIZE-—NFARAZTHHBEIFERTES -
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During the meetings, Independent Non-executive Directors, based
on their respective expertise and experience, actively brought out
valuable opinions and queries in order to allow the Board to have
comprehensive analysis on each issue.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
Mr. WANG Tianyi, the Chairman of the Board, could not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held in 2019 due to
other business engagements. However, at the meeting, Executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors were present to
enable the Board to answer questions at the meeting.

Arranged by the Company Secretary, Directors joined a training
with the title of “Risk Management and Internal Control” organised
by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Other than the above,
the Directors participated or spoke on seminars/talks/director
training programme 2019 and directors e-trainings launched by
the Stock Exchange and/or reading regulatory/legal updates and
other materials pertinent to directors’ duties and responsibilities.
To meet the expectations and practical needs of the Directors,
the Company Secretary has obtained the views of the Directors
through a questionnaire and has consolidated their views, which
will be progressively advanced as appropriate.
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Record of training received by each existing Board Member in
2019 is summarized below:

Name of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERES

REEFY
B0 T -

EREBR T - NFEXNEILCEK

Types of Training

WANG Tianyi TR
QIAN Xiaodong R
YANG Zhigiang 15558
LO Kam Fan & 55 B
GUO Ying EIg
SONG Jian N
CHOW Siu Lui ;=
Philip TSAO ERE
YAN Houmin BREER

Remarks:

A — Attending seminar(s)/forum(s) and/or giving talk(s) relating to the

business or directors’ duties.
Reading materials relating to the business or directors’ duties.
Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s).

B_
C_

Time commitments outside the formal meetings

Other than attending the Board meetings, committee meetings
and annual general meeting, the Directors take an active interest
in the Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of its
business. The Executive Directors visited the project companies
frequently to personally monitor and scrutinize the operation and
internal control.

In December 2019, 2
together with Mr. YANG Zhigiang, the Executive Director, visited
Lishui Project and Hangzhou
Environmental Energy Project. During the visits, the Independent

Independent Non-executive Directors

Solid Waste Treatment

Non-executive Directors were briefed on the management and
operation of each project and met with the project general
managers and non-managerial workers of the sites to understand
the working environment and needs of the local staff.

Under the assessment of the nomination committee, even though
some of the Directors are sitting on multiple boards or having
significant commitments at works in university, they devoted
sufficient time and effort to discharge their duties and

responsibilities.

B EA
A, B, C
A, B, C
A, B, C
A, B, C
A B
A B
A, B, C
A, B, C
A, B, C
et
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. WANG Tianyi is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. QIAN
Xiaodong is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer are clearly divided to ensure a balance
of power and authority and to reinforce their independence and
accountability.

Mr. WANG Tianyi, being the Chairman, is responsible for
providing leadership to the Board and ensuring that the Board
functions effectively; that Directors receive in a timely manner
adequate information which is complete and reliable and that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chairman also encourages Directors to participate
actively in and to make a full contribution to the Board so that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated
and adopted by the Board and leading the management of the
Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and Board
committee meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the Board meetings are followed. She also
acts as the secretary to the 3 Board committees. She prepares
and keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and Board
committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes are circulated to all Directors or committee
members for comments and the final and approved version of
minutes are sent to all Directors or committee members for their
records. Board committees, including the audit and risk
management committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee, all follow the applicable principles, practices and
procedures used in Board meetings. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for organizing the Board training for all Directors
and circulating to all directors materials relating to the Directors’
jobs and duties for their review.

Ms. CHOW possesses professional qualification and extensive
experience in discharging her duties as the Company Secretary of
the Company and she is an employee of the Company and
directly reports to the Chief Executive Officer.
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As at 31 December 2019,
Company has undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional

the Company Secretary of the

training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As a
key adviser on corporate governance and other regulatory
Ms. CHOW keeps up-to-date with the
regulatory and legal developments relevant to the Company that

compliance matters,

she serves and takes the initiative to start postgraduate training
on enterprise risk management.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the 5
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly
prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” contained in this annual
report.

s E CGE% )

78 #1,000,001 7T 2 7 ¥ 1,500,0007T
75 151,500,001 7T 2 % #2,000,0007T
752,000,001 78 2 7 52,500,000 7T
78 ¥ 2,500,001 7T 2 7 # 3,000,000 7T
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Adhered to the principle of sharing the fruit of our success with
our shareholders, the Board has adopted a dividend policy.
Subject to certain factors, including but not limited to, general
business conditions and strategies of the Company and the
Company’s financial results and capital requirements, the dividend
payout ratio is approximately 20%.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group always places high emphasis on risk management and
internal control and strictly complies with the relevant risk
management and internal control requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules. The main features of risk management measures
adopted by the Group are as follows:

A. Risk Management Structure
) Organisation system

The risk management organisation system of the
Group is based on the following “Three Lines of
Defense” model:

P BICR

RFEFRDFURNERY  EFTFERAKE
B - ZRRETHER  8RETRRAQFE
BEBMARREARARRMBRENEAR
Ko kB EKRB20% °

BB B TR M A ER B

AEH-EERAREEANDED  BEET
EHFAIRARERENBELOEBES T
SO A B R R TR A ) B

A. BEREBEEE
() AEEX

AEENAREREMEBRA TR
R ZEPRIEAES]

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE/THE BOARD

EEREBEEESES EET

= o= o=

First Line of Defense Second Line of Defense Third Line of Defense
FE—EBlE FEZER EZEBER
Operational Management Risk Management Internal Audit
(Risk Ownership) Functionalities (Risk Control) (Risk Assurance)
EEER (RBEERE) [ B B TR T A (/LB 422 1) R B % (RS IR )
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Board

The Board shall be responsible for the evaluation and
determination of the nature and level of risk it is
willing to undertake in order to achieve the strategic
targets of the Group. It shall also ensure the
establishment and maintenance of proper and
effective risk management and internal control
systems by the Group.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The audit and risk management committee shall
assume the role of supervising the overall risk
management structure of the Group and provide
advice to the Board on any risk-related matter of the
Group.

First Line of Defense

In respect of the first line of defense, each of the
business center, the project companies, command
authority and project departments of the Group, being
the officers for risk management, shall ensure effective
implementation of risk control measures based on the
risk management system and requirements of the
Company, supervise any risk which involve in every
business operations and collect details of, and report
any risk-related incident.

Second Line of Defense

The department of risk management, being the
second line of defense, shall, based on the Board’s
appetite, identify and assess relevant risks and
conduct necessary monitoring in this regard, execute
appropriate supervision to ensure effective and
efficient control of all activities of all departments
internally or between different departments, as well as
evaluate and provide regular report to the audit and
risk management committee. Each functional
departments at headquarters jointly deal with the risk-
related incidents reported from the first line of defense
and the comments from the audit and risk
management committee with the risk management
department.
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()

(1)

Third Line of Defense

For the third line of defense, the department of
internal audit shall carry out internal audit on a yearly
basis and ensure the effectiveness of the first and the
second lines of defense. The department of internal
audit shall provide to the audit and risk management
committee and the Board an independent assurance
as to the sufficiency and effectiveness of the internal
control of the Group.

Systems and regimes

The Company’s systems and regimes comprise
various systems, including the risk management
system, finance system, human resources system and
safe production system, among others. Our
comprehensive systems and regimes assure that there
is a solid basis for our risk management.

The key-point audit process regime

The business department is responsible for the initial
control of business risks and other risks; the
management centre and functional departments at the
head office are responsible for risk controls relating to
legal, financial and compliance matters; the
management is responsible for overall risk control,
while officers-in-charge are responsible for key-point
auditing to achieve multi-tiered risk control.
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The SOP regime

Standardised operations are accomplished through the
“Standard Operation Procedure” (“SOP”). SOP refers
to the benchmark documents setting out correct
instructions on standard operations provided by
instructors to operators. The formulation of SOP
serves to provide reminders and instructions to staff
holding positions relating to relevant issues and
dedicated ESHS staff, affording maximum control and
reducing the ESHS impact of such issues, such that
ESHS control at the overall corporate level is attained.
The SOP not only specifies dangers, risks and
hazards that might be encountered by such job
positions and the preventive measures that should be
taken, but also the supervisory role and functions of
dedicated ESHS staff. A comprehensive SOP ensures
comprehensive knowledge of ESHS risks on the part
of relevant staff during the course of operation,
forming the basis on which operators conduct ESHS
risk control as well as the cornerstone and basis for
our corporate ESHS management.

The accountability regime

The accountability regime specifies the risk
management responsibilities of various control points
and delegates management authority according to
such management responsibilities. A reasonable
accountability regime specifies the risk management
responsibilities of various positions, while reasonable
delegation assures the effective performance of
management responsibilities.

The performance appraisal regime

Risk control outcomes are incorporated into our
performance appraisal. For example, the “System of
Accountability for ESHS Incidents” stipulates that staff
responsible for environmental safety incidents shall be
given negative ratings in their performance appraisals;
on the other hand, staff who have identified material
safety hazards in a timely manner, avoided the
occurrence of incidents by adopting effective
measures or made outstanding contributions to rescue
efforts during emergencies shall be commended.

()

V)
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Risk assessment process

The Board has formulated with due care a risk
management system policy and risk tolerance levels through
the audit and risk management committee, while the
management identifies and classifies major risks according
to their sources, causes and potential impact and
consequences, and ranks such risks according to the their
probability of occurrence and impact. The Company
conducts risk identification each year through methods such
as survey questionnaires, interviews, specialist consultation,
policy analyses, seeking to define our risk appetite in 7
dimensions, including strategy, finance, investment,
operations, work construction, legal compliance and staff
management. Risks identified have been categorised into
policy changes, environmental compliance, work
management, staff management, trade receivables, market
competition, taxation and raw material supply. The ranking
shall be based on the level of remaining risk. The level of
remaining risk refers to the score value of the existing risk
after taking into account all monitoring measures currently in
force. The assessment of risk analysis results aims at
determining whether the risks identified are within our
default risk appetite and risk tolerance level. Based on such
risk assessment, the risks could be transferred, eliminated
or effectively controlled through risk mitigation measures
formulated.
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Summary table for principal risks

Principal risks

TERR

Description

hE

Potential impact

BEVE

Key mitigations

TEFEER

Change in principal
risks in 2019 (Higher/
unchanged/lower)
TERRE=-Z-H
RN (LH/
BE/TH)

Principal risks
TERAR

Description

nE

Potential impact

BENE

Key mitigations
E-3520)

Change in principal
risks in 2019 (Higher/
unchanged/lower)
TERBE=Z-N
RN (LA
BY/TH)
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TERBBEDR

Risk relating to policy change

BRE(LER

The risk of failure to respond to changes in national policies and business models in a timely and effective manner
resultmg in an adverse impact to the business of the Group.

EAE &hﬁﬂﬁﬂl%ﬁ%ﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ$%l%ﬁm%ﬁE%%mﬁ@°

Compliance, operations and finance might be affected. Extent of the impact: might result in higher operating costs,
increased pressure for emissions, or failure to receive new energy grants in a timely manner resulting in escalated
pressure on operations.

HER B MBAERERE: RSB EKA LA - HFREEM - SR REEUEEREA - EEENMA o
1. Vigorous efforts to diversify business models for existing biomass integrated projects for the avoidance of sole power
generation models and increase of heat supply, striving to make up for the reduction in national subsidy through market-
oriented means. 2. Development of standalone incineration or power generation projects was scaled down and active
efforts were made to explore solid waste treatment projects, so as to mitigate the risk of inability to receive government
grants in a timely manner by increasing the number of market-based projects commanding stronger cash flows. 3.
Vigorous development of new projects such as soil remediation and waste metal fluid recycling to fuel the Company’s
ongoing growth. 4. Smooth communication with the authorities governing national/industry standards and industry
associations and participation in the formulation of relevant national policies and standards.

Lﬁ%ﬁﬁi%% —BIERERAEEERN @R BMRT  EMBRARNT  FRABTHENFARBEERR
BERL 2 B0 EBNGERERAAR  BRRAEEEZNRERE RAENTSL RERBAZAHENEE
%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%T L REEHAER  SEBARNIEEEREBERRNENER  RAR Tﬁﬁh#&% o 4,51
R/TEEEEEHM  TERBEESREBANERRE  2HERBWIE  FENFIEIE

Lower

TR

Risk relating to environmental compliance

RERRRAR

The risk of the potential breach of environmental emission limits, safety incidents and adverse external conditions resulting
in a negative impact on project construction and operation.
RREAFHER 258 TROFRRSHRENBRARELTREATENAR -

In the worst-case scenario, excessive emissions or non-compliant operations might result in administrative penalties, tax
refunds being affected or forced suspension of operations, thus undermining the Company’s reputation.
BEFHEERRENSBEYENREXITHRS  PERNAKARE FYELARES -

1. Assurance of compliance with laws and regulations in the course of project operation was made a key task in our
annual work plan and random inspections on legal compliance were conducted. 2. The operating data management
system was adopted to enable real-time monitoring on operating data. 3. The accountability system was streamlined and
implemented for incorporation into performance appraisal. 4. Regular (monthly/quarterly) and random environmental
inspections were conducted. Hazards identified through inspection were rectified on a closed-loop basis in a timely
manner and modifications were made to flawed processes. 5. Environmental management training was enhanced to
reduce the possibility of environmental incidents occurring. 6. Environmental pollution liability insurance policies were taken
out to cover projects with greater environmental risks, such as hazardous waste projects, in order to transfer risks as

necessary.
1LRERRAEZBESESH FAFEENTHNE BRRESZAABN 2RAERRERALN ERYEL
BRNER ﬁ°3%§ﬁ£ﬂh@ﬂ%§l# MAER - 48 (B8R BERE) AT EWETRERS - HREME

BORBRERER THERBNRERETE S MARFEEE  RERSEHFHENTLML -6 HHBREFTRE

RRBANER - BERRSAEAR  ETVENRAREDR -

Lower

TR
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TEERERS

Principal risks
TERK

Description
AR

Potential impact
BEXE

Key mitigations

TEFRER

Change in principal
risks in 2019 (Higher/
unchanged/lower)
TEABRE-Z-N
FHEMmEL (LA
®E/TR)

Risk relating to work management
IRERRR

The risk of non-fulfiled formalities for construction work, deficiencies in construction work designs, construction work
budget overruns, delay in progress and substandard quality due to inadequacies in construction work management
regimes, imperfections in work management regulations and ineffective implementation of construction work management
measures.

RIREERAMES IRERHESZE IREEBABTINERASBNBIFETES  TRRGHE IR
HEEY  EEEL HETAHMER -

Finance, operations, reputation, compliance, safety, environment
B 82 BE A8 T2 BE

1. Appraisal on work commencement procedures was conducted as a key task and work commencement required
approvals from departments at various levels to ensure completion of all procedures before commencement. 2. The depth
of feasibility study was enhanced, as tenders for feasibility study and design for projects were conducted simultaneously
where possible. The quality of feasibility study was improved. Information supply between equipment manufacturers and
design institutes was expedited, while the order for information supply among various equipment was internally clarified to
facilitate the streamlining and implementation of the accountability system for incorporation in the appraisal. 3. In
conducting a project, thorough understanding of investments made in similar projects is sought in our due diligence
process at the preliminary stage; thorough consideration is given to the feasibility and economics of the technical
processes at the stage of feasibility study; and construction work is carried out in strict accordance with the design
scheme at the construction. Equipment tenders commenced only after the completion of preliminary procedures. Work
progress requirements were strictly specified with specific penalty terms in the tenders for civil engineering and design
contractors. Control measures and assessments are implemented at each milestone during the course of construction. 4.
Relevant safety management systems were formulated and amended; the proportion of safe construction funds was
agreed at the award of supplier tenders; relevant accident insurance, property insurance and employer responsibility
insurance policies were taken out to partially avert the risk. Safety inspections are held both on a regular basis and
randomly, as safety management is independently appraised in assessments conducted at various milestones and upon
completion. Hazards identified through inspection are rectified on a closed-loop basis in a timely manner and
modifications are made to flawed processes. 5. All materials purchased by the construction parties were randomly
inspected by staff at the command post, while penalty provisions against sub-standard deliveries were agreed with
suppliers and set out in contracts. All works were carried out properly, especially the inspection and delivery of
concealed construction work; orders for rectification shall be made in respect of any deliberate attempt to hold back
construction work of substandard quality from inspection.

1HERIFEERER TEETER IRAIRASANMEY BRFEEEERT 2RATHAE - BHEN
HE MM EM—ERE - RREAIRNES - MREREBEAR 2 ANBERERE - AHRESRERNR
BEFREEAHREBANZELIE  SAZR -3EEAANS SARRRY TRARREENRERR  EAIMER
RAZRITEMAAREEN ERRER BRERIFARENER - ZETASFEL  BETIEREIE
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BEGHER AFELETHER2EEHE  ERERARRAOEZ 2 XABIA LI BEEENEIME  HE
BANELTECRSEBIIER - EHANIEHETRLRE CERBHRERTIERTEEERRLER  HREM
EEMBERKER  THERBNRIZETE 5. ARENASHBTENFMRENAEMEE TR - YESRAS
MHEEEAOEE P BMBETHTA - MEEELIR BrRBRIRNRE  SREIESTERUERR A RRK
) —BECHEHMHE -
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Risk relating to staff turnover
STRBER

The risk of loss of key personnel owing to the failure to formulate or effectively implement any key personnel retention or
reappointment plans and the resignation of key personnel without suitable replacements in the short term or effective
transition of duties, affecting relevant tasks or overall operations; failure to identify the precise reasons for staff departure
resulting in probable negative impact on the remaining employees (sense of corporate identity and unity, etc.)
RRRAENEREERBINBRE S TREREEE SHRBREME TNk - BRE0E TS - BEHBNR
BRENEBERE FEIEXBERIN  SRREILERERRENRIFE - HEIRBRARASTER - AR
BTE4EAFE(CERARK BENE)-

Various aspects such as business development, finance and operations

FHRE W EREAAE

The overall human resource management of the Company has been enhanced with stronger efforts in the preservation
and management of staff relations to enhance staff unity and solidarity. Active efforts are being made to investigate the
reasons for staff resignation and improve relevant management processes, with a view to making anticipatory
preparations to reduce the impact of staff resignation on the Company’s production and operations.
RAARAZRBANEREEKE  MAETHEMNEENER BESTHEZNRML N - ¥ 8 THBEBERR
A TERENERRE  RAMEES HOBERHARALELENTE -

Lower

TR

Risk relating to trade receivables
FEMUR R B

The risk of incurring bad debt losses that would affect the Company’s profit and solvency owing to the failure to collect
trade receivables in a timely manner.
BREBERR T A R RE - SEEREBAEE - ¥EARANBERI A N0ERE -

Finance

B

1. Formulated trade receivables call plans, under which the customer service department would enhance calls on trade
receivables through various means, such as telephone calls, facsimile or personal visits. Meanwhile, a flexible credit policy
catering to different customers and subject to instant adjustment has been adopted. 2. Efforts were made to lower the
possibility of incurring trade receivables through proportional adjustments to various types of businesses, the development
of new businesses and the adoption of reasonable business models.1.#|7E T KR ELEH 8 - ZREBFIFIMER « &
B FPISZEEGFANKTEENE - A - BETRNEFRREENERABE  CAERAE 2 BRXHKHEL
MLLOIAE  MEREBREBENEEEA B RRKERE £ -

Lower
T
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Principal risks
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Potential impact
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Key mitigations
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Change in principal
risks in 2019 (Higher/
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Risk relating to market competition
M55 FER

The risk of intensive industry competition affecting the Group’s business expansion capability and return for project
investment.

EEXNHTORNRET  PEARBOEHARENRIAR REDRHES «

Business development and finance

FHRRRYH

1. Prior to making any investments, full consideration was given to the financial strengths of local governments and
project boundary conditions to ensure sound investment return rates for projects. 2. Project development is pursued on
the back of the effective integration of various businesses within the Company to leverage fully the Company’s strengths.
1REBARDZBUIBNOMRE N RIBR BRGNS  RERENREDRE 2 ARAALTRBERNES  ZHH
BARABZETABRE -

Lower

TR

Risk relating to taxation

BBER

The risk of ineligibility for the favourable tax treatment of instant VAT refund owing to non-fulfilment of requirements in
biomass fuel mix, resulting in a negative impact on the Company.

RRENERHEBREEIERBEZXEERDENENREERAMHARNELE AT ENER -

Finance, operations, reputation, compliance, etc.
B EE BE AHF

For companies with forestry residues accounting for close to 80%, efforts were made to continue optimising the fuel mix
with a view to attaining the 80% threshold; companies with forestry residues accounting for significantly less than 80%
were treated with the assumption they would no longer be entitled to the favourable tax treatment.

HRRWFRD G L L BEA80%M A A FHEBLMBERE - FEUEEI80% : HRMELRENBRM AR RBRTEZE
RUBEHRRETETEE -

Lower (based on judgement on current conditions as no initial risk value was set at the start of the year)

TR (mRFLREENRRRE  AAGETREZREERAEHN)
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Risk relating to the supply of raw materials

R HE R

The risk of rising costs and inability to secure effective supply of raw materials as a result of failure to anticipate or
effectively address prices hikes for raw materials or exercise effective management over suppliers.
EAREEARBRELRHRER LRI AREHREEETARERMERANRREN BRI EEEGEEREESN
Rk -

Finance and operations
HBREE

1. Relevant supplier management systems were formulated and revised and evaluation on suppliers were conducted on a
regular basis to ensure the quality of the products and services provided by suppliers. 2. Relevant inspections are
conducted on a regular basis and from time to time to ensure that suppliers are in compliance with laws and regulations
when they provide the relevant services. 3. Issues identified through inspections are resolved in a timely manner. Where
necessary, we would probe into the supply operations of suppliers to help them resolve in a timely manner any issues
identified.

1.EIEWETERRERE R  ERETHERTE BRREEARBERNRENES 2 THNITEHETRE
HEARS  BREEHEREAERBENRRSEEH - SHREMEBOMBERKRR  UERRAHERHRER
& BB AR KSR P B AR
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Risk Control and Report

A report, which contains the implementation of risk control
measures and the results of risk management, as well as
details of the risk-related incidents, shall be submitted to the
risk management department by each risk bearing unit on a
quarterly basis. Based on the contents reported by various
project companies and functional departments, the risk
management department will prepare “Risk and Internal
Control Report” and submit the same to the management
of the Company, who will understand the status of risk
management and optimise the relevant measures. The audit
and risk management committee provides assistance to the
Board for maintaining and monitoring the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of
Everbright Greentech. The department of risk management
and department of internal audit will semiannually provide
conclusive report to the audit and risk management
committee in respect of the risk management and internal
control aspects of the Company, and receive the risk
management and internal control plan for the next year. In
addition, the Board reviews principal risks taken by
Everbright Greentech annually. The department of risk
management submits a quarterly report on risk
management and internal control to the audit and risk
management committee.

The Board and the audit and risk management committee
have conducted reviews on the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and they considered all of the
above were adequate.
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D.

Internal Audit

Everbright Greentech has established the department of
internal audit which shall directly report to the audit and risk
management committee. Undertaking a key role to provide
assurance to the Board of proper maintenance and
operation of the internal control system by the
management, the department of internal audit prepares
internal audit report to the audit and risk management
committee and the Board for the review of the sufficiency
and effectiveness of the internal audit functionalities. The
audit shall be in collaboration with member(s) of the finance
department, member(s) of risk management department,
member(s) of internal audit department and safety
specialist(s) to ensure full coverage of the audit. Any matter
proposed in the internal audit report shall be dealt with by
the management. The audit and risk management
committee and the Board are satisfied with the sufficiency
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

Risks Management Culture

Sound communication and ongoing education are among
some of the effective means adopted by the Group to cope
with material risk and internal control issues existing.
Members of the audit and risk management committee
actively furnish specific opinions to the management in
relation to the development, operations and culture building
of the Company’s risk management system, while the
management carried out the tasks of implementing the risk
management system and promoting the risk management
culture with pragmatic efforts to strengthen the risk
management awareness of frontline staff.
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During the year, Everbright Greentech organised 2 training
sessions on risk management and internal audit hosted by
the general manager of the department of risk management
and externally engaged experts, respectively, who briefed
the project general managers, directors of construction work
and newly employed staff on how to foster awareness for
the risk management accountability regime as well as
overall risk awareness, while also investigating issues
identified in the current stage of the Company’s internal
audit and related proposals. Through this training session,
front-desk personnel gained a clear understanding of issues
faced by other projects. While reflecting on the problems of
their own projects, they also developed a sense of solidarity
by sharing experiences with the staff of other projects.
When issues similar to those discussed during training were
identified in business operations, the officers-in-charge of
some project company officers would contact and discuss
with the department of internal audit in a proactive manner
to reduce preventable risks. Our staff are involved in the
co-management of risks as working partners of the
Company.

Safe operation is of particular importance to the
environmental industry. During the year, the Group carried
out comprehensive safety inspections and investigations of
risk hazards on a quarterly basis and demanded timely
rectification, while conducting specific risk mediation and
safety education from time to time. Besides internal
investigation, the Group also perfected the Company’s
production safety system and clarified the relevant regime,
procedures and working manual. During the year, the
Company also organised multiple safety management
training sessions hosted by external experts and
experienced internal safety management personnel, who
provided in-depth explanations and analyses on the
significance of safety management, focus of management
and specific measures. The Company has set up an
environmental, safety, health and social management system
to exercise systematic control over risks relating to its
operations. For details, please refer to the section headed
“ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 49 to 51 of
this annual report.
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The Group, in the form of SOP, established and promoted
a system of standardised operation procedures to ensure
working staff serving relevant roles are fully aware of the
environmental, health and safety risks associated with the
operation process, which is the basis for the control of
environmental, health and safety risks. Experienced staff can
avoid or effectively reduce risks by simply operating in
accordance with the standardised procedures in day-to-day
work, which is beneficial to the individual staff members and
the Company’s operational risk control.

External Audit

External auditor carries out an assessment of the financial
reporting, relevant risk management procedures and the
control of the Company, and reports the issues of risks and
control identified in the process of the audit to the audit
and risk management committee.

Annual Confirmation

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as well as
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The systems take up an important role
in risk management when progressing towards business
objectives. Through the audit and risk management
committee, the Board has reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and considered that the
systems were effective and sufficient. The management has
provided confirmation as to the effectiveness of the systems
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the audit and risk
management committee and the Board.
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INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

In order to enhance transparency, integrity and accountability of
the Group and to retain a consistently high standard of corporate
governance, the Company has adopted an internal and external
whistleblowing policy. This policy applies to the employees/the
related persons (including but not limited to investors, lenders,
suppliers, customers, services providers and government, etc.) of
the Group. It is designed to provide the employees/the related
persons with confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the
Group the actual or suspected illegal activities and misconducts
in corporate financial reporting, internal control or other areas in
which the Company’s attention should be drawn and investigation
should be initiated. A well-defined whistleblowing mechanism has
been put in place for our employees and the related persons.
Reporting channel has adopted either by post addressed to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (“Principal
Office”), which is presently situated at Room 3602, 36/F., Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or 27/F.,
Building A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No.1003 Shennan Avenue,
Shenzhen 518000, China or by email (email
address: report@ebgreentech.com), details of the procedure is

Futian District,

posted on the Company’s website at https://www.ebgreentech.
com/en/about/ewp.php. During the year under review, there were
2 cases reported through the whistleblowing channels and the

reported cases were investigated and founded to be immaterial
and therefore did not require further action.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its Shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has
adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to
Shareholders through various channels in a timely manner. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all Shareholders. The
Company has also complied with the Listing Rules by posting
announcements, notices, annual report, interim report,
sustainability report and shareholders’ circular(s) on the websites
of both the Company and HKEx for the designated period. Apart
from these documents, press releases are posted on the
Company’s website to enhance its transparency. Being constantly
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains a wide
range of additional information on the Company’s business
activities. The corporate communications can be accessed by
clicking “Investor Relations” section on the home page of the

Company’s website.

In addition to publication of information, the annual general
meeting and regular project site visits arranged by the Company
provide a forum for communication between investors,
Shareholders and Directors. The annual general meeting and site
visit proceedings have been well prepared to ensure that the
Company will follow corporate governance practices and

Shareholders’ rights are preserved.

The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 21
May 2019, the Chief Executive Officer chaired the annual general
meeting and the chairman (or their delegates) of each Board
committee attended the meeting in person to ensure
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. Auditor of
the Company was available to answer any queries that

Shareholders may raise.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“EGM Requisitionists”) shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2)
requisition.

months after the deposit of such

The EGM Requisitionists can deposit the written request at the
Principal Office, which is presently situated at Room 3602, 36/F.,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The
EGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of
the EGM, and such request must be signed by all the EGM
Requisitionists, any may consist of several documents in like

form, each signed by one or more of the EGM Requisitionists.

The share registrar will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars
in the EGM Requisitionists’
from the share registrar that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in

request. Promptly after confirmation

order, the Company Secretary will arrange the Board to convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered
shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory and
if the EGM
the EGM
Requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,

regulatory requirements. On the contrary,

Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order,

an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the EGM Requisitionists’
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the EGM Requisitionists by
reason of the Board’s failure to duly convene an EGM shall be

reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. However, shareholders are requested to follow
Article 64 of the Articles of Association for including a resolution
at an EGM. The requirements and procedures are set out above.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person
shall, unless
recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for election
as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a
Member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of

other than a director retiring at a meeting,

his intention to propose such person for election and also a
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notices(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7)
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to
the date of such general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules. The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as director is posted on the Company’s
website.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations which
contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations

China Everbright Greentech Limited

Room 3602, 36/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2433 6546

Email: ir@ebgreentech.com

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there
constitutional documents of the Company.

is no change in the
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Mr. WANG Tianyi

aged 57, is a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. WANG currently serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. He is currently a part-time professor of Tsinghua
University and a Co-Director of the Center for PPP of Tsinghua
University. He is also a member of the China Council for
International Cooperation on Environment and Development, a
member of International Coalition for Green Development on the
Belt and Road Advisory Board, a vice chairman of China
Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion Association, a vice
chairman of All-China Environment Federation, a vice chairman of
Industrial and Academic Union of Ecological Environment of the
China Association for Science and Technology, a member of the
UNECE PPP Business Advisory Board and a member of China
Business Research Centre Advisory Council of National University
of Singapore. He holds a Doctorate degree in Economics, a
Master's degree in Management and a Bachelor's degree in
Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued advanced
studies at Harvard University and University of California in the
United States. Mr. WANG is the executive director and chief
executive officer and also the chairman of disclosure committee
and a member of nomination committee of China Everbright
International Limited (“CEIL”, (stock code: 0257.HK) a listed
intermediate holding company of the Company). He is also a
non-executive director and chairman of the board and also a
member of remuneration and nomination committees of China
Everbright Water Limited, CEIL’s subsidiary listed in Singapore
and Hong Kong, stock codes: U9E.SG and 1857.HK. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Dean of Shandong Academy of
Sciences. He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City of
Shandong Province. He had been the Vice President, the Dean
and Professor of the School of Economics and Management of
Yantai University of Shandong Province. Mr. WANG joined the
Board in January 2018.
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Mr. QIAN Xiaodong

aged 47, is an Executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and
a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. QIAN
currently serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries of the
Group. Prior to his position in the Company, Mr. QIAN served as
the general manager of the investment development department
of CEIL and the general manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEIL. He is also the executive director and deputy
general manager and the member of the disclosure committee of
CEIL. Mr. QIAN obtained a Bachelor's degree in Thermal
Engineering from Dalian University of Technology in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and a Master's degree in
Environment Engineering from the Southeast University in the
PRC. He has comprehensive experience in market development
of environmental protection industry, national environmental
policies and industrial trend in the PRC. As at the date of this
report, he beneficially owns 182,000 shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”), Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong. Mr.
QIAN joined the Board in October 2015.

Mr. YANG Zhiqiang

aged 59, is an Executive Director and the Vice President. Mr.
YANG currently serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries
and 1 associated company of the Group. With effect from 3
January 2019, he was appointed as a non-executive director of
Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (stock
code: 1845.HK). Mr. YANG was appointed as a non-executive
director of China Everbright Water Limited (a subsidiary of CEIL
listed in Singapore and Hong Kong, stock codes: U9E. SG and
1857.HK) from 12 December 2014 to 23 February 2017. He
served as the chief legal officer in China Everbright International
Limited. Mr. YANG obtained a Bachelor's degree from the
Medical Science Department of Beijing Medical University (1t 5%
I X&) in the PRC and a Postgraduate Diploma in Law from The
College of Law of England and Wales. He has the qualification of
an attending doctor and is a qualified lawyer in the PRC. Mr.
YANG joined the Board in October 2015.
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Mr. LO Kam Fan

aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director.
Mr. LO also serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries and 1
joint venture company of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. LO held senior positions at a number of listed companies on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, including financial
controller of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (stock code:
0152.HK), financial controller and company secretary of Eco-Tek
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8169.HK), chief financial officer and
company secretary, respectively, of Wai Chun Bio-Technology
Limited (formerly known as Wai Chun Mining Industry Group
Company Limited) (stock code: 0660.HK), Wai Chun Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1013.HK) and Sinopharm Tech
Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Vanguard You
Champion Holdings Limited and China Vanguard Group Ltd.)
(stock code: 8156.HK). Mr. LO obtained an honour diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University and a Master’s
degree in Finance from Curtin University of Technology Australia.
Mr. LO is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate of the Association of
International Accountants. He beneficially owns 150,000 shares of
the Company together with his spouse and he is deemed to be
interested in 50,000 shares of the Company through his spouse;
and also beneficially owns 281 shares of CEIL together with his
spouse and he is deemed to be interested in 5,760 shares of
CEIL through his spouse within the meaning of the SFO. Mr. LO
joined the Company in November 2015 and joined the Board in
June 2019.

Ms. GUO Ying

aged 51, is a Non-executive Director. Ms. GUO holds a
Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from Beijing Technology and
Business University. She holds titles of senior accountant and
senior auditor in the PRC. She is the general manager of internal
auditor department and risk management department of CEIL.
Ms. GUO joined the Board in January 2018.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. SONG Jian

aged 50, is a Non-executive Director. Mr. SONG holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Renmin University of China.
He joined CEIL in 2007 and currently takes a position of a
general manager of strategic development department. He is also
a director of Everbright Jinglang Greenergy and Lighting
(Shenzhen) Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CEIL. Prior
to joining CEIL, Mr. SONG had worked in China Light Industry
International Engineering Co., Ltd. Mr. SONG is deemed to be
interested in 3,000 shares of the Company through his spouse,
and he is also deemed to be interested in 7,851 shares of CEIL
through his spouse within the meaning of the SFO. Mr. SONG
joined the Board in June 2019.

Mr. CHOW Siu Lui

aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of Audit and Risk Management Committee and a member of
Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the Company. Mr.
CHOW is currently a partner of VMS Investment Group (HK) Ltd.,
an independent non-executive director of Fullshare Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0607.HK), Genertec Universal Medical Group
Company Limited (formerly known as Universal Medical Financial
& Technical Advisory Services Company Limited) (stock code:
2666.HK), Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd* (I
BRBAAEE(EB)RMHAER AT (stock code: 1635.HK),
Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
0465.HK) and China Tobacco International (HK) Company Limited
(stock code: 6055.HK), and a non-executive director of Renrui
Human Resources Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:
6919.HK), the shares of all of the above companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Global Cord Blood Corporation (listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, Symbol: CO). He was an independent non-
executive director of NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 0659.
HK) and Shi Shi Services Limited (formerly known as Heng Sheng
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8181.HK) and Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (stock code: 6833.HK), the
shares of all of the above companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was a partner in KPMG and chairman of the
Mainland Development Strategies Advisory Panel of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and a
member of its Registration and Practice Committee of the
HKICPA. Mr. CHOW was also the chairman of the audit
committee and a council member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Mr. CHOW obtained the Professional
Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is qualified as a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. CHOW joined the Board in
May 2017.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Philip TSAO

aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of Nomination and
Audit and Risk Management Committees of the Company. Mr.
TSAO is currently the founder and chief executive officer of
CHANCES Advisory Group and a non-executive director of Bank
SinoPac and SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited (both as a
subsidiary of SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on Taiwan stock exchange with stock code:
2890.TT) with effect from 1 May 2018 and 1 July 2018
respectively. He served as a consultant at Barclays Capital Asia
Limited. Prior to his current role, Mr. TSAO was a managing
director of Barclays Capital Asia Limited, an executive director of
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C., a managing director of UBS, the
president of China Development Industrial Bank (77 % 51 3% T ¥ 4R
17) (“CDIB”), an executive vice president of China Development
Financial Holding Corporation (7 # ] 2% & g% i% 2 7)) (“CDFHC’,
a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange with stock
code: 28883.TT), a director of CDFHC and CDIB (a subsidiary of
CDFHC), and a managing director of Morgan Stanley Asia.
Mr. TSAO received a Bachelor's degree in Power Mechanical
Engineering from National Tsing Hua University in Taiwan, and a
Master of Business Administration degree from National Taiwan
University in Taiwan. Mr. TSAO is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
Mr. TSAO joined the Board in May 2017.

Prof. YAN Houmin

aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
Nomination, Remuneration and Audit and Risk Management
Committees of the Company. Prof. YAN currently serves as the
chair professor of management sciences and the Dean of College
of Business at the City University of Hong Kong. Previously,
Prof. YAN served as a tenured associate professor at the School
of Management, University of Texas at Dallas. He was also the
Director of Executive M.Sc. Programme in Logistics and Supply
Chain Management at the Chinese University of Hong Kong, an
alternate director and research advisor for the Hong Kong
Research and Development Center for Logistics and Supply Chain
Management Enabling Technologies and an Executive Director for
Centre of Supply Chain Management and Logistics Optimization
at the Li & Fung Institute of Supply Chain Management, the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prof. YAN received his
Bachelor’'s degree and Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering
from the Department of Automation in Tsinghua University in the
PRC and his Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University of
Toronto in Canada. Prof. YAN joined the Board in May 2017.
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Mr. WANG Dianer

Mr. WANG is the Vice President of the Company. Mr. WANG
joined Everbright Group since November 2006. At present, he
serves as a director of EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Nanjing) Limited and the general manager of Everbright
Environmental Remediation (Jiangsu) Limited. Mr. WANG has
previously served as the deputy general manager of Everbright
Environmental Energy (Yixing) Limited, the deputy supervisor of
Jinan WTE Project, the general manager of EB Alternative Energy
(Dangshan) Limited, the project leader of the construction of
Dangshan project, the general

manager of Everbright

Environmental Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited and the general
manager of EB Photovoltaic Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited and EB
Photovoltaic Energy (Huaining) Limited. Mr. WANG completed the
legal studies program at Anhui University in the PRC and the
Power Plant and Electricity System program at Shanghai
University of Electric Power in the PRC. Mr. WANG joined the

Group in January 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Jianping

Mr. ZHANG is the Chief Investment Officer and the general
manager of its Solid Waste Management Centre of the Company.
Mr. ZHANG currently serves as a director of various subsidiaries,
1 joint venture and 1 associated company of the Company.
Before joining the Group, he was the deputy director of Suzhou
Environmental Sanitation Administration Agency. Mr. ZHANG has
served as the vice chairman of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Suzhou) Limited, the standing representative of the Nanjing
Representative Office of CEIL, the general manager of Everbright
Environmental Energy (Nanjing) Limited, the general manager of
(Suzhou) Limited, and the
general manager of Everbright Environmental Protection (Suzhou)
Solid Waste Treatment Company Limited. Mr. ZHANG graduated
from Nanjing Engineering Institute (currently known as Southeast

Everbright Environmental Energy

University), majoring in Environmental Engineering, Mr. ZHANG
joined the Group in April 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERAER

Mr. SUN Xiandong

Mr. SUN is the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. He
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology,
majoring in Thermal Energy and Power Engineering, and
completed a CEO management training programme from
Tsinghua University. Mr. SUN has been engaged in power-related
construction and power plant operation and administration for 37
years. Since joining Everbright Group in November 2006, he has
been repeatedly named [Outstanding Manager in CEIL]. He has
served as deputy general manager of Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Limited, general director at the project command
centre of Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company
Limited, deputy general manager of Everbright Environmental
Energy (Pizhou) Ltd., general manager of Everbright Greentech
Environmental Protection (Northern Anhui) Administrative Center
(Gt R#EEREFERIEEEFB L) and Everbright Greentech
Environmental Protection (Anhui) Administrative Center (¢ A4% &
RRZHEEF D). Meanwhile, he concurrently served as general
manager of various subsidiaries, namely Everbright Biomass
Energy (Lingbi) Limited of EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Xiao County) Limited and EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Fengyang) Company Limited. He currently serves as director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company and general manager of
Everbright Greentech Environmental Protection Clean Energy
Administrative Centre (Yt K& EIRIRIBZAEREIZF L), Everbright
Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company Limited and Everbright
Environmental Energy (DangShan) Limited. Mr. SUN joined the
Group in January 2016.

Mr. ZHU Fugang

Mr. ZHU is the Vice President of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, he served as president of eco-recycling sector in
CEIL, vice president of Everbright Environmental Protection (China)
Company Limited and Everbright Envirotech (China) Limited,
general manager of Everbright Environmental Energy (Nanjing)
Limited, and general manager of Everbright Environmental Testing
(Nanjing) Company Limited. Mr. ZHU holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Southeast University and is also a
senior engineer. Mr. ZHU joined the Group in September 2019.

Ms. CHOW Wing Man

Ms. CHOW is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is a
fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She has over 15 years of experience in the fields of company
secretarial and compliance. Ms. CHOW holds a Bachelor’'s
degree in Laws from the University of London and a Master’s
degree in Finance (Corporate Finance) from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Ms. CHOW joined the Group in July 2017.

104 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

RERSTE

BREER/ARTELRE - BRPEBEKNSZE
EEBNEXREXR BEANBCEOEEFE A
X -RAENFENHEER EMELEIET
F-BZETRNFT-AABCAREEE %%
REFBIERBEREFERE ] FESLKRR
BEIR (BRIN) DA BIABALTE - e XHEER (BB1) T
RIEERAEE - KRARRRER (M) BRAF
BlAERIE  ARFERREILERH LARKLIER
RAZERRLZYEED OAKEZRE - B
EREZXMBLARAKE  BEARNEDER
(BB)BRLR - ARHMBELLR(FEHR) AR
DA RAREBELERR(BE) ARAF - KA
RAIRARRZEMBRARZEERBERKREER
RRBREREEP O  SEARHELR (B BIR
RERSERRREER (BBIL) BRARBLIE - &
FER-_ZE—RF-AMAKRER -

KER L

REERRNRREARE - RIMAKXKER - RE
FREENXABERERERRBAE - KRR
(FBE)BRABEIEE  CARRERK(FE) A
R EIAE - XARRER (AR ARAFAE
3R e RIRERA (BR) BRARAKRE - K
EEREREARIREREBELEM  ARKRS
MITIZENESR - REER - NAFNLAMAR
HE-

A E A

BNERRRBZARIME - WRABTBHIAWE
RERREFHFWERTRAERGZERSE
B - WRARWENERITEREEBETIFR
o BNMARSRAKXNBEEEL BN NEFEE
TRESHBBRTEM(EXRER) - ANMARZ
T—tFLAMAKREHE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present their report and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 which are to be presented at the
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held at
Salon Il & IV, Mezzanine Floor, Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, 1

Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 19 May 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Business review of the Group during the year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2019 (if any), an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are provided from pages 16 to 44 of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out on pages 44 to 49 of this
annual report. Also, the financial risk management of the Group
can be found in note 25 to the financial statements. A discussion
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance can be
found from pages 49 to 59 of this annual report.

The Group believes that stakeholders provide valuable insights to
its business development, which support the Group in developing
sustainable and long-term strategies. Therefore, the Group invites
stakeholders to join stakeholder engagement exercises on a
regular basis, throughout the whole project life cycle from the
planning stage to the operation stage, to express their views on
issues that are relevant to the Group’s operational and
environmental performance. The Group actively pursues effective
engagement and on-going dialogue with its stakeholders through
processes that are collaborative, transparent and responsive. Key
include shareholders,

stakeholders of the Group investors,

employees, governments, local communities, business partners,

suppliers, media and investment analysts, etc. Summary of
sustainability are set out from pages 54 to 59 of this annual
report.

The aforesaid discussions form part of this “Report of the

Directors”.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERS

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(Continued)

As the PRC environmental protection service provider and
investment company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Group shall comply with the relevant rules and
regulations of both of the PRC and Hong Kong. For maintaining
the development of environmental business and investment
business in mainland China, the Group shall comply with national
policies set out by the PRC Government as mentioned in the
“ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT” section stated

in pages 49 to 51 of this report.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance in the Cayman Islands, Hong
Kong and PRC, the Listing Rules and the SFO for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate governance,
and the Group has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

For the discussion on the Company’s commitment to high
standards of corporate governance and the Board’s responsibility
for compliance with statutory obligations, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 62 to 97 of this
annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 134 and 135 of this annual report respectively.

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend of
HK8.0 cents (2018: HK6.5 cents) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2019 payable on or around Friday, 12 June
2020 to the Shareholders whose names are on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 28 May 2020. Together
with the interim dividend of HK8.0 cents (2018: HK6.0 cents) per
ordinary share paid in October 2019, the total distribution of
dividend by the Company for the year of 2019 will be HK16.0
cents (2018: HK12.5 cents) per ordinary share. The dividend
payout ratio in 2019 is 20.4%.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A financial summary of the Group for the last 5 financial years is
set out on pages 271 and 272. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$4,112,107,000. Details
of distributable reserve of the Company are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,013,000.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers
of the Group respectively during this financial year is as follows:

TERPLMER

AEEAAR RER 2 EEES R RS2 Ek
wmF -

Percentage of the Group’s total

HARSETIRBEZED L

Turnover Purchases
EHEE HiEgE
The largest customer SONYS 20%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE 41%
The largest supplier =AM 3%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHEEEE 11%
None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any &EBHHHBEZ TR BZHE A ST E (&

shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
and subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

WANG Tianyi** (Chairman)
QIAN Xiaodong* (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG Zhigiang* (Vice President)
LO Kam Fan* (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 24 June 2019)
WANG Yungang* (Vice President)
(resigned on 24 June 2019)
GUO Ying**
SONG Jian*™ (appointed on 24 June 2019)
TANG Xianging** (resigned on 24 June 2019)
CHOW Siu Lui***
Philip TSAO***
YAN Houmin***

*

Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

*x

*kk

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
LO Kam Fan and Mr. SONG Jian shall hold office only until the
forthcoming AGM and shall be eligible and offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN
Houmin will retire from office as Independent Non-executive
Directors by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 98 to 104 of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51(B) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information of Directors during the year are set out below:

— Mr. WANG Tianyi was appointed as a vice chairman of China
Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion Association,
a member of International Coalition for Green Development
on the Belt and Road Advisory Board and a vice chairman
of All-China Environment Federation on 1 January 2019, 25
April 2019 and 1 November 2019, respectively.

—  Mr. CHOW Siu Lui was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Tobacco International (HK)
Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
on 12 June 2019), an independent non-executive director of
Global Cord Blood Corporation (a company listed on The
New York Stock Exchange on 11 November 2019) and a
non-executive director of Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange on 13 December 2019), respectively.

— Mr. WANG Yungang and Mr. TANG Xianging resigned as an
Executive Director and a Non-executive Director with effect
from 24 June 2019 respectively.

—  Mr. LO Kam Fan and Mr. SONG Jian were appointed as an
Executive Director and a Non-executive Director with effect
from 24 June 2019 respectively.

— Mr. SONG Jian was appointed as a director of Everbright
Jinglang Greenergy and Lighting (Shenzhen) Limited (a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of CEIL) on 29 August 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The term of service as a Director is subject to re-election at the
next annual general meeting of the Company and retirement by
rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association.

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of two years and/or around two years.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transaction”,
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and Material Related
Party Transactions as set out in note 28 to the financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or any entities connected with the
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

NO COMPETITION BETWEEN CEIL AND THE
COMPANY

In connection with the spin-off of the Group from CEIL, the
Company implements some corporate governance measures to
confirm that the directors of both of CEIL and the Company will
be able to function and operate independently and effectively in
the best interest of the respective companies. Details of the no
competition between CEIL and the Company are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of
the listing document issued by the Company dated 21 April
2017 (“Listing Document”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. WANG
Tianyi and Mr. QIAN Xiaodong are also the executive directors of
CEIL. CEIL is a listed intermediate holding company of the
Company and is engaged in renewable energy business. CEIL
may be in competition with the Group. However, as stated in the
section “No competition between CEIL and the Company” above,
the Board is independent of the board of CEIL and none of the
above Directors can control the Board of the Company, the
Group is therefore capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from the businesses of
these entities. Furthermore, the Company implements some
corporate governance measures to ensure the independence
between CEIL and the Company. Up to the date of this annual
report, there is no change in the details previously disclosed in
the Listing Document.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the remuneration committee. The emoluments are determined
with duties, responsibilities and
performances and the results of the Group. No Director is

reference to directors’

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Directors and the Company’s chief executive who held office
at 31 December 2019 and their respective close associates had
the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries
and other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) at that date as recorded in the register of directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were

as follows:
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE BEENTETRABRFEE 2D « M
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES B NREHFERLRAXE (&)

AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Long position in shares of the Company RERATRBDZHFE

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares
Number of (note (iii)
shares held HEETRG
(shares) ke v
Name of Capacity Nature of interest  FT#IR7 8B BAOBES
Director EEHA &1 EmtE (&) (B & Gii))
QIAN Xiaodong WER Beneficial owner Personal f& A 182,000 0.0088%
ExnEBA
LO Kam Fan EiRE) Interests held jointly with another  Family interest 200,000 0.0096%
person/Interest of spouse (note (i)
BE—-ALXRFAZER BB KikEs ()
2w
SONG Jian AR Interest of spouse Family interest 3,000 0.0001%
fo 8 2 #Eea (note (ii))
R AE = (PR (i)
Notes: PR EE
0] Mr. LO beneficially owns 150,000 shares of the Company together (i) EAEAMEARBHEREREA 2R A150,0004%
with his spouse and is deemed to be interested in 50,000 shares B9 K 335 8 B AL (B AR YE# 8 2N 2 550,000 B A%
of the Company through his spouse. s o
(i) All those shares were beneficially owned by Mr. SONG’s spouse. (ii) FEZERMEAREEZRBESHS -
(i) As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares of the Company in (i) R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—H AQARBETRK
issue was 2,066,078,000 shares. 8B /2,066,078,000% °

FPEHAXGBRRERAT @M
ZE-NFFER
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE SEEZENTETRAERAE B, - 8
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES R Mm EEAHERLAR (&)
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)
Long position in shares of CEIL, a listed intermediate RAQAT LHHNZERDIBTXABEERRGD 2
holding company of the Company e

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares
Number of (note (vi))
shares held HEETRAN
(shares) BmE
Name of Capacity Nature of interest FT¥s Rz (n 20 B BB
Director 15 B (&) (BT (i)
LO Kam Fan [£ 55 &) Interests held jointly Family interest 6,041 0.0001%
with another (note (iv))
person/Interest of R R (5L (v))
spouse
BE—ALRIFEZ
T X
SONG Jian PN Interest of spouse ~ Family interest 7,851 0.0001%
[k (note (v))
Rz (P EEV)
Notes: PEE
(iv)  Mr. LO beneficially owns 281 shares of CEIL together with his  (v) & %c4 L= A (R LR B 5 A e A BER281 A%
spouse and is deemed to be interested in 5,760 shares of CEIL 19 K35 38 B R (B 3 AR VE 8 X KB BR 5,760 8% A%
through his spouse. Mz rER -
(v)  All those shares were beneficially owned by Mr. SONG’s spouse. V) FTBZERNDARLTECZEBERMES -

(v  As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares of CEIL in issue (v RZZ—AF+_A=+—08 X KERB%T
was 6,142,975,292 shares. B 17 & B £6,142,975,292% -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:
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RIFE S RIS REIZA TR EE 2 R

a5 L /g
s ()

KABRG 2 H R (&)

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Long position in shares of the Company (Continued)

Long position in ordinary
shares held and
approximate percentage
of total issued shares

Name of substantial
shareholder

China Everbright Green
Holdings Limited (“CE
Green Holdings”) (note (1))

CELL (note (1)

China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CE
Hong Kong”) (note (2))

Datten Investments Limited
(“Datten”) (note (2))

Guildford Limited (“Guildford”)
(note (2))

China Everbright Group Ltd.
(“China Everbright Group”)
(note (2))

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin”)

RN A EERARAT
(ARG EBR ) (M)

FHARER (FE(1)

FEXAKEEARAA
(MEAREED(MEEQ)

Datten Investments Limited
([Datten]) (H5E(2))

Guildford Limited ([ Guildford )
(f#E@)

FEXAKERN R
(TRE AR E ] (MEQ)

PREGREBREAAA
(MEZ))

Capacity
13

Beneficial owner

ERBAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
T D EMES

Interest of controlled

corporation
REH AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
Bt NGk

Interest of controlled
corporation
T D EMES

Interest of controlled

corporation
REH AR ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
Bt NGk

Nature of interest
BEaltE

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
NGIL: 323

Corporate interest
UNGIE-

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
NGIL: 323

Corporate interest
UNGIE-

(note (5))
PRl e Rk
MERTRNEEZ

BB

(Kt52(5))

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,461,706,369
70.75%

1,461,706,369
70.75%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,462,912,986
(note (3)) (HIZE(3))
70.81%

100,550,000
(note (4)) (Ff&F(4))
4.87%
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Long position in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) CE Green Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEIL, which is
in turn controlled 42.01% by CE Hong Kong, through its direct and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. Accordingly, CEIL and CE Hong
Kong are deemed to be interested in the 1,440,000,000 shares
held by CE Green Holdings.

(2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of CE Hong
Kong. CE Hong Kong holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of
Datten which in turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford;
(2) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright Investment &
Management Limited (“EIM”); and (3) 45% of the issued shares of
Guildford, respectively. Out of the 1,462,912,986 shares,
1,440,000,000 shares are held by CE Green Holdings and
21,706,369 shares are held by Guildford. The remaining 1,206,617
shares are held by EIM. Accordingly, China Everbright Group and
CE Hong Kong are deemed to be interested in those shares held
by CE Green Holdings, Guildford and EIM respectively.

3) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China and holds 55.67% equity interests of China
Everbright Group. It is deemed to be interested in the
1,462,912,986 shares indirectly held by China Everbright Group.

(4) Huijin is also deemed to be interested in 100,550,000 shares held
by its associated companies and a non-wholly owned subsidiary.

5) As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares of the Company in
issue was 2,066,078,000 shares.

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified of
any other interests by prescribed notices which were required to
be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements
include transactions that constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Lease of the premise

On 18 May 2019, China Everbright Greentech Management
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a new agreement with China Everbright
Environmental Group Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
CEIL, in relation to subletting certain 36th Floor, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of 3 years
commencing from 18 May 2019 to 17 May 2022 (both days
inclusive) at a monthly rent of HK$349,920 (exclusive of rates,
management fee, water, electricity, gas and other utility charges
payable to independent third parties not connected with the
Company in respect of the use of the premises during the lease
term).

Following the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16 Leases issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants with effect from 1 January 2019, the
Company recognised this transaction as an asset representing its
right to use the leased asset, regarded as an acquisition of asset
under the definition of transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(@) of
the Listing Rules. As the transaction is less than 0.1% under all
the applicable percentage ratio calculations in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, this transaction will be exempt
from disclosure requirements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Deposit and loan services

On 17 March 2017, the Company entered into the Deposit

Services Framework Agreement and the Loan Services

Framework Agreement (collectively, the

“Services Framework

Agreements) with China Everbright Group. Pursuant to the

Services Framework Agreements, China Everbright Group will,

through its associate, China Everbright Bank Company Limited

(“CE Bank”), provide deposit, loan and related services to the

Group.

(@)

Pursuant to the Deposit Services Framework Agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide
deposit services to the Group (including current and fixed
term deposit) in accordance with rules and regulations
prescribed by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/or
other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
PRC. The deposit services to be provided by CE Bank shall
be on normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
the terms available to the Group from independent third
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank amounted to
approximately HK$436,987,000. This amount was below the
annual cap of HK$500,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 which was proposed in the prospectus
published on 21 April 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Deposit and loan services (Continued)

(b)  The Loan Services Framework Agreement shall be on a non-
exclusive basis and the Company is at liberty to obtain loan
services from other third parties. Pursuant to the Loan
Services Framework Agreement, China Everbright Group
shall procure CE Bank to provide loans to the Group
(including revolving credit facility and fixed term loan) in
accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the
PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC. The loans services to be provided by CE
Bank shall be on normal commercial terms and no less
favourable than the terms available to the Group from
independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans
which do not require security over the assets of the Group)
provided by CE Bank amounted to approximately
HK$269,744,000. This amount was below the annual cap of
HK$500,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
which was proposed in the prospectus published on 21
April 2017.

The Services Framework Agreements expired on 31 December
2019 and a new deposit services master agreement and a new
loan services master agreement (collectively, the “New Services
Master Agreements”) were entered into between the Company
and China Everbright Group on 6 December 2019. Pursuant to
the New Services Master Agreements, China Everbright Group
will, through its associate, CE Bank, provide deposit and loan
services to the Group for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2020
to 31
maximum daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including

December 2022. The annual cap in respect of the
interest accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank and the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans which
do not require security over the assets of the Group) provided by
CE Bank is HK$400,000,000 for each of the three years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. Details of the above were
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 December
2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of the premises

On 18 May 2016, China Everbright Greentech Management
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”) with
China Everbright Environmental Group Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of CEIL, in relation to subletting certain 36th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
with a total gross floor area of approximately 300.9 sg.m. for a
term of 3 years commencing from 18 May 2016 to 17 May 2019
(both days inclusive) at a monthly rent of HK$307,800 (exclusive
of rates, management fee, water, electricity, gas and other utility
charges payable to independent third parties not connected with
the Company in respect of the use of the premises during the
lease term).

On 1
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Everbright Greentech Management

January 2017, Everbright Greentech Management

(Shenzhen)”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
(the “PRC Tenancy
Agreement”) with Everbright Environmental (China)
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEIL, in relation

Company, entered into an agreement

Protection

to the leasing office premises with a total gross floor area of
approximately 540.1 sg.m. for a term of 3 years commencing
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive)
at a monthly rent of RMB124,624.22 (exclusive of management
fee, water, electricity and other utility charges payable to
independent third parties not connected with the Company in

respect of the use of the premises during the lease term).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregated rent
paid or payable to China Everbright Environmental Group Limited
and Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Company Limited
under the Sub-Tenancy Agreement and the PRC Tenancy
Agreement of a total amounted to approximately HK$3,092,000.
The amount did not exceed the annual cap of HK$3,199,691 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 which was proposed in the
prospectus published on 21 April 2017.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Purchases of equipment

On 30 December 2016, Everbright Greentech Management
(Shenzhen) entered into a framework agreement (“Equipment
Purchase Framework Agreement”) with Everbright Environmental
Protection Technology Equipment (Changzhou) Company Limited
(“EB Environmental Changzhou”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEIL, in respect of the purchase of the equipment

and related services from EB Environmental Changzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the amounts payable
to EB Environmental Changzhou under the Equipment Purchase
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB29,700,000. The amount did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB100,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 which
was proposed in the prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

The Equipment Purchase Framework Agreement expired on 31
December 2019 and a new equipment purchase master
agreement was entered into between Everbright Greentech
Management (Shenzhen) and EB Environmental Changzhou on 6
December 2019 in respect of the purchase of the equipment and
related services from EB Environmental Changzhou for a term of
3 years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The annual
cap in respect of the aggregate purchases by the Group under
the new equipment purchase master agreement is
RMB124,000,000 for each of the 3 years ending 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022. Details of the above were set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2019.

Provision of design services

On 30 December 2016, Everbright Greentech Management
(Shenzhen) entered into a framework agreement (“Project Design
Services Framework Agreement”) with Jiangsu Design and
Research Institute of Energy Conservation Engineering (“Jiangsu
Design & Research Institute”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEIL, in respect of the purchase of project design services

from Jiangsu Design & Research Institute.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Provision of design services (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the amounts payable
to Jiangsu Design & Research Institute under the Project Design
Services Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB736,000. The amount did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB30,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 which
was proposed in the prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

Purchases of steam

On 6 December 2019, Everbright Biomass Energy (Sugian)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a steam purchase master agreement with EB
(Sugian) (“EB

Energy Sugian”), an indirect wholly-owned

Environmental Energy Company Limited
Environmental
subsidiary of CEIL, in respect of the purchase of steam from EB
Environmental Energy Sugian. The annual cap in respect of the
aggregate purchases of steam under the steam purchase master
agreement is RMB60,000,000 for each of the 3 years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022. Details of the above were set

out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2019.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed these
continuing connected transactions in respect of deposit and loan
services, lease of the premises, purchase of equipment and
provision of design services (collectively, the “2019 Continuing
Connected Transactions”) and confirmed that 2019 Continuing
Connected Transactions were:

° entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;
° conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are

not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they

are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

° in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the
Group’s 2019 Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance
with  Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the 2019 Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by

the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the 2019 Continuing Connected Transactions.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’

relevant income, respectively.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the

retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes. The Group’s total
contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December

2019 amounted to HK$56,875,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Board confirms
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules during the year under review.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by KPMG, who will retire and will not offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

The Board, with the recommendation from the audit and risk

management committee, has resolved to propose the
appointment of Ernst & Young as the new independent auditor of
the Company following the retirement of KPMG, subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, with effect from the
date of the AGM to hold the office as auditor until the conclusion

of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

China Everbright Greentech Limited
WANG Tianyi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYZBEARE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
GREENTECH LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Everbright Greentech Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 134 to 270 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
December 2019 and of
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then

as at 31 its consolidated financial
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

in our audit of the

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Recognition of construction revenue from service concession arrangements

BRI EETRZ 73 1) RAFE I EHEN 723

Refer to accounting policy note 1(u) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

ZEEEERTRONMEEN

The Group has entered into service concession arrangements
with local governments in Mainland China to build and operate
environmental protection projects, which include integrated
biomass utilisation and hazardous waste treatment facilities.
EEECBPENEMBF ARG FFLEETH U
EREERRER (BREVESRENANRCERERE)

Accounting for revenue from long-term service concession
arrangements under the prevailing accounting standards
requires revenue to be recognised during the construction
phase of a project, during service delivery and as a capital
return on the asset.
BERITEAERM KB RARBEFEERTE 2 W5
FEREERIBRRREHRBHEEREENE KL RER
s e

The amount of construction revenue recognised is dependent
on the Group’s estimate of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction work completed
during the year for each project.
PEHRAZBERZSEDICAR BEXEHRERBALEN
EEREBEERFATKELIZADLLME °

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
construction revenue from service concession
arrangements included the following:
BPHHERRERBESHALLRTH 2 2EWSE
ETTRNEZETEEATEE

e  evaluating the Group’s processes for applying
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and inspecting contracts for
projects which commenced construction in
the current year to assess whether these fell
within the scope of service concession
arrangements under the prevailing
accounting standards;

e TE BESEEEARTEAENERNE
Fr WEZRANFERERBEINIER MR
e U BAEBAREN FHRITEE
HRIET AN R R ERLTER R T
A

° understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls in place
to assess the determination of the
percentage of completion of construction
contracts;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

R EZEIR(E)

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

ZEHEERTRUOMEEN

Significant management judgement is required in determining
the fair value of construction services which involves making
estimates of the total construction costs and the gross profit
margin for each project. The Group engaged an independent
valuer to assist in the estimation of the fair value of
construction services.

REERERBAAER  BEREAFEHERAE  BEMGE
BEKAREEE 2EMNE - BB TIEE T h AN iR Bl 5t 2
ERB 2 ARE -

The percentage of construction work completed during the year
for each project is estimated based on surveys performed by
independent surveyors with relevant qualifications and industry
experience. Judgement is also required in estimating the
percentage of construction work completed.
FRNEEHEREIENTIBOL D REBEEHBEERE RITE
KB EREZ R SIEL MG - BFBEIRTIA
DL BV I -

We identified the recognition of construction revenue from
service concession arrangements as a key audit matter
because of the significant judgement required to be exercised in
estimating the total construction costs, gross profit margins and
the percentage of construction work completed for each project
which could be subject to management bias.
BPREERGFAKSER L2 ZERENERSBREZ
FE - DHRAFIRERARZERS  ENEREETIRTIA
DHHBIELRERHE AR EREBERRREIZE -

discussing with the independent valuer
engaged by management the methodologies
adopted in the assessment of the fair value
of construction services and assessing the
independence, experience, competence and
credentials of the independent valuer;
HEIRERBNB AT ANETR - UK
RN EEERBN AR EFRANGE
7% - AR BB AR BT - K5
BEEEE WA

inspecting the valuation reports prepared by
the independent valuer of the fair value of the

construction services and, with the
assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation

methodologies applied with reference to
industry standards and practices and the
assumptions adopted in the valuations by
benchmarking the assumptions adopted with
those of comparable companies with similar
projects;

BB ERERERB AL EREANT
fh¥RE - WERMOANEEEZKGET - A
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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R EZEIR(E)

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

ZEEEBERTRNMEEN

comparing the total budgeted construction
costs adopted in the valuations with the
costs of projects with similar capacities
completed in prior years, taking into account
the historical accuracy of such estimates,
and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias in the
preparation of total budgeted construction
costs;

BEEPRAZ BEKNAEREEAEFD
TIWRLURREE KRR TEEZSE
HEHBAMERE  RRTHRARERZENX
NERERELSFEEREERRB 2B

calculating, on a sample basis, the
construction revenue for projects based on
the percentage of completion with reference
to progress reports certified by independent
surveyors and the fair value of the
construction services based on the valuation
reports and comparing our calculations with
the revenue recorded by the Group during
the year for the selected projects; and
DEF IR EMRE 2 ERRE RIBEMGLE
BREFBHZBERBAAE RRTIES
ARG NG EIER 2 2iE W - Wil
PFtE&ERE EEERTEHEE RNFRNES
R ELL R &

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to service concessions arrangements with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B B

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, intentional

forgery, omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of

in order to design audit procedures that are
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B S

ZHEN LB ZAR B IR RAREL
ERas
RMMEBAUGARBRAERRT T FEH
REGF RIS TEBM E A RRLRG SRR
B AHHBERMNERERNLBARS - A
JEEE W (FAER) EH - Rt 258
E At B o B BASIRE 10 P 0 A Hof
AT B ESREE@MELE -

AEREERKFORE  BEFERERRIE
BEMAENETZECREERFERX —EX
B ER RO o $8 SRR AT DA iy HRAF S BE AR 51 R - i
FEARHZERIMEBNELLKRATETERES
B mRAERE KBRS VBRI AAEL 2
RTE - RIA BE A 85 AR BRI AT AR AEE K ©

ERBE[BABRER ETEZNBES - &M
BRTERHE  RETERREEER - TN

o FRIMEHENAFFRERMEME S Y
BREGFEERHERRA Z AR - Rt R
HITEZREFAREE LR - A RER
FREMEENBRZER EFRARMAERZ
A - ANMGFAIaE S R BR - A - R
HR - ERRA - SORBRARRMES 2
Bl 1tk oK Bt 2% 3R (X R 1 B B e B R BE AR IR
Az RBENRERBERERMEMNE
KRR 2 g2 o

o  THREBEZMBIAMES URATEE
ZEZERF - BEMLIEYE BEEEAEE
AR ERER

s FEEFMRASMHERNAENERME

hEFH AR RAARE BN SR -

PEAXGRBIRRARAE 131
T NFFR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B B

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continueq)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Man Ching, Derek.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 February 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
REBE&ZR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ET— A&+ -—A=+—RAILEFE

2019 2018
—Z2-NF —TN\F
(Note)
(B 5E)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue I &= 3 9,279,555 7,001,820
Direct costs and operating expenses BEERARECEER (6,478,539) (4,932,3606)
Gross profit EH 2,801,016 2,069,454
Other revenue H Yz 4 166,449 158,664
Other loss HihEE 5 (849) (601)
Administrative expenses 1THEH (490,148) (356,556)
Profit from operations KB F| 2,476,468 1,870,961
Finance costs BMisER 6(a) (376,891) (202,384)
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture Fiih—Re=&%
BF(EE) 9,890 (158)
Profit before taxation R B AT 2 F 6 2,109,467 1,668,419
Income tax FriS i 7(a) (462,362) (337,068)
Profit for the year AEERR 1,647,105 1,331,351
Attributable to: EiEBS
Equity shareholders of the Company KARERRKE 1,621,477 1,324,871
Non-controlling interests JEIE = 25,628 6,480
Profit for the year KEERF 1,647,105 1,331,351
Earnings per share BRER 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR R #E (BL) 78.48 64.12

M AEEER —Z-NF—A—BEBLETEN
EBRERE RN BIRELRNE 165 - BIFUT
E o LERERIEED - BMEEC) -

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative is not restated. See note 1(c).

F144 22708 2 MR AT REK 2 —325 °
REZBFIEMAAB SRR Z B FFBERN
Bt sE24(b) °

The notes on pages 144 to 270 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to profit for the year are set out in note
24(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEmRkEM2ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—2-nE -2 N\F
(Note)
(FfF5E)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR T T
_Profit for the year _ _________________AFER¥ 164705 1331351
Other comprehensive income for AFEEHMEEBA :
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to Higngaioss
profit or loss: BmsEE -
— Exchange differences on translation of — BERBHFEI
financial statements of entities outside BREMBRREE
Hong Kong, net of nil tax ZERZRE - HkR
=18
— Subsidiaries — WEBAE (307,063) (423,077)
— An associate — — KBt RA (2,062) (138)
— A joint venture — —REEDHE (1,295) (2,906)
e (810420) | (426,127)
Total comprehensive income AEETEBALE
for the year 1,336,685 905,230
Attributable to: BEESD
Equity shareholders of the Company A E IR R 1,315,563 900,712
Non-controlling interests FE T2 AR 4 2 21,122 4,518
Total comprehensive income AEEEHEHKBALE
for the year 1,336,685 905,230

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using & : AEBER T —NAF— A —AEREETEY

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the FEEXERE B EHREELE165 - BIFLH
comparative is not restated. See note 1(c). o HRERWESS - BIEE1(C) °

The notes on pages 144 to 270 form part of these financial $144Z 2708 2 MisF# A IEHRER 2 —85 -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB &

At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—hE+—-F=+—8H

2018
—E—N\EFE
(Note)
(FfF5E)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook i abi
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RRE 11 2,643,243 2,334,791
Interests in leasehold land held for own use #H{EERZHE
bR 11 403,987 167,263
3,047,230 2,502,054
Goodwill EES 12 149,079 =
Intangible assets mEEE 12 10,781,335 7,486,422
Interest in an associate — KSR AR 14 76,621 56,216
Interest in a joint venture —REETERED 15 61,177 57,446
Other receivables, deposits and HMEURHRIE ke Rk
prepayments SEENE L 16 602,982 425,957
Contract assets EHEE 17 3,962,637 2,852,061
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 22(b) 29,396 34,797
I 15,710,457 N
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 18 228,391 124,656
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURBRZ ~ Efth B UL
prepayments B - Le kBN
A 16 1,379,846 1,239,535
Contract assets BREE 17 3,041,149 1,562,091
Tax recoverable A 4 21 7% 18 22(a) 986 734
Pledged bank deposits EHEEIRITF K 189,847 198,968
Deposits with banks RITER 22,180 17,039
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEY 19 2,685,459 2,044,826

7,547,858 5,187,849
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—hE+—-HF=+—8H

2018
—ZT—)N\HF
(Note)
(K 5E)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B BET T BEET T
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER 20
— Secured — B 920,529 626,389
— Unsecured — A 1,101,810 288,986
2,022,339 915,375
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEATRRFR - E MR
expenses KIBERIERTEA 21 3,005,792 2,416,520
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 4,634 —
Current taxation IHARE IR 22(a) 43,771 23,622
____5076,536 3,355,517
_Netcurrentassets == "RBRER® 2471322 1832332
_Total assets less current liabilites =~ @RERABAS/ 21,181,779 15247,285
Non-current liabilities kABERE
Bank loans RITER 20
— Secured —HEHE 5,552,115 3,400,454
— Unsecured — S A 3,520,322 1,690,730
9,072,437 5,091,184
Other payables b B S 3R 21 556,845 67,004
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 8,381 —
Deferred tax liabilities R IBA & 22(b) 956,764 658,023
_..10,594,427 5,816,211
Net assets EERE 10,587,352 9,431,074
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—hE+—-F=+—8H

2018
—E—N\EFE
(Note)
(FF3E)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Capital and reserves BAR#E 24
Share capital [N 1,608,029 1,608,029
Other reserves Hith {5 8,738,190 7,730,823

Total equity attributable to equity AR EEERREN

shareholders of the Company iR 10,346,219 9,338,852
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR HE 2 241,133 92,222
Total equity B 10,587,352 9,431,074

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative is not restated. See note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 February 2020

QIAN Xiaodong
BER

Director

B=%

The notes on pages 144 to 270 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREAER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A&+ -—A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
X (i
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve fund profits Total interests  Total equity
R E 5 G EEe R B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  A¥Tn A%t B%Tn  B%Tr  BETR  BETR %I

Balance at 1 January 2018 R=E-N§-A-A
A3 1,608,029 4,923,446 (14,781) 119,158 2,112,200 8,748,052 17,994 8,766,046
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-\EEREE:
Profit for the year AEERF = = = - 1,324,871 1,324,871 6,480 1,331,351
Other comprehensive income HE2EMA = - (424,159 = - (424,159 (1,962 (426,121)
Total comprehensive income EONCE = - (4241159 - 1,324,871 900,712 4518 905,230
Capital contributions received by non-wholly F2ERBARAR
owned subsidiaries from non-controlling FERERNRAGEZ
interests HEH® 27 - - - - - - 69,710 69,710
2017 final dividend paid ERZE—tFERBHRE  24()fi) - (185947 = = - (185947) - (185947
2018 interim dividend paid ERZZ-\FEPHBEE 240 = (123,965) - - - (123,965) - (123,965)
Transfer to reserve fund ERZHES = = = 53,433 (53,433) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=B
=t-Beis 1,608,029 4,613,534 (438,940) 172,591 3,383,638 9,338,852 92,222 9,431,074
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ET— A&+ -—A=+—RAILEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AAFAERRRER

Share Share
capital  premium
BE  RAEE

Exchange
reserve

EXfRfE

Other
reserve

Rftfifa

Reserve
fund

Retained
profits
REEF
(Note)

HK$'000

Total

Non-
controlling Total
interests

FER B

equity
BRAE

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETr BETr BETr B%Tr  B%Tr  B%Tr  B%Tn  B%Tn  B%Tx
Balance at 1 January 2019 R=B-AE-A-AH
2t 1,608,029 4,613,534 (438,940) - 172,591 3,383,638 9,338,852 92,222 9,431,074
Changes in equity for 2019: ZE-NEERSD:
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - — 1621477 1621477 25628 1,647,105
Other comprehensive income Eip2EEA - - (305,914) - - - (305914 (4,506)  (310,420)
Total comprehensive income 2HMALE - - (305,914) - - 1621477 1,315,563 21,122 1,336,685
Capital contributions received by F2EMBLAR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries FEREEURFAE 2
from non-controlling interests HER - - - - - - - 96,329 96,329
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - - - - 55,347 55,347
Acquisition of non-controlling WEE R
interests 27 - - - s - - B615) (23887 (32502
2018 final dividend paid ERZZ-NEERBBE  24(0)(i) - (134,295) - - - - (134,205) - (134,295)
2019 interim dividend paid REZS-NEETHRE 240 - (165,286) - - - - (165,286) - (165,:286)
Transfer to reserve fund EEDGEES - - - - 93,291 (93,291) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=Z-7F+=A
St-AzEH 1608020 4313053  (744854)  (8615) 265882 4,011,824 10346219 241,133 10,567,352

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 144 to 270 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FEHTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—B-nE —E-N\F
(Note)
(FF5E)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E BT T ok
Operating activities RESEE
Profit before taxation R 54 A0 2 A 2,109,467 1,668,419
Adjustments for: KRR
Depreciation e 6(c) 144,672 117,483
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 6(c) 245,109 168,664
Amortisation of interests in leasehold BEEACHEE T
land held for own use 7 2 5 6(c) - 4,277
Finance costs MBER 6(a) 376,891 202,384
Interest income FEHA 4 (16,145) (25,910)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE  BEX
and equipment B2 FEE 5 849 601
Share of (profit)/loss of a joint venture FiiE—xRea&hE
(&F),/ &8 (9,890) 158
Effect of foreign exchange rates HNPEDE R B E) 2 B
changes 8,486 (27,519)
Changes in working capital: BEEECEE
Increase in inventories e (94,050) (18,576)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEUBR SR - EfibjE
deposits and prepayments WHIE - BZe Rk
T FRIA L AN (571,420) (759,186)
Increase in contract assets EHEELN (2,703,573) (1,993,379)
Increase in creditors, other payables and FERTBRER « H M E{T
accrued expenses HIBEREGEA
2N 525,177 472,248
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBREL
operations (BA)z8RE 15,573 (190,336)
Interest received B U F B 16,145 25,910
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) income B ftHZE AR LFEH
tax paid (&) B (169,438) (76,450)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEMBAZES
FE (137,720) (240,876)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of property, plant

REEH

2019
e

HK$°000
BET T

2018
—F-)N\F

(Note)
i)
HK$’000
BT T

14 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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and equipment and interests in ARIFEBRZHEE
leasehold land held for own use TR 2 R (708,300) (447,582)
Payment for additions of intangible assets B & E E 2 K (3,291,679) (2,492,736)
Payment for capital contribution to an AE—REE AR Z
associate BN (22,467) (56,354)
Payment for capital contribution to a joint AE—REEDRFEZ
venture (B - (8,669)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEMEKE
and equipment FriS 3018 986 705
Increase in non-current portion of JEBNEAER 5 TR AT FRIE
prepayments 0 - (52,210)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash KB AR
acquired R FTEEIR S 26 (252,295) —
(Increase)/decrease in deposits with banks  $R1TEZ (3L 1), 5 (5,545) 687,199
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMBAZREE
HE (4,279,300) (2,369,647)
Financing activities AEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FILIRITE TS IE 6,308,574 3,243,972
Repayment of bank loans EEBRITER (1,035,921) (506,052)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank EEAEBITFERORD
deposits (3% ) 4,409 (4,782)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B A A 2 (32,502) =
Increase in amounts due from fellow i EES I EMAGIE S
subsidiaries 0 (25,878) (3,952)
Capital contributions received by non-wholly — 3EZ& & fff & 2 &) #¢
owned subsidiaries from non-controlling FE 12 A% 2 LB T 1S
interests ZHERE 96,329 69,710
Increase in amount due to non-controlling & < 3F 122 B 4 2 Fk 1B
interests En 17,513 =
Increase in amount due to intermediate FE A AR R R AR 2 B FRIE
holding company 30 469,120 —
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Tt FAR AR E
Company 3= 24(p) (299,581) (309,912)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREZER
i) (2,781) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERS ZFE
Eiba) (605) -
Other interest paid 2R E A A B (400,290) (213,091)
Net cash generated from financing METEMEEZES
activities R 5,098,387 2,275,893



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GFERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—NEF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
(Note)
(B =)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T ok e
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBREEEY
cash equivalents #mCRd) B 681,367 (334,630)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—BA—HBzZzEEK
1 January RELEY 2,044,826 2,404,175
Effect of foreign exchange rates NEERESFH L
changes (40,734) (24,719)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZB=+—-H2
31 December RERBLEEY 19 2,685,459 2,044,826

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using i3t : KAEBER T — NG — B — AFEALETEN

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the EEXEREBMISHREERNE 165 - RIFU A
comparative is not restated. See note 1(c). o ERERWESS - BIEE1(C) °

The notes on pages 144 to 270 form part of these financial $144 22708 2 KisH#K A IERER 2 —35 °
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

144

R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
in these financial

accounting periods reflected

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the vyear
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in an associate and
a joint venture. All values in the financial statements
are rounded to nearest thousand, unless otherwise

indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

1

146

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4,
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases — incentives, and
HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires a
lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
and leases of low-value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess the
effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1 January 2019. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined
by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019. For contracts entered into before 1
January 2019, the Group has used the
transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16
and contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17.
required to capitalise all leases when it is the

Instead, the Group is

lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt. As far as the Group is
concerned, these newly capitalised leases are
primarily in

relation to property, plant and

equipment as disclosed in note 29(b). For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee

accounting, see note 1(i)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
January 2019), the Group determined the length
of the remaining lease terms and measured the
lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1
January 2019. The weighted average of the
incremental borrowing rates used for
determination of the present value of the

remaining lease payments was 4.2%.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption and
practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of
the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12
months from the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term
ends on or before 31 December 2019;
and

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a
similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar
economic environment).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB E R
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERGHEBEE)
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BFFBX%EH (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB B HREERE 165 [ HE ]
(%)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. RHEABHEERBEME

(Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as disclosed in note 29(b)
December 2018 to the opening
balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1

as at 31

January 2019:

()

TR H5 M EE20(0) BT B
R=Z-NFt=A=+-A
MELEERERR —F N
F-A-ARROHEEEEZ
VB

HK$’'000
BT

Operating lease commitments at RZE-NF+H=+—~1
31 December 2018 A ST B AR 17,206
Less: commitments relating to leases B BAERREREE
exempt from capitalisation: R
— short-term leases and other leases — EHHEERBTHEHR
with remaining lease term —E-hEF+=A
ending on or before 31 =+ — B ZAIE RN
December 2019 HEmiE (5,076)
— leases of low-value assets - KEEEENHE (1,012)
11,118
Less: total future interest expenses W RRFEZHAER (3,148)
Total lease liabilities recognised at \ZE—NF—A—HEERH
1 January 2019 HEREAR 7,970
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases RZE-—NEFE+ZA=+—
previously classified as operating leases have = 5‘?: 2l *Eﬁ?%%ﬁfﬂ’ﬁrﬁ
been recognised at an amount equal to the EVHEAERAREED RS
amount recognised for the remaining lease RHTHEAEE ®R E’J%%E
liabilities at 31 December 2018. TR o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
“Property, plant and equipment” (except for
leasehold land included in “Interests in leasehold
land held for own use” as mentioned below) and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position. So far as the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
interests in leasehold land held for own use
previously classified as under operating leases is
concerned, the Group is not required to make
any adjustments at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, other than changing the caption
for the balance. These amounts are included
within “Interests in leasehold land held for own

use.

There is no impact on the opening balance of
the Group’s equity as at 1 January 2019 on the
initial application of HKFRS 16.

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of

balance of the lease

the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a positive impact on the reported
profit from operations in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been

applied during the year.

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element (see note 19(b)).
These elements are classified as financing cash
outflows, similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17
were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating leases
under HKAS 17.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
notes 1(0) or (p) depending on the nature of the

liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
losses (see note 1(j)(iii),
investment is classified as held for sale.

impairment unless the
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any

adjusted for the post acquisition change

impairment loss relating to the investment (see note
1()(ii)). the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results

Any acquisition-date excess over cost,

of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s other
in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income is recognised

comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
in the

form part of the Group’s net investment

associate or the joint venture.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate and
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s

unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment

interest in the investee, except where

of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity

interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

assets and

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business

is stated at cost less accumulated
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is

tested annually for impairment (see note 1(j)liii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f)

(9)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)(iii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
— Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, from 20
to 50 years after the date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the
remaining term of the
lease, if shorter

— Other properties leased 3 to 22 years
for own use carried at

cost

— Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles, electronic 3 to 12 years
equipment and others

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Integrated biomass utilisation 30 years
project operating rights

— Hazardous and solid waste 20 to 30 years
treatment project operating

rights
— Licences 6 to 10 years
—  Technologies 8 years
—  Backlog contracts 2 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for

a period of time in exchange for

consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the

economic benefits from that use.

()  As a lessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January
2019

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

() As a lessee (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(g) and

1()(ii)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

() As a lessee (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in

“property, plant and equipment” and

“interests in leasehold land held for own

" lease liabilities

use” and presents

separately in the statement of financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

() As a lessee (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the
Group classified leases as finance leases if
the leases transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
was more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they were incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 1(m)).

Financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls of trade and other
receivables and contract assets are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
i Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the

items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic

conditions at the reporting date.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or
in a financial

expected significant
deterioration instrument’s

external or internal credit rating (if

available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic or legal

environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status and credit risk ratings.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to

reflect changes in the financial instrument’'s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a

loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount

less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B35 B AR MY AR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired
includes the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised within creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses at fair value, which is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or to
rate differentials,
rates charged by

guarantee is made available with the estimated

interest by comparing the

actual lenders when the
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount

initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees

issued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the
financial guarantees are determined to be higher
than the amount carried in creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses in respect of
(i.e.

recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

the guarantees the amount initially

To determine ECLs,
changes in the risk of default of the specified

the Group considers

debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued, in
which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in note 1())(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to

instrument that is guaranteed,
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee, the
specified debtor or any other party. The amount
is then discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no

longer exists or may have

decreased:

— property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land;
— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and
— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is

estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1

172

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are first allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset wil not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise biomass fuel, spare parts
and consumables used in the repairs and
maintenance, are carried at cost less provision for
obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula. When inventories are
consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the
design. The accounting policy for contract revenue is
When the outcome of a
reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by

set out in note 1(u)().
construction contract can be estimated

reference to the stage of completion of the contract at
the end of the reporting period. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, loss

the expected is recognised as an

expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are accounted for in accordance with
note 1(m).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
(see note 1(u)
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the

recognises revenue before being

payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1()(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has

become unconditional (see note 1(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised

(see note 1(n)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

(n)

(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note

1(U)(iv)).

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset (see note 1(m)).

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for credit losses (see note 1()
(), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated

at cost less allowance for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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176

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at

fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see

note 1(x)).

Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1()(ii), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known

financial institutions, and short-term, highly
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(s)

Employee benefits

0] Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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178

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the
in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

foreseeable future, or

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued

separately under the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1

182

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and
expenses are recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract based on the latest available
information.

The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveyors of work performed. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An
expected

immediately in profit or loss.

loss on a contract is recognised

Revenue from service concession arrangement

Revenue relating to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed, consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy on recognising revenue from
construction contracts T(u)(i).
Operation or service revenue is recognised in the
period in which services are provided by the

Group. When the Group provides more than one

(see note

service in a service concession arrangement the
consideration received is allocated by reference
to the
delivered.

relative fair values of the services

Revenue from operation services

Revenue from operation services are recognised
when the related services are rendered.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(iv)  Finance income

Finance income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised initially as deferred income and
amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Repairs and maintenance

Expenditures on major overhaul, repairs and

maintenance are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(x)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Consolidated statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRMEE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it
management personnel services to the

is a part, provides key

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments,

and the amounts of each

segment item reported in financial statements, are

identified from the financial

information provided

regularly to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of allocating resources

to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following

accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”)
and Build-Operate-Own (“BOQO”)

respect of its projects.

arrangements in

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements
and certain BOO arrangements are service concession
HK(IFRIC)
because the local government controls and regulates

arrangements under Interpretation 12,
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT arrangements, upon expiry of
concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to
be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is
used in the service concession arrangements for its

entire or substantial useful life.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 25 contains information about the assumptions

and their risk factors relating to valuation of financial

instruments.

Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

()

(i)

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1() and 1(u)(),
revenue and profit recognition on an
incompleted project is dependent on estimating
the final outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group,
the Group makes estimates of the point at
which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result,
until this point is reached, the “Service
concession assets” as disclosed in note 17 will
not include profit which the Group may
eventually realise from the work to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of revenue or
costs may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in
future years as an adjustment to the amounts

recorded to date.

Credit losses from receivables

The Group estimates credit losses based on the

ageing of the receivables, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical observed default rates.
If the financial conditions of customers were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher

than estimated.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(i) Impairment losses of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values
of property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use, intangible
assets, goodwill and interests in the associate
and joint venture may not be recoverable, these
assets may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be
accordance with HKAS 36,

assets. The carrying amounts of these assets

recognised in
Impairment of

are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to
estimate precisely fair values because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.

sy

(b)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgment on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
tax assets are

Deferred recognised for

temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management’s
judgment is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management reassess
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Additional

recognised if it becomes probable that future

deferred tax assets are

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
integrated biomass utilisation project operation
(biomass direct combustion power generation projects,
biomass heat supply project, biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration projects, waste-to-energy projects
and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects),
hazardous and solid waste treatment project operation
(hazardous waste landfill projects, hazardous waste
incineration projects and physicochemical and

resources recycling projects), environmental
remediation project operation and solar energy and
wind power project operation (solar energy projects

and wind power projects).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% 3R R I o
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WamkoHHEHmE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (@) Wz (&)
() Disaggregation of revenue 0 YzmE D

Revenue represents the revenue from WasERERE W= - £EWE
construction services, revenue from integrated RAEFAEE - EEREER
biomass utilisation project, hazardous and solid EIEB  RIRBEERE MALRK
waste treatment project, environmental RERREEREZREKE
remediation project and solar energy and wind R A -
power project operation services and finance
income.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ERBEESNE P & KK E
customers by service lines is as follows: m

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Revenue from contracts with EBMEREERFE1S
customers within the scope KEBANEEFEN
by HKFRS 15 Uk 2%
Disaggregation by service lines ZRBRE S
— Revenue from integrated —EYEREFNAEAE
biomass utilisation project B RB s
construction services 4,050,945 3,763,446
— Revenue from hazardous and —fEREREREREIEE
solid waste treatment project i AR S W
construction services 868,814 363,994
— Revenue from integrated —EYMEREFNAEA
biomass utilisation project BB
operation services 3,032,982 1,967,199
— Revenue from hazardous and —fEREREREREIEE
solid waste treatment project B 2 RS W a
operation services 640,767 409,146
— Revenue from environmental —RIBBEEERES
remediation project operation e 75 s 2
services 287,296 117,672
— Revenue from solar energy and — X ABEEREEER
wind power project operation B 2 RS W 2
services 204,220 239,515
— Finance income L 0N 194,531 140,848

9,279,555 7,001,820
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEkHEHE (&)

(Continueqd)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (48)
() Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) ) Wz=d 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has transactions with one (2018: one)
local government authority in the PRC which
individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. The aggregated revenues from this
PRC local government authorities during the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK$1,870,814,000 (2018: HK$1,510,529,000).

The aggregated revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services and
finance income derived from local government
authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$8,269,856,000 for year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$6,492,439,000). The
revenue arose from all the four business
segments is set out in note 3(b). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 25(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date

The aggregated amounts of transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts

HE-_FT-—NEF+=A=4—
HIEFE  AEBE—E(ZZ2
—\F  — (@) P B E BT
BETRS  BEXZEBN
AREBWZRI10%U F - HEZ
E-NF+_A=+—HLHF
B KRB #%FEE H BT #
Mol = BB R B K
1,870,814,000 L (=Z & — )\
& 1 H¥1,510,529,0007T) °

HEZZ—NF+=ZA=+—
BIEFE  REFRE KA
BEANBERS WS BER
s M ISR A B A A
8,269,856,0007T (=& — )\
F : 75%6,492,439,0007T) ° 3K
BZENEELDBHRZSH
RHIFES(D) » ZEBRFEENE
ERBERFHIBHNHE25() °

R & H BB 5P & HIE
4 BE H & A HEBASRAI YW 22

RFERR PEREAEER
EAHNBETRGBERHETINR
SERBEENT

at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2019 2018

—E—hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Expected to be recognised within  FEit —FRNIER ALK

one year 10,655,156 9,090,012
Expected to be recognised after BEr—FRERAR
one year 221,141,703 183,467,323

231,796,859 192,557,335
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

(i)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date (Continued)

The amounts represent revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from the construction
services and operation services in connection
with the Group’s environmental protection
projects. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future based on the percentage of
completion of the construction, in the case of
construction service revenue, and when the
services are rendered, in case of operation

service revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 such that the
above information does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to
when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the environmental protection
service contracts that had an original expected

duration of one year or less.

3
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by segments, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following four reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form

the following reportable segments.

Integrated biomass utilisation project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the construction
and operation of biomass direct combustion power
generation projects, biomass heat supply projects,
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects,
waste-to-energy projects and integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation services
as well as finance income.

Hazardous and solid waste treatment project
construction and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of hazardous waste
landfill projects, hazardous waste incineration projects
and physicochemical and resources recycling projects
to generate revenue from construction services,
revenue from operation services as well as finance
income.

Environmental remediation project operation: this
segment engages in the operation of environmental
remediation projects covering restoration of industrial
contaminated sites, contaminated farmland, mines and
landfills, treatment of industrial gas emission,
integrated treatment of oil sludge, treatment of river/
lake sediments and industrial sludge, construction and
operation of wetland parks, environmental stewardship
services and anti-seepage at landfill sites to generate

revenue from operation services.
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Solar energy and wind power project operation: this
segment engages in the operation of solar energy
projects and wind power projects to generate revenue
from operation services.

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in an
associate and a joint venture, deferred tax
assets and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current
taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, lease
liabilities, other payables and accrued expenses
attributable to the activities of the individual
segments and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, with the exception of
intercompany payables and other corporate
liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 36 R % M &
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEEkpEEHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHEHE (&)
()  Segment results, assets and liabilities () DE¥E EERBEE)
(Continued)
In addition to receiving segment information BIEIR{E A FEBITDAZ 5 &
concerning EBITDA, management is provided BN EEENEREE B
with segment information concerning revenue, W BEOMEEERZEERN
interest expenses from borrowings managed BRI RSN ESREFEA
directly by the segments, depreciation and ERBDHBEECINE - #iE
amortisation and additions to non-current RIBE 7 DEER o
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.
Revenue from contracts with customers by HE_Z-NLEFERZZE—N\F
timing of revenue recognition, as well as TZA=+—RHLTFE £&%
information regarding the Group’s reportable B 5t &R D R Ko ERIB S
segments as provided to the Group’s most mAAEEGEEEERMEZ
senior executive management for the purposes BN EERRHEESHNEEE
of resource allocation and assessment of B EARBTREDHER
segment performance for the years ended 31 N

December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

Integrated biomass Hazardous and solid
utilisation project  waste treatment project Environmental Solar energy and wind
construction and construction and remediation project power project
operation operation operation operation
ENESAARER RERERERER BAEBEER AREERAERA
BEREE Eg BE @zt
2019 018 8 2019 2018 2019 2019
Z8-hE \& Z8-1§ = 8- % —2-hE

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 0 HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BMTr AE¥Tn ERTn  ERTn  BRTR  ENTr BMTR B%Tn  BMTR

Revenue from external customers and BERARZNRENRERSS

reportable segment revenue BHEREFHE 27 Bl
recognised over ime 7200316 5862083 1517728 782350 267,206 117672 204220 289515 9219555 7,001,820
Reportable segment proft (EBITDA) AT 25 BRF(EBTDA 2102043 1631932 51,82 370246 55454 24515 185683 205605 8005004 2250008
Interest income from bank deposits BAEFHSMA 4,535 3,254 2,068 1918 403 50 322 478 7,328 5,700
Finance costs HEER u7800 150172 22958 21188 7,759 - ;084 24965 300610 19635
Depreciation and amortisation FERES 0040 176098 64772 42856 13,165 62 66557 69622 385434 288838
Additions to property, plant and HENE BERRME
equipment, interests in leasehold BeaRzRE RS
Jand held for own use, intangiole BVEAE BEREMTE
assets, goodwil and non-current p£3 0
portion of prepayments 3009030 2549360 1648153 794912 197,095 51419 91 3707 4885198 3399398
Additions to non-current portion of BERNEEZFNBES
contract assets 1,445,068 1,400,506 8,142 9210 - = - — 1453210 1,409,716
Reportable segment assets AFREIHBEE 18899801 13616644 4247704 2629636 503712 233334 1302854 1417251 24,954,161 17,896,865
Reportable segment liablties BFREZHHBAR 9430879 6514660 12382686 850,052 337,821 106240 477,163 535853 11628549 8015805
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using Mt REEBFRLBETBIE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this BRERB B EHREER
approach, the comparative information is not F165% o BIFU 70X » LB
restated. See note 1(c). BRI ST o BHTE(C)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g e
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 38 WmkpEias (&)
(Continueqd)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEwE (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) ABTHREDH W BF B
profit, assets and liabilities EREBEZHER

2018
—E—)\F

(Note)
(B 5E)
$°000
BEE T T

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and

W 2

AT =R W2 W R

consolidated revenue R W 9,279,555 7,001,820
Profit 27
Reportable segment profit (EBITDA) HKEANEEINATFE 2

derived from the Group’s external BATRED I 2 BT

customers (EBITDA) 3,005,904 2,252,298
Depreciation and amortisation e Y (389,781) (290,424)
Finance costs B %5 & A (376,891) (202,384)
Unallocated head office and ROMBRARIRIEZE

corporate income A 13,522 25,678
Unallocated head office and AOEBRNF MDD E

corporate expenses -3 (143,287) (116,749)
Consolidated profit before taxation AREBRELRT & F 2,109,467 1,668,419
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BAYREDIZEE 24,954,161 17,895,865
Unallocated head office and APBLBRRNB R

corporate assets BE 1,304,154 706,937
Consolidated total assets REBERR 26,258,315 18,602,802
Liabilities =i
Reportable segment liabilities BATmENHc8E 11,628,549 8,015,805
Unallocated head office and RAOMBRRIRIEE

corporate liabilities BE 4,042,414 1,155,923
Consolidated total liabilities e BREE 15,670,963 9,171,728

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See note 1(c).

Bt - AEEBEEAEERIEWE
BREREBMGREER
F165% - RIFUL T E - LW
ERTEED - RIEE(C) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (a) the Group’s
the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, interests

revenue from external customers; (b)

in leasehold land held for own use and
intangible assets; and (c) the Group’s
non-current portion of other receivables,

deposits and prepayments and non-current
portion of contract assets. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on
the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land held for own use, and the
location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, intangible assets and

contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 38 WmkpEias (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEHE (&)
(i) Geographic information (Continued) (i) HyfE E# (&)

2019 2018
—F-hF —E-NE
(Note)
(B 3E)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T ke
Revenue from external REIMREFE KNS
customers
PRC F 9,273,442 6,994,319
Germany = 6,113 7,501
9,279,555 7,001,820
Property, plant and equipment, #%¥ - BERRE -
interests in leasehold land BEEBRANEE L
held for own use and EEUREREE
intangible assets
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TBIERS) 13,784,710 9,945,161
Hong Kong BB 6,245 1,840
Germany = 37,610 41,475
13,828,565 9,988,476
Non-current portion of other HtbEWRE - BER
receivables, deposits and ENREREGHNEE
prepayments and contract Z IFENHAER
assets
PRC s 4,565,619 3,278,018
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using M : AEEDFE RSB ERE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this ERN GRS LR R
approach, the comparative information is not F165% o BB X+ LB
restated. See note 1(c). ERWEET - RWFE1(C) °
FEEXGBRERERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

4

5

200

OTHER REVENUE

H A W 2

2019 2018

—E-hHF —Z=—)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Interest income F B U A 16,145 25,910
Government grants* BB &~ 70,805 63,266
Value-added tax refunds** EEB R 63,709 59,609
Others EHAh 15,790 9,879
166,449 158,664

*x

Government grants of HK$67,648,000 (2018: HK$58,584,000)
were granted during the year ended 31 December 2019 to
subsidise certain integrated biomass utilisation and
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects of the Group
in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants. There
is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
grants in the future. The remaining amounts represent
amortisation of deferred income as set out in note 21.

The Group was entitled PRC value-added tax refunds of
HK$63,709,000 (2018: HK$59,609,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2019. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of such tax refunds. There is no assurance that the Group
will continue to receive such tax refunds in the future.

OTHER LOSS

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

5

*x

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHILFE "
N £ [ JE B BT 4 B & 5 16 67,648,000 7T
(ZZF—)\4& : B1£58,584,0007T) * A&
BAREERPENE TEMELAFIAR
EELEERERE - WHZS@EBS
R ER G R E M A EE - BNRE
ANEBARGIREESZSHDE - &%
& BB R MY RE21 BT S A0 IR AT U A 5 o

HE-—ZT—hE+-_A=+—HILtEE"
AEBERESTHEERRBE AL
63,709,000 (=T — \F : B
59,609,0007T) » Y2 B 7% iR B 4 4 oK i
R R H b sk AR 2218 - MR EBAREE
ARG MERSZSER -

H Al &5 18

2018
—E-N\%&
HK$’000
BT T

2019

—F-hF
HK$°000
BET T

HEWE  BERZE
ZFE R

849 601
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 ERBLATE A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELATAF B MR (GEA) ¢

2018
—N\F
(Note)
(B 5E)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
(a) Finance costs (a) BIEEH
Interest on bank loans WITERZFE 388,735 213,091
Interest on amount due to an intermediate FE — R AR
holding company RNRIFRIEZF B 11,555 —
Interest on lease liabilities HERBZHE 605 —
400,895 213,091
Less: interest expenses capitalised into W REREIRE
construction in progress* & A4 2 A
BHRX* (24,004) (10,707)
376,891 202,384
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified e AREBEFEALETENEIERERADE
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the B RS RS RIS 165E o IRIBIL T )E » LR
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). BERWESET] - BHE10c)°
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.66% * REBEE-_ZE—hF+_A=+—8HLtHF
to 5.39% (2018: 4.66% to 5.15%) per annum during the JQ{EQW$E&4%%i5%%L—§
year ended 31 December 2019. — N\ 4.66%%E5.15%) B F F| K&K

{E e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution

(b)

BIA

TE B FORIRET 8

HK$°000
BET T

retirement plan HR 56,875 43,071
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEAM
2 A 533,603 403,159
590,478 446,230
(c) Other items (c) HEth1EH
Amortisation X
— interests in leasehold land held for own —FEERzZHEE
use TR - 4,277
— intangible assets —mVEE 245,109 168,664
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and equipment* —BEME HFE
&Y 134,183 117,483
— right-of-use assets* —(ERAEEE" 10,489 -
Credit loss on debtors JE W BR K B & 18 2,000 1,939
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss &5 (), iR
EEE (907) 1,453
Auditors’ remuneration A GRS
— audit services — ZHRT 2,990 2,850
Total minimum lease payments for leases NAERBEESSE
previously classified as operating leases HERIE17HED
under HKAS 17* RIEEHER
HECKERE
eSS, - 9,520
Expense relating to short-term leases and EHREAE ST
other leases with remaining lease term BHEBR=Z
ended on or before 31 December 2019 —nF+=AH
not included in the measurement of =+—Hz%ZAH
lease liabilities SEAEMAET AT
EaEENA
th 70 & & 7 2 8,248 —
* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified * AEBCFRLEITBREIERERES

MBMEERIE165E - WRER T A
F-A—BNENES  UEDBERE
BREGBENE TR BEREEEENE
EHRENEREEE -R_F—NF—H
—HERERAEAEEER  AREER
FMEABEREREEENE  LEHE
EREMAAERERBREBEEEHE
EWMEERS 2B - REWTTE - R
ERWEET - RHFEE1(C)

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating
to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a leasee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).
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2

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 &R
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)
profit or loss represents:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o R M
SR@mERZMER
mERBERARZBIERRE !

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok i abi
Current tax — AHBHE —
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBINEH
Provision for the year NFE R - —
Current tax — AHBE —
PRC Income Tax BT S Bt
Provision for the year KEFF R 192,493 91,503
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (5,923) (2,031)
186,570 89,472
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ERE o EEREMD
differences 275,792 247,596
462,362 337,068

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 as the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong did not earn any income
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain
PRC subsidiaries are subject to tax concessions under
the relevant tax rules and regulations.

HRAKRBEZEEXBEREBE_F
“NERZFT-N\F+-A=+—H
LFFEYERNEMEREBNEHR
ZWN Rt RS B BN B IS R R
NRB B S WA A -

B E TS 2 TR IR IR AR B & N A o B
BITEERE2%E - FR - RIT
BREABRBEGLER  ETHENE
NCIERCE Rl X
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R % MY &
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 REBEmRIZFEN(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REARRTEZHEIHES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FTEFZHER

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Profit before taxation B 753 il &2 A 2,109,467 1,668,419
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ERMABAE I AR
calculated at the rates applicable to Z BB R
profits in the tax jurisdictions BRI RFFE 2
concerned BENE 535,298 418,110
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIR S H 2 Fi IR
2 26,912 19,943
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERTUA 2 T ITH & (6,370) (7,015)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AZEAHERIEEE 2
concession in the PRC BNz MIERE (108,670) (105,400)
Tax effect of withholding tax on FEHE R R RDIK
undistributed profits of PRC Az BB 2 FHIE
subsidiaries 2 21,115 13,461
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (5,923) (2,031)
Actual tax expense ERHIES H 462,362 337,068
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R MY &
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 =EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing RE LR - B R EHEN E383(1) K &
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies NR(WEESFIRER) BOIF2IHEE 2
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEMeT -
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2019

fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R BiRitE  —B-hE

Eshe BNAE RiEEA % @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BRI BRI BT

Executive directors HITES

QIAN Xiaodong BER - 2,023 3,120 219 5422
YANG Zhigiang 50 - 1,460 1,650 289 3,399
LO Kam Fan (note () EHE (M) - 1,450 1,600 285 3,335
WANG Yungang (note (i) TR (K &) - 438 - 206 644
Non-executive directors FHTES

WANG Tianyi TXE - - - - -
GUO Ying Ef - - - - -
SONG Jian (note (i) A (B3 (i) - - - - -
TANG Xiancing (note (iv) EEUE) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTEES

CHOW Siu Lui PG 240 55 - - 295
Philip TSAO ELE 240 55 - - 295
YAN Houmin BER 240 55 - - 295

720 5,536 6,370 1,059 13,685
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEME (&)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme

fees in kind bonuses  contributions
54 2R RINGHE
2k ENHE RETta 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BETT

Executive directors HiTES
QIAN Xiaodong BBR = 2,048 2,640 345 5,033
YANG Zhigiang Sk - 1,464 1,400 413 3,277
WANG Yungang TER = 1,099 1,542 196 2,837
Non-executive directors FHTES
WANG Tianyi IX% - 10 - - 10
TANG Xianging EER = 5 = = 5
GUO Ying EiE] = 10 = = 10
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
CHOW Siu Lui G- 240 50 = = 290
Philip TSAQ ERE 240 50 = - 290
YAN Houmin BER 240 35 = = 275
720 4,771 5,682 954 12,027
Notes: B 5T -
0] Mr. LO Kam Fan was appointed as Executive Director on 24 0] ERESTER_T-—NFEAAZTHAE
June 2019. ZEARWITESF -
(i) Mr. WANG Yungang resigned as Executive Director with effect (i) FEREEB-T-NFAZtHAR
from 24 June 2019. BHEBMITES -
(i)~ Mr. SONG Jian was appointed as Non-executive Director on @iy KREBREERZZFE-NFAAZTEOBEESE
24 June 2019. ERIFHNITESE -
(v)  Mr. TANG Xianging resigned as Non-executive Director with vy EBEEEEB-_ZT—NFAZtHAR
effect from 24 June 2019. B EIEHITEE o
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

There was no amount (2018: Nil) paid or payable by the
Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 9 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. And, there was no arrangement under which a
director has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2018: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other two (2018: two) individuals are as follows:

8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

EEME (&)
BHE_ZT-NFR_F—\F+-_A=+—
BIEFE AEEHE(CE—N\F: &)
B2 el XM QP S {7] T 4 ik o 5 B
AT Z Ik EAHEMRIE (EARERSE
MBEAEESRBEENBIEEOEE - E
BEXEBRMOBEBRAEE  NETLAM
EZARTAREXRRERET MGG
ZHE

&= 2 M E R A L

FE&ERFMENALESR =2 (2%
—N\F ZR)REE REFMNMES
BE - HibmE(ZF—N\F: mE) @R
ALTEFENERELT

2019 2018

—Z2—-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMMe 1,602 2,243
Discretionary bonuses BB TE 4L 3,347 3,130
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R 362 608
5,311 5,981

The emoluments of the two (2018: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

BEHEME(CE-N\F - MB)RSFHZ
ERALZH BB TEHE

2019
ZB-AF

2018
—E—)\F
Number of
gle\Vile[VE]
AH

Number of
individual

A

7 #2,000,001 2

75 #2 500,000 1 =
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 72 500,001 L E

7 #3,000,0007T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 T2

75 #3,500,0007T — 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 SRAF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXZER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based PR EAR BTN TR AR B =R E
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders FE G 2 F 7 #51,621,477,0007T (=
of the Company of HK$1,621,477,000 (2018: T — \F: H¥1,324,871,0007T)
HK$1,324,871,000) and the weighted average of EFEADETERR 2 MEFIKR
2,066,078,000 (2018: 2,066,078,000) ordinary shares £72,066,078,000fx (=& — N\ F :
in issue during the year. 2,066,078,000/%) 5T & -
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBEERF
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 HE_ZE-NFRZZ-N\F+=ZA
December 2019 and 2018 were the same as the —t—HIFE2SREERTHT
basic earnings per share as there were no potentially R EAZFAR - TyE AW EFE RN
dilutive ordinary shares in existence during both years. BT FEEBEHE 2 LB -
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 W% BERREBALFIEEA
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR ZHE iR
OWN USE
Other properties Leasehold  Motor vehicles,
leased for own  improvements, electronic Interests in
Plant and use carried at fumiture and  equipment and  Construction in leasehold land
Buildings machinery fixtures progress Sub-total  held for own use
REEAZ
s NG
HKS 000 HK$ 000
EETT EETT
Cost: .3
At 1 January 2018 W-F-N\f-A-A 534,892 1,606,137 - 19,481 83943 208,754 2,448,207 148760 2,596,967
Exchange adjustments Exge 27,00 (73842) - (1,184) 4,210) (19,392) (125,690) 8352) (134,042)
Additons wE 3907 2670 - 10,245 29,583 368,950 415,364 40649 456,013
Disposals i - (365) - (221) (4220) - (4,806) - (4,806)
Transferred from construction in BRATRIR
progress 81,404 78,089 = = = (159,493) - - -
At 31 December 2018 WoF-)\FtzA=1-H 593,201 1,612,689 - 28,321 105,086 393,628 2,733,075 181,067 2914,182
Impact on initial application of HREREAH GRS LR
HKFRS 16 (Note) 162 E (W) = - 7970 - - - 7,970 - 7970
At 1 January 2019 RZF-N5-F-B 593,201 1,612,689 7,970 28,321 105,036 393,828 2,741,045 181,057 2,922,102
Exchange adjustments Exge (20,480) (50,503) (189) (1,085) (4,118) (12,293) (88,638) (9,083) (97,691)
Additons ¥E 1,458 17437 8,003 15,10 113312 271,670 426,990 146,848 573,838
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 26) IR B AR (KE26) 53,827 28,272 - 2,489 2,018 2,838 89,444 105,785 195,229
Disposals & (214 (2611) - (1,27) (1,317) - (5473) - (5473)
Transferred from construction in BRETRIR
progress 52,617 120,090 - - - (172,707) - - -
At 31 December 2019 W3- h&Et=A=+-A 680,349 1,725,374 15,784 43,59 214,931 483,336 3,163,368 424,637 3,568,005
208 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R 2% Bt o

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 % BELAREALFES A
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR CHE TS (&
OWN USE (Continued)

Other
properties Leasehold  Motor vehicles, Interests in
leased for own  improvements, electronic leasehold land
Plant and  use carried at  furniture and equipment and  Construction in held for
Buildings machinery others progress Sub-total own use Total

gF R ‘ 3 REE ERTH it BELBES
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok BB BRTT b ok AR

Accumulated depreciation and R fTER#ME

amortisation:
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\5-A-R 40,932 207,218 - 5763 30,088 - 304,001 10,318 314,319
Exchange adjustments EH A (2,667) (14,085) = (533) (2,415) = (19,700) (801) (20,501)
Charge for the year KEEXH 13,719 82,984 = 4,318 16,462 - 117,483 42717 121,760
Disposals e - (143) - ) (3.316) - (3.500) - (3.500)
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\fF
+=A=+-A 51,984 205,974 - 9,507 40,819 - 398,284 13,794 412,078
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-N&—-A—-H 51,984 295,974 - 9,507 40,819 - 398,284 13,794 412,078
Exchange adjustments EHBE (1,616) (8,977) (16) (296) (940) - (11,845) (492) (12,337)
Charge for the year KEEXH 17,086 83,687 3,141 6,837 26,573 - 137,324 7,348 144,672
Disposals HE (150) (1,902) - (1,260) (326) - (3,638) - (3,638)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+=A=+-8 67,304 368,782 3,125 14,788 66,126 - 520,125 20,650 540,775
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 it
+=A=+-8 541217 1316715 - 18,814 64,017 30388 2,334,791 167263 2502,054
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NF
+=B=+-R 613,045 1,356,592 12,659 28,806 148,805 483336 2,643,243 403987 3,047,230
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mk NREBEFERAKETENEIGRERSTE
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances B RELERFE165  YHABR-Z—HN
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating F—A—BHFNELR  LIERBERIE
to leases which were previously classified as operating ARG EREI7THRO B AKLEREN
leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(c). ERENEREERE - R0 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R 2 Y

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 % BELAREALFES A

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR JHE T HhER (&)
OWN USE (Continued)
The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: VERIFESTOT

2019 2018
—F-hF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok i
In the PRC F B
Medium-term leases FREIEE 1,017,032 708,480
Representing: K& :
Buildings EF 613,045 541,217
Interests in leasehold land held for own use #{EE A ZHE +HiER 403,987 167,263
1,017,032 708,480
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by REBEESENERAREENKREEE
class of underlying asset is as follows: AT

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—B-NF
+=A —ZT—hF
=+-8 —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Ownership interests in leasehold land RS ArE
held for own use, carried at cost ET-MERERE
in the PRC, with remaining lease term = BT
between 10 and 50 years B FerfEA
TERTF M () 403,987 167,263
Other properties leased for own use, Hi{EBAMHEE
carried at depreciated cost Y RITE
B AR5 BR (i 12,659 7,970

416,646 175,233
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 % BELAREALFES A

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR ZHEE LR (E)

OWN USE (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued) FEREESE (&)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RERBERNEERBRXER NS TN
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: ™

2018
—E-N\F

(Note)

(HF5E)

HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  1ZMRBEED ENEREE

by class of underlying asset: ENEE:
Interests in leasehold land held for own use #{EB A ZAE R 7,348 4,277
Other properties leased for own use HEfEE ARNHEMS 3,141 —
10,489 4,277
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEBEZHE (7E6(a) 605 —
Expense relating to short-term leases and BHERBAERFHEHR
other leases with remaining lease term —E-NF+A
ended on or before 31 December 2019 =+ —HskzRiTAm
not included in the measurement of lease Rt AHEBBEFTEW
liabilities H 18 & #) B X 8,248 —
Total minimum lease payments for leases AERIBER A ERE17
previously classified as operating leases RO AKEHENH
under HKAS 17 EvREHEENTERE - 9,520
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified M AEBEEFEACEITEREERERRS
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances IS HMEERE 165 - WABR=_ZT—A
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating F-A—BOFEVES  AERBTRIE
to leases which were previously classified as operating BEAGHENEITHRSERKEEHENE
leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(c). EEENFERAEEE - RIW:E10) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

11

22

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR
OWN USE (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions to
right-of-use assets amounted to HK$8,003,000, which
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new

tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis

of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows are set out in
notes 19(b), 23 and 25(b), respectively.

()

(i)

Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own
use

The Group holds several lands for its environmental
protection business, where its project facilities are
primarily located. The Group is the registered owner of
these lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these land interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land

leases.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office premises through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 years.

The leases usually do not include an option to renew
the lease for an additional period after the end of the
contract term.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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ME  WENMRBEUALFIEER
ZHE T ER (&)

EREEE (&)

BE-_T-NF+A=+T—HLEFE"
F L EEE B 18,003,000 @ EIRE
FHEmREMNNE A CAEN KA -

HEMmBRESRL HEAEGENEEBST
KR KIF SR BB D B &R T
19(0) + 23 % 25(b) ©

()

(i)

FHIEERMEE L R #E#E

AEERERREHFBAET LM -
TYRBREEEMEN - AEESE
BB A o (A EE
BAWREZ S Tl AR H — IR

MR - BARIR 4 7E & RR & I
FEAEITHR K -
Hitt 5 HEYF

AEEDEBHOBSEREMYE
ERMREI R - BRABEER
HHE—ROT R2EF -

HEBETEENAOHERREI
BEERER



12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 BREEAENESE

Integrated
biomass
utilisation
project

operating rights
Y E iR A T A
HREE R
HK$’000
BT T

Hazardous and
solid waste
treatment
project
operating rights
ERE R ERE R E
HEEEE
HK$’000
BT T

B R

Total
intangible
assets

B AEMRE
HK$’000
BT

Cost: AR
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F

—HA—H 4,775,686 596,595 5,372,281
Exchange adjustments ME H A (311,298) (41,447) (352,745)
Additions e 2,494,578 363,994 2,858,572
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F

+=—A=+—8H 6,958,966 919,142 7,878,108
Accumulated g §

amortisation:

At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F

—HA—H 209,600 31,073 240,673
Exchange adjustments bE i A (15,215) (2,436) (17,651)
Charge for the year R EHH 143,192 25,472 168,664
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F

+=—A=+—8H 337,577 54,109 391,686
Net book value: R FE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\F

+—-—A=+—H 6,621,389 865,033 7,486,422

PEAXGERERFRATF 13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R 2 Y

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

12 BYEENBE(E)

(Continued)
Hazardous
Integrated and solid
biomass waste
utilisation treatment
project project Total
operating operating Backlog intangible
rights rights Licences Technology contracts assets Goodwill
ENEREH BER
REE EREE AT 317
BEEE HAEER R Bl =G EEAE [:] st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BB T BET T BRI T BB T BET T BRI T BB T
Cost: R
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NEF
—A—H 6,958,966 919,142 - - - 7878108 - 7878108
Exchange adjustments EXAE (227,518) (41,445) (4,737) (596) (129) (274,425) (5,173) (279,598)
Additions 2E 2,792,267 868,814 - - - 3,661,081 - 3,661,081
Acquisition of G0N
subsidiaries (Fizt26)
(note 26) - - 121,575 14,229 3,070 138,874 154,252 298,126
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+=ZA=+—-H 9,623,715 1,746,511 116,838 13,633 2,941 11,403,638 149,079 11,552,717
Accumulated EYE &N
amortisation:
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF
—A—H 337,577 54,109 - - - 391,686 - 391,686
Exchange adjustments EXRE (12,172) (1,964) (282) (40) (34) (14,492 - (14,492)
Charge for the year AEEHE 199,294 30,097 12,469 1,744 1,505 245,109 - 245,109
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+=A=+-B 524,699 82,242 12,187 1,704 1,471 622,303 - 622,303
Net book value: REEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+=ZA=+—-H 8,999,016 1,664,269 104,651 11,929 1,470 10,781,335 149,079 10,930,414
The amortisation of the intangible assets is included in BREEEBHECEENGEEAEBRRIEEK

“Direct costs and operating expenses” and “Administrative

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

N4 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

(a)

Intangible assets

As at 31 December 2019, there were certain projects
that had not commenced operation, the amount of the
project operating rights of these projects was
HK$2,156,941,000 (2018: HK$2,237,255,000). The
recoverable amount of each of these operating rights
was determined based on value-in-use calculations,
i.e. the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the projects. The cash
flow projections are based on the most recent
respective financial budgets approved by the senior
management covering a budget period of five years.
The financial budgets are prepared based on the
service agreements governing the relevant projects
together with assumptions such as utilisation rates
and gross profit margins that represent the senior
management’s best estimate of the set of economic
conditions that will exist over the period. The cash
infows of the operating rights are mainly due from
local government authorities in the PRC with no
history of default, and accordingly the management
considers the credit risk of such projects to be
insignificant. The assumptions used are supported by
historical data of existing projects with similar
production capacity, technologies and type of biomass
materials processed or hazardous wastes treated.
Cash flows beyond the budget period are extrapolated
using an estimated inflation rate of 2% which does not
exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
industry in which the projects operate. Discount rates
of 18.1% to 14.5% (2018: 13.4% to 14.4%) have
been adopted for the value-in-use calculations as at
31 December 2019. The discount rates used are the
pre-tax rates that reflect the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
specific risks relating to the relevant operating rights.
Based on management’s assessment, no loss
allowance is considered necessary as at 31

December 2019 (2018: Nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

12 BEEENEE (&)

(a)

BVEE

R-E-NF+_A=+—8 &F
HH M RFGES  ZEFBEMIEBE
K EE PR & B RBE
2,156,941,0007C (ZZF — N\ 4F : B
2,237,255,0007T) - BIHZ L 2
WA E S ERFEREABE (BB
FZEEEESARREeRELR
BET ReR2BANSHRER
BHER R E R FIBE B0 &L 88T
BEARER MBEERREER
EAMREHERE - AP AZIE
% e REIEE Y EBRARNL
BERREREREMRENEAER
EME - BERERERAFTERFTE
EHBUSHBEREN  WEROL
B WEEERABEHEENEER
Bl FEAN - FTEZBEAREE
B8« BT Mo T A E MR R B S BT
BRIEHEREEREEMNIEE 2 B E
BEERIMES S - HEBMINNIRE R
ENEFTBIRER2%HEE - 2% # R
HZEERAMERITENTARGER
R -FEHE_ZT—-NLF+ A
=+ BXNEREERNTRMEIRER
131%5E14.5% (ZF— )\F : 13.4%
£14.4%) o FTARIBLIR K BBRTIATRL
WE - RERTISEITHRENRERE
BREECEEBEESRR 2T R
—ZE-NAF+ZA=+—8 BREE
HEMNTE RAEFTIEBHERB
(Z2—N\F )

PEAXGRBIRRARAE 905
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

12

216

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

(b)

Goodwill

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGUs”") as follows:

Suntime Environmental Remediation CO.,

12 BEEENMEE (E)
(b) BEE

BEBEHe LEENFELHA

TRINTESIREAEBEZRSEE
BUu(ReLEEM]) 2BHE

2019 2018
—N\F
HK$’000

BT

—F-hF
HK$°000
BET T

FARREEERAF

Ltd 68,049 -
Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental LA EFAR IR AR
Technology Company Limited* NG| 65,148 =
Zhangjiagang Gelin Environmental RRABEMIRRIER
Engineering Co., Ltd.* R A A 15,882 =
149,079 —
The recoverable amount of the respective CGUs is BB eEES u Z —I W Bl 58 Th iR

determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rates of
10.1% to 13.7% (2018: Nil) have been used for the
value-in-use calculations, and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2% to 3% (2018: Nil). Management determined the
budgets based on service agreements governing the
relevant operations. The discount rates used are pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments. Based on management’s assessment, no
impairment is considered necessary at 31 December
2019.

None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

For identification only
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13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of

the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Name of company

DET

EB Greentech Biomass Energy (Guoyang) Limited* (note (b))
ARGERREMEER ORI BR AR (D)

EB Greentech Solid Waste Treatment (Zhangjiagang)
Limited* (note (c))

KRR ERREERE (RFE) BRA R (M)

EB Greentech Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Fengxian) Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KAGZEIREUBEELR (LH) BRA A (FE e R(b)

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Fengyang)
Company Limited** (notes (a) and (b))
KARBBEERER (AR BRA R (@) R b))

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Guanyun)
Company Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
RARWBEELRCER) BRD A (M () R (b))

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Huai'an) Limited*
(notes (a) and (b))
KRB EERLR CER) BRA A (i i (e) R (0)

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Mianzhu) Limited*™
(notes (a) and (b))
KRB B ER (B1T) BRA A (M () & (b))

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiao County)
Limited** (notes (a) and (b))
RRBBEELR (BR) ARD A (M) R (b))

Place of
incorporation
and business

PRC
37

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
s

PRC
Ed

PRC
i

PRC
#

PRC
kil

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital
BRIRAR

RMB101,700,000
AR #101,700,0007C

RMB202,690,000
AR #202,690,0007T

RMB182,310,000
AR #182,310,0007C

RMB183,340,000
AR #183,340,0007C

RMB199,120,000
AR #199,120,0007C

RMB233,000,000
AR #233,000,00070

RMB178,670,000
AR#178,670,0007C

RMB230,260,000
AR #230,260,0007C

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R
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Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
AR

Direct Indirect  Principal activity

BE HE TEXE

- 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Ret - E EEREEEMERERMAR

- 80%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
project

Rit o 2E - ERERAERRERERA

- 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Ret B EERBEENERSERE -
LR E

- 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - BiE BERAELNERNRHE—
ILEE

= 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat B BERAEENE RN REE—
#BLHE

= 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - B BERBEENE RN REE—
#{AEB

- 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - BE BERAELNERNRHE—
LR E

= 100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat BiE BERAELENE RN RHE—
HILEE

PEAXGERERFRATF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

13

218

Place of

incorporation

Name of company

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Zhongjiang)
Limited* (note (b))
KARBBEAERR (L) BRA A (D)

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Zhongxiang)
Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KRB EERLR (1) BRA A (M) R (b))

Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company Limited*"
(note (b))
KRHEER (1) BR AR (B (b))

Everbright Biomass Cogeneration (Liuan) Company Limited**
(note (b))
KREMRE (NR) BR AR (i (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Chuzhou) Company Limited**
(note (b))
KREWER CBM) R AR (3 (0)

Everbright Biomass Energy (Dingyuan) Limited"* (note (b))
KREWER (EE) AR AR (i (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Guixi) Limited* (note (b))
KREWRER (BR) AR AR (i (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Hanshan) Limited* (note (b))
KREWER (2 1L) AR AR (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Huaiyuan) Limited* (note a)

KEREMEER (BR) BR AR (M @)

Everbright Biomass Energy (Lianshui) Limited* (note (b))
KAREWER CBK) BRA R (B (b))

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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i
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PRC
i

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

RMB128,333,000
AR #128,333,0007T

RMB159,750,000
AR #159,750,0007C

HK$125,800,000
7% 125,800,0007T

RMB179,360,000
AR #179,360,0007C

RMB106,670,000
AR #106,670,0007C

HK$131,660,000
7 #131,660,0007T

RMB128,087,000
AR #128,087,0007C

HK$127,000,000
7 #127,000,0007T

HK$220,630,000
7 #:220,630,0007T

RMB141,540,000
AR #141,540,0007C

13

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Co

Direct Indirect

B FE3

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

o8~ RHRE (B

Principal activity

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Rat - BE BERAELYERERIUER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat BE BERAELNERNRHE—
BILEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rat B EEREELMEENRETRE

Design, construction, operation electricity and
heat cogeneration project
Rt BEREEAEHHIAR

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rat - BE BERAELYEERREER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rat - BE BERAELYEERREER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Rat - BE BERAELYERERIOER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rat - BE BERAELYEERREER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - BE BERAELNERNRHE—
BILEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Rat B EEREELMERERGIRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 KB A RIKRE (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Place of
incorporation
and business

Particulars of issued and

Name of company paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity

B

HE TEXH

Everbright Biomass Energy (Lingbi) Limited* (note (b)) PRC RMB106,667,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
KREYRR (BEE) AR A A (B (b)) 3 AR #106,667,0007T maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project
AT R BERAEENEEMREEREA
Everbright Biomass Energy (Liuan) Company Limited*" PRC RMB113,570,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) Gl AR#113,570,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and
KAREMER (RK) BRA R (HEED) heat cogeneration project
AT R BERAEENEREHIAR
Everbright Biomass Energy (Rugao) Company Limited*" PRC RMB142,667,000 = 100%  Design, construction, operation and
KREDRR (NR) FERAA 3 AR #142,667,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project
AT R BERAEENEREHMIEAR
Everbright Biomass Energy (Shayang) Limited* (note (b)) PRC RMB127,337,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
KREWRR (D) BRA R (i (b)) 3 AR #127,337,0007C maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project
AT R BERAEENEEMRBEREA
Everbright Biomass Energy (\Neihai) Limited* (note (b)) PRC RMB127,337,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
KREWRR (BU8) AR AR (B (b)) 3 AR #127,337,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project
AT R BERAEENEREHMIAR
Everbright Environmental (Suzhou) Solid Waste Treatment PRC USD4,865,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (note (d)) Gl 4,865,000% 7T maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
KERRR (BN ERERE AR AR (M) project
Rt 2 BEREEFEEEER
Everbright Environmental Protection (Lianyungang) Solid PRC HK$128,640,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Waste Treatment Company LimitedM (note (c)) Gl 7#128,640,0007T maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
ARRR(EEE)EEREER AR (HEC) project
Rt B2 BERGEFEEEER
Everbright Environmental Protection (Sugian) Solid Waste PRC HK$98,260,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment Limited* (note (d)) Gl 7515 98,260,0007T maintenance of hazardous waste landfil
KABRR(FE) BREREARA R (M) project
Rt B2 BERGEFEEEER
Everbright Environmental Protection (Yancheng) Solid Waste PRC USD25,000,000 - 90%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment Company Limited® (note (c)) Gl 25,000,000% 7T maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
RARRR (ER) EREREAR AR (i) project
Rt B2 BERGEFEEEER
Everbright Environmental Protection Hazardous Waste PRC RMB135,983,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment (Zibo) Company LimitedM Gl AR #135,983,0007T maintenance of hazardous waste

RARBRREEEE 4B BRA

incineration project

Ret o @iE EERAECERSEER

PEHAXGBRRARAT O
—F-NEFFR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

Place of

incorporation
and business

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

ACIES

Everbright Environmental Solid Waste Treatment (Xinyi) PRC HK$115,359,000
Limited* (note (c)) 3 7 #115,359,0007C

KRRREEEE GO ARA R ()

Everbright Solid Waste Landfill (Xinyi) Holdings Limited* PRC RMB71,460,000
(note (c)) # AR¥71,460,0007C

KRG ERRERENEE O BRA A (i)

Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (sheqi) PRC RMB193,440,000
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #193,440,0007C

KRB B ERLR L) AR A (M (e) & (b))

Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiayi) PRC RMB186,670,000
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) 3 AR #186,670,0007C

KABBBERR(EE)ERA R (k@ kb))

Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (zhecheng) PRC RMB132,600,000
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #132,600,0007C

KRB EELLR (BR) AR A (M) R (b))

Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) Company Limited*" PRC RMB258,360,000

ARAE(ER)BERDA" HE AR #258,360,0007T

Everbright Solarpark Schonewalde Ldt. & Co. KG Germany €1,000

=E 1,000B4 7T
Suntime Environmental Remediation CO., Ltd PRC RMB55,000,000
LRRREEERAA HE AR #55,000,0007T
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment
enterprise
# Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-

operation joint ventures
For identification purpose only

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED

Annual Report 2019
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P 8

NERE (B

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FEf5 1

Direct

HE

*

#

A

Indirect  Principal activity

FE3

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste
incineration project

Rat B BERBEEERRIER

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
project

Rat B BERGEERIEEER

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - BE BERAELNERNRHE—
HEILEE

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - B BERBEENE RN REE—
®{EB

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project

Rat - BE BERAELNERNRHE—
HEILEE

100%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of wind power project

Rat B BEREERTER

100%  Design, construction and operation of solar
energy project

Rt BERELRKRBEHEE

100%  Operation of environmental remediation
project

EERREEER

RBHEERELTRIEDLE -
BRETEEEETRTIIAERE -
X Rl
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Notes:

(@

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the local government
authorities in the PRC (the “grantors”). Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain waste-to-energy
projects and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy
projects in the PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The
grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. During the
operating period, the Group will be responsible to maintain
the waste-to-energy projects and integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects in good condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects is recognised as
“Service concession assets”, which are included in “Contract
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain biomass direct
combustion power generation projects, biomass heat supply
project, biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects
and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in the
PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The service fees
are based on the extent of services rendered and are
subject to the approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. During the operating period, the Group will be
responsible to maintain the biomass direct combustion
power generation projects, biomass heat supply projects,
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects and
integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in good
condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the biomass direct combustion power
generation projects, biomass heat supply projects, biomass
electricity and heat cogeneration projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

13
B &L -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain hazardous waste
landfill projects and hazardous waste incineration projects in
the PRC for a period of 20 to 30 years. The Group has the
obligation to maintain the hazardous waste landfill projects
and hazardous waste incineration projects in good condition.
The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant
local government authorities. Upon expiry of the concession
periods, the hazardous waste landfill projects and hazardous
waste incineration projects and related facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the hazardous waste landfill projects and
hazardous waste incineration projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain hazardous waste
landfill projects in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years.
The Group has the obligation to maintain the hazardous
waste landfill projects in good condition. The grantors
guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual payments
in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of the
concession periods, the hazardous waste landfill projects and
related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the hazardous waste landfill projects is
recognised as “Service concession assets”, which are
included in “Contract assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14

FE 15 & 2% 5

Share of net assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

2018

—ZE2—-hF
HK$’000
BT T

—F—N\F
HK$’000
BT T

76,621 56,216

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

AEEZB LR AED (ERAMERRE
AR FEBEWT

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Group’s
incorporation  Particulars of issued effective
Name of associate and business and paid up capital interest
BETR
HBREX
NS Ry
Anging Jinghuan Green PRC  RMB141,000,000 49%
Environment Solid Waste i AR

Comprehensive Disposal 141,000,000
Co. Ltd. (“Anging Solid
Waste”)
ZERBGZEREEERE
BREARAR([RE
ERE D)

Note: The Group made capital contributions of approximately
HK$22,467,000 and HK$56,354,000 to Anging Solid Waste
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
respectively. The Group has significant influence over Anging
Solid Waste’s management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions, pursuant to the
articles of association of Anging Solid Waste. Accordingly,
Anging Solid Waste is classified as an associate of the
Group.

Anging Solid Waste was established by the Group with
Beijing Environment Limited in the PRC, the other investor to
this associate, to enhance harmless disposal ability of
hazardous waste of Anging City.

Anging Solid Waste, the only associate in which the Group
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted
market price is not available.

Held by the
Company

AR

AR

Held by a

subsidiary  Principal activity

mE AR
L) ®AE

- 49%  Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
hazardous and solid
waste treatment
project (note)

Rt BiE - EER
HEEEREEEE
1|/ A (M)

i A RE-F - AER-F— T A

=+—BIFE  ALEDRIATEEEE
EE M B 22 467,000 KB
56,354,0007T ° IRIELEEE 2 HBER
A AREBUHLTERENER(BE2
HEBEEEERRNAR)AERATE
7o B REBEEW D EBAE B

NG

AEEEETRTARAF (LB EQF
ZR—HRAZE)RNPBIRTZEERE A
MEREMNERENEERERD -

2 B T A R B — S R AT
HAFLEDEALRE - LEDHRE -

FEEXGBRERERAT 73
—ZT-NEFFR
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15 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15 —

2019 2018
—B-hF —ET-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
AU T T BT T
Share of net assets JEAE B EF5E 61,177 57,446
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is REBzEEbFE R (EReWBEmE S
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated BAEZEAR)FBEOT

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
BAREERLA

Place of
Establishment and ~ Particulars of issued  Group’s effective Held by the Held by a
Name of joint venture operation  and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
RERNEER EYES ARERFS j o] GIESY FEEH
Everbright SITA Solid Waste PRC RMB110,000,000 50% - 50%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment (Changzhou) B AR#110,000,0007 maintenance of hazardous waste
Limited (“SITA (Changzhou)”) incineration project (note)
KAFEERERE (FM) BRAR RETBE BEREERENERA
(TAZEEMD (P3E)

Note: The Group has joint control over SITA (Changzhou)'s M AREFE (BN B ERAA - AEE
management, including participation in the financial and A HEFENESIFE(EMN) 2 EBE - BE2
operating policy decisions, pursuant to the articles of BREEMB REEBEK Bt A
association of SITA (Changzhou). Accordingly, SITA (B EIBEAREE s ALENDE-
(Changzhou) is classified as a joint venture of the Group.

SITA (Changzhou) was established by the Group with SITA AEESAAEDIMNER AR (WEEDE
Asia Pacific Limited in the PRC, the other investor to this ZE—REE)RBREKAEEM)
joint venture, to enhance harmless disposal ability of LA EIINmeEREnEEEEET -

hazardous waste of Changzhou City.

SITA (Changzhou), the only joint venture in which the Group
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted
market price is not available.

E(EMNDAREEE-2ENGED
CERSEETMAARR - WEMISWME o

e
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16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 16
AND PREPAYMENTS

ISSEERE /S|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R

FEUL RN - H A UL FRIA - #E

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T 5T BT T
Debtors JiE Ut BR 3R 711,104 369,417
Other receivables, deposits and Hip e WA ~ e RFER A
prepayments 1,219,028 1,291,325
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries &R [F & I B A 1508 30,516 4,750
Amount due from non-controlling JE 5 I 128 A 2 SR IE
interests 22,180 =
eeee...__M982,828 1665492
Less: Non-current portion B SERNEAER
— Other receivables, deposits and — HMEUWEIE - e BN
prepayments KIB (580,802) (425,957)
— Amount due from non-controlling — FEUIEIE R M S R
interests (22,180) —
. (602,982) (425,957)
Current portion BIEREE 5 1,379,846 1,239,535

HEEXGEERERLT O
—T-NEER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 16 [EWEER - E#ERNIE - %4

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) N IBT FIE (&)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and [FEWER - B EWEIE - Re RTER K
prepayments” are debtors (net of loss allowance) with the 1] R B ERE AR (R BEERE) - AR
following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting WERARZEREDTAT

period:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z=—\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Current ] s A 387,300 205,409 _
Within 1 month past due BEATZ RN —(E A 115,398 117,451
More than 1 month but within 3 months BHBEA—EABETEZRN
past due =& A 16,919 10,666
More than 3 months but within 6 months 1 HAFE:8 =@ A8 ~% R
past due 7~ ME A 61,423 17,816
More than 6 months but within 12 months ~ #1HAFR @/~ {8 A B % R
past due +={@A 70,669 8,464
More than 12 months past due BEEBA T @A 59,395 9,611
_Amounts pastdue ] WS . 323804 . 164,008 _
711,104 369,417

976 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of invoice

and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

16 BUWER - EMMENEUE - 1E

RIENRIB (&)

REERAMFELMBRERRE  BUK
FRBEHRZEE®ROTOT

period is as follows:

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 1 month NER—1E A 269,187 173,350

More than 1 month but within 2 months BE—EABETZAMREA 112,467 20,940

More than 2 months but within 4 months @™ & 318 ~ %R IN{E A 87,208 131,584

More than 4 months but within 7 months @M E BB RZ» @A 86,545 18,770
More than 7 months but within BBEtEAETEZR

13 months +=@A 77,489 12,354

More than 13 months wet+=@A 78,208 12,419

711,104 369,417

Debtors are mainly due immediately to within 90 days from
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 25(a).

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and the prepayment is expected to be
recognised as expense within one year.

The amount due from non-controlling interests is secured by
its equity interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, interest
bearing at 110% of rates announced by the People’s Bank
of China and recoverable by December 2022.

EREFRTEABRZAHESNLTERD
H-EEAEENEERRZE—FFHE
H AT FE25(a)

EURRMBARREREER 28R
ZBABN KB —FRER B

FEWSEERER R BER —RIFEL2ERBA
Al IRAEVESEA - P B ARRITHAM
FMERI110%TERAR_E_ZF+_H
AT e o

FEEXGBRERERAT 97
—ZT-NEFFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

17 CONTRACT ASSETS 17 BHEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Non-current FERE
Service concession assets (note 17(a)) RS EEEE
(FFEE17(a)) 3,962,637 2,852,061
Current B
Service concession assets (note 17(a)) IR EREE
(FFEE17(2)) 262,475 204,598
Unbilled renewable energy tariff subsidy RAEABRENBERRERE
(note 17(b)) faL (B EE17(0) 2,561,239 1,290,468
Environmental remediation contract RIBEBEANEE
assets (note 17(c)) (FH5E17(c)) 217,435 67,025
_.. 3041149 1,562,091
7,003,786 4,414,152
Contract assets arising from performance  B77HRIE4FFF & S ELHE
under construction contracts in HENEEGNEENS
connection with service concession HEE  Mat AIEF
arrangements, which are included in &EE(fzE12)
“Intangible assets” (note 12) 2,156,941 2,237,255
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17 CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

Service concession assets

Service concession assets arose from the Group’s
revenue from construction services under certain BOT
and BOO arrangements as disclosed in notes 13(a)
and (d) and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.90%
to 6.60% (2018: 4.90% to 6.60%) per annum as at
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, HK$3,400,221,000 (2018:
HK$2,213,959,000) relates to certain BOT and BOO
arrangements with operations commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT and BOO arrangements, the
Group receives no payment from the grantors during
the construction period and instead receives service
fees for the Group’s operation services when relevant
services are rendered during the operating periods.

The service concession assets are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by the service fees to be
received during the operating periods of the
arrangements. Details of the service concession

arrangements are discussed in note 13.

All of the current position of service concession
assets are expected to be recovered within one year.

17 &

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

WEE(E)

RFTCEREEELEEAREIR
% FBOTRBOOZ Bt (4nki 5£13(a)
R(A)FTH ) EENREERBE W -
R-ZE—NAFE+_A=+—8BENT
4.90%%E6.60%MFF X B (=ZF
—)\F : 4.90% £6.60%) °

R-ZE—hhFE+-_A=+—H @2
FIEEENE TBOTMBOOZH AR
2 38 A7 #53,400,221,0000T (=
— \4F @ ##2,213,959,0007T) °

RIEBOT BOORHE » NEBENEE
HATEBREAWEGR - MER
BEHNREARRGE A% E
) IE 2 RS UEUR 5 & -

RIS R EREEHARBI A
I #5358 7% 5 2 HEROIE & B A W AR KO
RIEBERN - BRARGEFLERR
BERVRH IR BN M RE13

RGEFEEEEE MBS
B R —FRKRE -

PEAXGRBIRRARAE 279
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

17 CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

18

230

(b)

(c)

Unbilled renewable energy tariff subsidy

The balance represents government on-grid tariff
subsidy receivables for certain integrated biomass
utilisation projects which newly commenced operations
and arose from the Group’s revenue from operations.
The amounts will be billed and settled upon the
completion of government administrative procedures
pursuant to Caidian [2012] No.102 Notice on the
Interim Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds
for Tariff Premium of Renewable Energy (7] B4 &ETR
EEMINEHENE BB ETHOX) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy

Administration.

Environmental remediation contract assets

The balance arose from performance under
environmental remediation contracts. Such contracts
include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the service periods once milestones

are reached.

INVENTORIES

(a)

Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

17 ANEE(E)

(b)

(c)

18 FE

(a)

KEARETHERREEHR

HHRAETHRABENEMELRE
FAEE 2 EWIBAT EABEERHAL -
EEXEAEELEWRE - FIRBM IR
B BAREENRELZESREREE
BRERZEMAMH BN B LR
REEMMFBEE @ EBEITIVE)
73 40 (BF #[2012]1025% ) 78 Ak B2 T
THRFER ZFEREREERR
qE

RREEGNEE

RHBABITRREEROMESL - %
FANERERERNREPAERET
Bi2EAZAED BN RO RETE -

REMBRRRATFERSE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Raw materials and operating R R K 8 & A fh
supplies 219,835 124,656
Finished goods LA 8,556 -
228,391 124,656

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INVENTORIES (Continued)

(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b)
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

18 75 (&)

2019

—EB-NF
HK$’000
BT T

Carrying amount of inventories EREAGEECEREEE

consumed 1,558,524

B R

EHRABMIATABERZTF
ESBEIWMT

2018
—F—\F
HK$’'000
BT

1,112,863

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION B R

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a)

Be kRSB RAEMB TR

ReRREEEYRE:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\&F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT T

Deposits with banks RITFEH 800,812 409,875
Cash at bank and in hand RITHERERE 1,884,647 1,634,951
2,685,459 2,044,826

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the
following deposits placed with a related party bank:

(B RREEEY ] B THERR
R 4R 1T 2 1K

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T ok i ab

Deposits with a related party bank 15 BUR BB B 7 3R 1T 2 17 5K 403,569 81,635
Interest income from a related party  BAE HR1T 2 FL8 WA

bank 2,075 5,416

PEAKEGBIRRARAT 0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 He MRS EEYMHEMBRA DR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) B (&

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METHELENEBZHRK:
financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRV AEBERE EFFTELH
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash BEEHFE ETRERERIFR
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from LEY - RETHMELANBELRE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows B MARKIR GRS A% BHYER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ARERERADEARETDME
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash ERESRHWEE -

flows from financing activities.

Amount due to Amount due to
non-controlling intermediate
Bank loans Lease liabilities interests holding company

RITEH HEAE BN ERERE FEHEFFWHE"?
2019 2018 2019 2018
=t \E Z8-7f \E S \E
HK$'000 $ HK$’000
BETr E¥Tn B¥Tn

At 31 December 2018/2017 ﬁ@:_?/\#;/
;;ﬂ =1+-H 6,006,559 3,494,703 - = - = -
Impact on initial application of B RFEMA AR

6,006,559 3,494,703

HKFRS 16 (Note) HERE16% 40
78 (M) - - 7,970 - - - - - 7,970 -
At 1 January 2019/2018 R=B-1%F/
“E-)\f
-B—-H 6,006,559 3,494,703 7,970 - - - - — 6,014,529 3,494,703
Changes from financing BERSTERRM
cash flows: 28
Proceeds from new bank MERITER
loans Frigsa 6,308,574 3,243,972 - - - - - — 6,308,574 3,243,972
Increase in amount due to AR g
non-controling interests B - = - — 17,513 — - — 17,513 —
Increase in amount due to ERREERAT]
intermediate holding OB
company - = - = - — 469,120 — 469,120 =
Repayment of bank loans BESTER (1,035,921)  (506,052) - — - — - - (1,035,921) (506,052
Interest paid BHFIE (388,735)  (213,001) - = - - (11,555) — (400290 (213,097
Capital element of lease WﬁﬁZﬁZK
rentals paid - - (2,781) - - - - - (2,781) -
Interest element of lease WE%ZN &)
rentals paid - = (605) = - = - = (605) =
Total changes from financing ~ BEBEHEEH
cash flows fak] 4,883,918 2,524,829 (3,386) - 17,513 - 457,565 - _5_‘3§5L61_0_ 2,524,829
Exchange adjustments ExEg (184,436)  (226,064) (177 - e - 550) - [1101) (226084
Other changes: Hp25
Interest expenses (note 6(a)  FISFX (HiZ6@) 364731 202,384 605 = - - 11555 - 376891 202,384
Capitalised borrowing costs ERL2 B8
(note 6(a)) A (FiriE6a) 24,004 10,707 - = - = - - 24004 10,707
Increase in lease fabilties from LKﬁJ*‘anﬁ g
entering into new leases EENRE
during the year BEEM - = 8,003 = - = - - 8,003 -
Total other changes AbEHRE 388,735 213091 8,608 - - - 11,55 — 408808 213,001
At 31 December Rt=A=1t-H8 11,094,776 6,006,559 13,015 - 16,635 - 443,600 — 11,568,026 6,006,559
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Wiz AEERFRALSEIBERNE
modified retrospective method and adjusted the AEBUMERELENFE165 - WA
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise BR_ZE-NF-—A—BOFNE
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously % UERBFRIEFS@%E]
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See BT B AKEHENTEERER
notes 1(c). HEAE - RMFE10) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS SRR M EE
20 BANKS LOANS 20 RITER
(a) The bank loans were repayable as follows: (a) SMBITEREARTIFEHEE

2019 2018

—F-hF b AN

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T
Within_ 1 year-or on demand ____ - TENBEEREE 2022839 915,375 _

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 1,243,437 465,358

After 2 years but within 5 years WMERBRBRAFA 5,057,497 2,817,373

After 5 years hF® 2,771,503 1,808,453
oo 072,437 5,091,184

11,094,776 6,006,559

(b) The bank loans were secured as follows: (b) MITERERBROT :

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Bank loans |ITER

— Secured —FHE A 6,472,644 4,026,843

— Unsecured — I 4,622,132 1,979,716

11,094,776 6,006,559
Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by AEFEETIRITRHEUAEERE R
certain revenue, contract assets and receivables in HTRBETHETWZ  ANEERE
connection with the Group’s service concession WA - M BEREE  ~5E
arrangements, property, plant and equipment and BEEAANHEE LS EERR - B
interests in leasehold land held for own use of the ZE-NFFTZA=T—8 ER
Group. Such banking facilities, amounting to TRYE BB 9,877,121,0007T (=
HK$9,877,121,000 (2018: HK$6,658,282,000) as at 31 T—\F : &% 6,658,282,0007T)
December 2019 were utilised to the extent of HEPEBAE6,472,644,0007T (=
HK$6,472,644,000 (2018: HK$4,026,843,000). = — )\ : %4,026,843,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

20

234

BANKS LOANS (Continued)

(b) The bank loans were secured as follows:
(Continued)

The unsecured banking facilities of HK$7,546,649,000
(2018: HK$4,602,728,000) as at 31 December 2019
were utilised to the extent of HK$4,622,132,000

(2018: HK$1,979,716,000).

All of the non-current bank loans are carried at
amortised costs. None of the non-current bank loans

is expected to be settled within one year.

Banking facilities of HK$10,667,447,000 as at 31

December 2019 (2018: HK$6,101,334,000)

subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. As at 31
December 2019, such facilities were utilised to the
extent of HK$7,249,140,000 (2018: HK$2,970,420,000).
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. As at 31 December 2019, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in

been breached (2018: Nil).

note 25(b).

At 31 December 2019, bank loans of HK$244,449,000
(2018: HK$261,257,000) are due to a related party
bank which are secured, interest-bearing at rates
ranging from 90% to 100% (2018: ranging from 90%
to 100%) of rates announced by the People’s Bank of

China and will be settled by instalment until 2028.
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20 iR
(b)

TER (&)

RITERBEHRBROE - (&)

RZE-AE+_A=+—0 &K
IR T B & BB #7,5646,649,0007T
(ZZ— \F : B %4,602,728,000
JT)  EHRBEEAEE4,622,132,000
T (ZZF—N\F : %%1,979,716,000
TT) °

FIT 76 2F BB SR 1T & IR 3 35 AX &S B
fR o BUEIERNHIRITE RN — 4
W& -

RZE-AE+-A=+—8 " R1T
B & B #10,667,447,000L (=&
— )\ : #¥6,101,334,0007T) A
EETEBAEBY LR 225 o
WEAEBERRE CDIRIZEBE
BAREREE R_T—NF+=
A=+—H CEORRMEEABE
7,249,140,0007T (ZZE— \4F : B
2,970,420,0007T) ° 2~ 5 & 7F Hf BS 52
RELEBECWET R —NF
TZA=Z+—H AREVEERE
M EBRNEE 2 Z#E (ZE—N\F:
) c AEEBETE R MR 2 M
AR VIR M 5T 25(0)

RNZE-AE+-_A=+—8 " EHt
F-REBHARTZERBE
244,449,000 (= — N\ F : B
261,257,0007T) AEEMH - LR EA
REBITAMEERZ90%ZE100% (—=F
—N\F 1 90%E100%) 71 & AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DR
21 CREDITORS, PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 21 FENEREIR  ENFIENEGER
EXPENSES

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Creditors FE A BR K
— third parties —%E=F 2,126,266 1,726,771
— fellow subsidiaries —RA RN E R A 12,005 11,653
2,138,271 1,738,424
Other payables and accrued expenses Hib e RIA R FEET B A 824,844 644,276
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FET R Z M8 R R 5RIE 618 307
Amount due to non-controlling interests JFE A~ JE 4R % A 25 FR0E 16,635 —
Amount due to an intermediate holding FERT — R A AR A &SR8
company 443,600 —
Deferred income — government grants FEEWA —BRF@EB & 138,669 100,517
3,562,637 2,483,524
Less: Non-current portion A SERNERER
— Deferred income — BREWA
— government grants —BF#SE (54,318) (59,080)
— Amount due to an intermediate — BN —RHPEER
holding company NGIE- Q- (443,600) —
— Other payables and accrued — HfibENRIER
expenses FEETE R (58,927) (7,924)
L ____[556845) [T (67,004)
Current portion BN ERER 5 3,005,792 2,416,520

FEEXGBRERERAT 235
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

21 CREDITORS, PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 21
EXPENSES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of creditors based on the date of

invoice as of the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ERERIN - ENFRIERESTER
(&)

RBEEANHE  ENEIRBSHER
BEAFIT :

2019 2018

—B-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 6 months NEA A 1,913,174 1,627,355
More than 6 months NE A A 225,097 111,069
2,138,271 1,738,424

Creditors totaling HK$1,594,892,000 (2018:
HK$1,593,174,000) as at 31 December 2019 represent
construction payables for the Group’s BOT and certain
BOO arrangements.

Creditors due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable in accordance with the contract terms.

The amounts due to fellows subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to non-controlling interests is unsecured,
interest bearing at rates announced by the People’s Bank of
China and repayable within one year.

The amount due to an intermediate holding company is
unsecured, interest bearing at 85% of rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and repayable in May 2022.

Deferred income represents government grants received to
subsidise the construction of property, plant and equipment
for the Group and is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(u)(v). HK$3,157,000
(2018: HK$4,682,000) was credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2019. There were no unfulfiled conditions and
other contingencies attached to the receipts of those
grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSBS
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 MREEHMBRARNER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) SREMBEMRRERZAEHIEE

statement of financial position represents:

2019 2018
—E-hHE —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T

Provision for PRC income tax KEZRBHASHREE
for the year 192,493 91,503
Provisional tax paid BT E & IE (149,708) (68,615)
42,785 22,888

Represented by: K& :

Tax recoverable A g [B] F 1H (986) (734)
Tax payable JE @18 43,771 23,622
42,785 22,888

PEHAXGEBRRERAT W
ZE-NFFER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R 3% M &
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 PNiFaMBRRAKRRENR (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EERANVEEREBEEERES
recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERERE B BMRARER Z BT IE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/ABEIH»RRFAZ BN
position and the movements during the years are as N

follows:

Temporary
differences Fair value
on assets adjustments

Undistributed

profits of

recognised
under HK(IFRIC)
Interpretatio

arising from
acquisition of
Others

subsidiaries subsidiaries

ERPER e
ZEEZ LW AN GEING
BREE AR KD BT Hith
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETTT BETTT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\E
—fA-A 386,121 - 24,067 (6,616) 403,572
Exchange adjustments L (26,613) = (1,618) 289 (27,942)
Charged to profit or loss  ##BZHINK 234,135 - 13,461 - 247,59
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+=A=1+-H 593,643 = 35910 (6,327) 623,226
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE
—-A—H 593,643 - 35,910 (6,327) 623,226
Exchange adjustments [ AR (19,602) (1,579) (1,331) 531 (21,981)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  UREEHT B A )
(note 26) (M#k26) - 59,678 - (9,347) 50,331
Charged/(credited) to gttt/
profit or loss (FTA) 262,998 (4,304) 21,115 (4,017) 275,792
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-h&E
+=A=1+—-H 837,039 53,795 55,694 (19,160) 927,368
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R 2% Bt o

22 MIEAEMBRRARNAEH (E)

(b) EEIANELEHREERAE
(%)

2019 2018
—EF-hF —EF-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in ~ R4RA AR R RER Z
the consolidated statement of E 70T & B F 5R
financial position (29,396) (84,797)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised — 4R & B AR i 2R #E 3R
in the consolidated statement of BT IR A EFE
financial position 956,764 658,023
927,368 623,226

PEHAXGEBRRFERAST  CH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R 2 Y

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 FHEARE

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the

current reporting period and at the date of transition to
HKFRS 16:

TREJAEEREABENAREHRE
BEEEAYHREE L 165/ B HM
HTAENBMBER

31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note)
“E-NEtZA=1+-H ZB-hE-A-H (K&)
Present value of Present value of

the minimum Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BEHE BEHE BEHEE BEHEE
HRRE HREE HRRE HREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BET R BET R BET R
Within 1 year —£R 4,634 5,096 550 918
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMERN 2,293 2,627 577 918
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRAER 1,519 2,273 1,761 2,613
After 5 years hF% 4,569 5,892 5,082 6,669
8,381 10,792 7,420 10,200
13,015 15,888 7,970 11,118
Less: total future interest expenses A ARRMERY A% (2,873) (3,148)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 13,015 7,970

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31
December 2018 has not been restated. Further details on
the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note
1(c).
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and end of the year are set

out below:

Balance at 1 January

R-EB-NE—-A—BH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

24 BEX - EEAEE

(a)

Share
capital

B A
HK$’000
BT

BEHo 228

REEE B MR A s I M
RERNERENGERREHE -
AREER BRIy BFVNEFRLZ
HEHFBHINMT

SHETC]
premium
P& A7 34 (B
HK$'000
BETT

Accumulated
losses

2018 F=-23 1,608,029 4,923,446 (83,259) 6,448,216
Changes in equity for —E-N\FZEREE
2018:
Loss and total EELFEREWRALRE
comprehensive income
for the year = = (27,029) (27,029)
2017 final dividend paid K= —EFE
REARR B 24(b)(ii) = (185,947) — (185,947)
2018 interim dividend paid RN —ZE—\FE
FEAR R 24(b)(i) = (128,965) — (123,965)
Balance at 31 December R=-Z—N\%£+=A4
2018 =+ —AWEEs 1,608,029 4,613,534 (110,288) 6,111,275
Balance at 1 January R-Z—RAE—A—HKB
2019 F=-23 1,608,029 4,613,534 (110,288) 6,111,275
Changes in equity for —E-NFEREREE
2019:
Loss and total EELRFEREWRALRE
comprehensive income
for the year - - (91,558) (91,558)
2018 final dividend paid =T —N\FE
REAARR 2 24(b)(ii) - (134,295) - (134,295)
2019 interim dividend paid RN =T —hFE
A AR AR B 24(b)(i) - (165,286) - (165,286)
Balance at 31 December RZ-Z—h&E+=A
2019 =+ —HWER 1,608,029 4,313,953 (201,846) 5,720,136

Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially applied
HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified

retrospective approach.

Under this approach,

comparative information is not restated and there is no
net effect on the opening balance of the Company’s
equity as at 1 January 2019. See notes 1(c) and 31.

s : AEE (BEARRDER=ZZE—N
F—A—HEAKBITEWEER
FERBRBMBRELEREI65 - B
B AE HBRERTWESY - #
AABHERN -_ZE—NLFE—HF—H
MEVERTDEFHE - BRI
1(c) K231

FEEXGBRERERAT 2%]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 36 R % M &
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BAR - HEERE (&
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (b) BE
() Dividends payable to the equity shareholders () ETFEERLFIERIFEAMR
5

of the Company attributable to the year 2

2019 2018

—E—hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Interim dividend declared and paid B =& &Ik o 23R &

of HK8.0 cents (2018: HKB6.0 BT mA8.0/E L
cents) per ordinary share (Z2—N\F :6.081) 165,286 123,965
Final dividend proposed after the & HIAR & 2 Z A K
end of the reporting period of % B IR AR
HK8.0 cents (2018: HKB.5 8.0 (=T —NEF -
cents) per ordinary share 6.5/ 1) 165,286 134,295
330,572 258,260
The proposed final dividend for the year is RFEEREN R AEREA
subject to the approval of the Company’s FARRFIRRAEERRBF
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general ARG FHERTAIEE - N
meeting. The final dividend proposed after the LHREEZRDIRZRBRE
end of the reporting period has not been WARRMEARERLBE -

recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R & MY =
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BXR - FERRE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BRE (&)
(i) Dividends payable to the equity shareholders (i) FRABHERIRNTZ BT
of the Company attributable to the previous FRIENA DA mirBEAR
financial year, approved and paid during the .
year

2019 2018

—®-nE —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Final dividend in respect of the FRNEIOERIRABE

previous financial year, B B JE R ARG B
approved and paid during the SRR EBARe.578 (L
year, of HK6.5 cents (2018: —ZT—N\F:
HK9.0 cents) per ordinary 9.0/81L)
share 134,295 185,947
(c) Share capital (c) B=
Authorised share capital ETERA

No. of shares Equivalent

Bin 8 A E A
’000 US$’000 HK$’000
T XETT BT T

At 1 January 2018, R-ZZF—N\F—H
31 December 2018, —H -ZZE—N\F
1 January 2019 and +=—A=+—8 "
31 December 2019 —ZT-NhF—HA—H
RZZ-NF+=ZA
=+—H 5,000,000 500,000 3,891,500

PEAKEGBIRRARAT 2%3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continueqd)

2k

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

Issued share capital

At 1 January 2018,

31 December 2018,
1 January 2019 and
31 December 2019

24 BAX - FEEAERE (E

R (&)
EZFTRA

(c)

Amount
Gk
HK$’'000
BT T

No. of shares

B fn 8B
'000
T

RZE—N\F—HF—8"
—2-N\F+=ZA=+—8"
—E-NF—-—AR—HEK
—T-hF+=ZA=+—H

2,066,078 1,608,029

(d)
()

(i)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the fund in the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollar. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 1(w).
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises the difference between
the consideration paid for the acquisition of non-
controlling interests and the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests at the transaction date,
less the foreign exchange movements on
translation of those subsidiaries attributable to
the non-controlling interests.

Reserve fund

Statutory reserve-wholly foreign-owned
enterprises

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are
wholly foreign-owned-enterprises, follow the
accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
(“PRC GAAP —

WFOE”), in the preparation of its accounting

foreign-owned enterprises

records and financial statements. Pursuant to
the accounting regulations for business
enterprises (&2 & 51/ B/ € (2000)259%), the
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the profit arrived at in accordance with PRC
GAAP-WFOE for
reserve. The profit arrived at must be used

each vyear to a statutory

initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of
dividends to equity owners. The appropriation is
required until the statutory reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. This statutory reserve is
not distributable in the form of cash dividends,
but may be used to set off losses or be

converted into paid-in capital.
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(d) REHERBN A

(i)

(iv)
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

246

(e)

)

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 amounted
HK$4,112,107,000 (2018: HK$4,5083,246,000).

to

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to maintain a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group
manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. The
Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis
and considers the cost of capital and the associated
risks. Based on recommendations of the board of
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through adjusting the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, new shares issues or new debt

financing.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2019 was 59.7% (2018: 49.3%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group does not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

24

AN

(e)

(f)

EAENE NG,
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit,

liquidity, interest rate and foreign

currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, other receivables and contract assets.

All bank deposits are placed with highly reputable and
sizable banks and financial
significant credit risk.

institutions without

The Group assesses the credit quality of the

customers and other counter parties, taking into

account their background, financial position, past
experience and other factors. The Group has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Debtors are usually
due immediately to within 90 days from the date of

billing.

At 31 December 2019,
deposits and prepayments” and “Contract assets” of
the Group amounted to HK$8,986,614,000 (2018:
HK$6,079,644,000), of which HK$2,009,277,000
(2018: HK$945,132,000) was due from the largest
customer and HK$3,533,713,000 (2018:
HK$1,720,719,000) was due from the five largest
customers in aggregate of the Group respectively. The

“Debtors, other receivables,

maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset and contract
asset in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

248

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Service concession assets and most of the other
receivables are mainly due from local government
authorities in the PRC with no history of default, the
Group considers the credit risk for service concession
assets and environmental remediation contract assets
to be insignificant.

The Group measures loss allowance for debtors under
HKFRS 15 at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. To
measure the ECLs, debtors have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics including
customer bases and the days past due. For debtor
balances due from local government authorities in the
PRC amounting to approximately HK$630,516,000 as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$338,531,000), there
is no history of default and therefore, the Group
considers credit risk for such balances to be

insignificant.

In respect of the debtor balances due from non-
government authorities arising from hazardous and
solid waste treatment project operation revenue, the
Group estimates the expected loss rates based on the
actual loss experience over the past 3 years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the debtors. The expected loss rates
were applied to balances due from non-government
authorities arising from hazardous and solid waste
treatment project operation revenue past due of
approximately HK$10,558,000 (2018: HK$13,586,000)
as at 31 December 2019, and loss allowance of
HK$3,812,000 (2018: HK$1,939,000) was made.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and

its compliance with lending

covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.
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(b) FRBELER
AEBETEYIELEREAATAS

ReERTHF BRREAKIEH
RENEREFUNENERRES T
Ko AEBZBREEMEERBE
EFERERENEERE ZETIS
no BREEERTEENRESHEER
HX2MBRBIREBREANAKES
BE NENEHEERARDEST

TRINTARERBERRZIFITE
M AEZRRE WOBRIBER - LA
AHAMBRERE (BEEAHFT
ek (BT E) RERERRABTLZ
MERFEZNE) RARKEAEAE
BABFACEREHREEMS
$ o

As at 31 December 2019
R=B-NF+=A=1+-H

Total

contractual Within More than More than
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount cash flow demand within 2 years within 5 years 5 years

HESES: 3! —£R —F& MER
REE RERELR FERER BRER BREER Af#
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BETT BRTT BETT BRTT BETT
Bank loans RITER 11,094,776 12,969,938 2,476,415 1,638,419 5,836,781 3,018,323

Creditors, other payables and ~ JE{TERF « H b ERFE
accrued expenses® RIET & B 3,423,968 3,476,963 2,947,693 25,529 472,874 30,867
Lease liabilities (note) HEAE (M) 13,015 15,888 5,096 2,627 2,273 5,892
14,531,759 16,462,789 5,429,204 1,666,575 6,311,928 3,055,082
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the P AN ASIE SR AR X ER

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Other
lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the date
of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17 and amounts relating to new leases entered into
during the year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 iREREEMeRMTIAARE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (4B
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEELEK (&)

As at 31 December 2018
RZFB-NF+=A=+-H
Total
contractual Within More than More than

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount cash flow demand within 2 years within 5 years 5 years
FR —Fi& MER

FEE ok % . EMFA ERFA IFK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT i T BETT AT

Bank loans RITER 6,006,559 7,254,234 1,189,017 697,503 3,323,701 2,044,013
Creditors, other payables and EERR - EfEAFE
accrued expenses* RIEH R 2,383,007 2,383,007 2,375,083 - - 7,924
8,389,566 9,637,241 3,564,100 697,503 3,323,701 2,051,937
* The balances excluded deferred income — government . EHRTBBEREERA — BN
grants. & o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 WHRABREEMERMTIANAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(Continueqd)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FZEER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the AEEEH 2 NERBREZB[TAE
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits @Zﬁﬁ&ﬁ@?ﬁ% RITFR
and bank loans. Borrowings issued at variable rates RITE R o HIZ B X K & E F =4t
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow L BESAERSRAZRERE
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk FEEREALBEINERRR - AEE
respectively. The Group does not use financial WEMNAEmITE T AREFFER
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The mo REB I MERRNBEREE
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by 22 SFIBHEHR T X) °
management is set out in (i) below.
() Interest rate profile 0 FEEL
The following table details the interest rate TREIAEERHERRZ
profile of the Group’s net borrowings (being BEFE (B ERE
interest-bearing financial liabilities less bank RITERARBR e RIRGEHE
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) at the ) 2 FIZRBER o

end of the reporting period.

2019 2018

“E-hE —Z-N\F
Effective interest rate Effective interest rate
| YES =1 ViES
HK$’000
BET T
Fixed rate deposits: EEER:
Lease liabilities (note) HEEE () 3.50% — 4.90% 13,015 - =
Less: Deposits with banks w  RITER 1.55% (22,180) 1.55% (17,039)
Cash and cash BeRBHLEED
equivalents 1.10% — 2.10% (800,812) 1.10% — 3.00% (409,875)
(809,977) (426,914)
Net variable rate FEEEFHE:
borrowings:
Bank loans RITER 3.43% — 5.39% 11,094,776 3.41% — 5.39% 6,006,559
Amount due to non-controlling  JE{J FEIERR IS FA
interests 4.35% 16,635 - -
Amount due to an intermediate 7‘ %‘?Fﬂ“’ﬁﬁ
holding company 4.04% 443,600 - -
Less: Cash and cash i ﬁ%&fiﬁgfﬁm
equivalents 0.01% — 1.27% (1,884,647) 0.01% — 0.35% (1,634,951)
Pledged bank deposits BEREIER 0.01% — 2.75% (189,847) 0.01% — 0.30% (198,968)
Amount due from non- M SRR A SR
controlling interests 5.23% (22,180) = =
9,458,337 4,172,640
Total net borrowings BETFE 8,648,360 3,745,726
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using Mzt AEEEFERLBTBYE
the modified retrospective approach and BIRERE AN GHE R
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January F165  WHABRR_-_ZE—N
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to FE—HB—HWEFEYLES A
leases which were previously classified as WERBESS@ERFE
operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this 175D EARKEIHE a'ﬁﬁg\
approach, the comparative information is not mREEEBE - RELF
restated. See note 1(c). FEOLERER W mEES o/
MfsE1(c) ©
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

25)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of one percent in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation by approximately
HK$94,583,000 (2018: HK$41,726,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit before taxation
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2018.

(d) Foreign currency risk

()

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily from bank loans, cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States
dollars and Euros. The Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at sport
rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 WBRREELRERMIAARE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (4&)
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) shEEREBR (4E)
() Exposure to foreign currency risk (Continued) () BARARZZINEEE (E)

TRHAVAEER S HEHNRK
MEEREELAE CAHERE

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to foreign

currency risk arising from recognised assets or BB REE M AN E¥EETHAE)
liabilittes denominated in a currency other than FREEZINERBE - BE%E
the functional currency of the entity to which o RBRESBABESR W

they relate. For presentation purposes, the BERERARNIEEERIRE o
amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong E % 7B 2 75 Y AR A B RS Rk
Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at BMERREENZINEEME

the reporting period end date. Differences EREEIF ANERR
resulting from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations into

the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

2019

ZE-NE
United States United States

BE] dollars Euros Renminbi dollars Euros

AR% E3 B ARE ESp B

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT B®TR BETT BB

Cash and cash equivalents B RALEED 1,636 1,061 317 1,300 30,507 7,212
Amounts due from/to group companies (net) U/ TER S EARIFIEFE 90,129 - 60,936 101,413 - 65,290
Bank loans RITER (88,720) - - - - -
Other payables Hit R (61,874) - - - - -
(58,829) 1,061 61,253 102,713 30,507 72,562

(i) SRR TIT

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before taxation that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and
the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the United States dollar against other
currencies. The impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations with respect to the assets and
liabilities denominated in United States dollars is
insignificant as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
the United States dollars.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

25 BBEREENEBIAAAE

(d)

(

=]

1=

SR B ()

(i) R (&)

2019
=EB-hF

Increase/

(decrease) in

foreign
exchange
rates

IMEEE ==
EF ()

Renminbi AR
United States dollars e
Euros BT

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit before taxation measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including intercompany payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2018.
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2018
—E-N\fF
Increase/
(decrease) in
Effect on foreign Effect on
profit before exchange profit before
taxation rates taxation
HBRBE AT SN BEE R i
BRMEE EACTRE)
HK$’000
BT T
(5,883) 10% 10,271
5,883 (10%) (10,271)
106 10% 3,051
(106) (10%) (3,051)
6,125 10% 7,256
(6,125) (10%) (7,256)
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, debtors,
bank deposits, current portion of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, contract assets and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short term maturity of
these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
non-current portion of other receivables and contract
assets and interest-bearing borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The fair values of the above financial assets and
liabilities are determined based on the discounted
cash flow approach. The estimated cash flows are
based on the management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is market-related rate for a similar

instrument at the end of the reporting period.
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B 5 3R 3 W E
26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 26 EBEEH
(a) Acquisition of Suntime Environmental (@) WELHARBEEERBRLTE

Remediation CO., Ltd

On 12 December 2018, the Group entered into a
share transfer agreement with certain independent third
parties to acquire 88.88% of the equity interest in
Suntime Environmental Remediation CO., Ltd (“Suntime
Environmental Remediation”), which is principally
engaged in the environmental remediation business in
the PRC, at a consideration of RMB222,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$257,197,000). The
acquisition was completed on 21 January 2019 and
Suntime Environmental Remediation has become a
subsidiary of the Company.

Since the acquisition, Suntime Environmental
Remediation contributed HK$205,775,000 to the
Group’s revenue and a profit of HK$26,878,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Had the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2019,
the consolidated revenue and profit for the year of the
Group would have been HK$9,301,558,000 and
HK$1,624,251,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019.
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26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of Suntime Environmental

Remediation CO., Ltd (Continued)

The acquisition had the following effect on the
Group’s assets and liabilities on the acquisition date:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 EBKA
(a)

B R

it (&)
Wi L ARBEEEERDE ()

WEHAEERKEINNEERA
BZHEWT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition

U B 5 132
ARfl
HK$’'000
BETT

Property, plant and equipment Y - WE R&E 16,666
Interests in leasehold land held for own  #{EE A 2 HE bz

use 4,931
Intangible assets mVEE 104,362
Debtors, other receivables, deposits FENER R - B W IR - R

and prepayments S EANE L 40,920
Contract assets EREE 82,996
Deferred tax assets BT IEE B 342
Inventories FE 63
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 47,113
Creditors, other payables and accrued — FEfTBRFX « E b B (F 7078 & B &t

expenses =3 (58,076)
Current taxation NERFR IE (2,713
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEB & (27,140
Net identifiable assets acquired Fri B v 9 51 & = F 58 209,464
Non-controlling interests FE 7 AR 2 (23,292)
Net assets acquired Bl i & 2= 5 58 186,172
Goodwill recognised EEREE 71,025
Total consideration RERE 257,197

BEIZREBEH LARFEERR
SEREEXBREEAESZHRN

Goodwill is mainly attributable to the synergies
expected to be achieved from integrating Suntime
Environmental Remediation into the Group’s existing

businesses.

PEAXGERERFRATF

—z nern Kl



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REME
26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 26 EFEO(E)
(a) Acquisition of Suntime Environmental (a) WiBL-ARBEEBERLR (F)

Remediation CO., Ltd (Continued)

HK$'000
Neoks e e
Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of MZWBEBREBEE—_T—NF
the acquisition for the year ended +—A=+—BIEEEZES
31 December 2019 RS
Total cash consideration ReREBE 257,197
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired BFTRERe MRS EED (47,113)
Payment made in 2018 RZE—N\FIED 2[5 (50,479)
Consideration payable at RZE—NF+=—A=+—H
31 December 2019 FERRE (23,892)
135,713
(b) Acquisition of Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental (b) WEIHKEHERREREEGRAT

Technology Company Limited

On 20 December 2018, the Group entered into a RZE—NF+ZA=Z+H T&H
share transfer agreement with certain independent HWMEFEILE= AR LREE R
third parties to acquire 90% of the equity interest in = LARE AR 180,000,0007T (49
Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental Technology Company HERB1206,120,0007T) Ye & T &
Limited* (“Jiangsu Jiayuan”), which is principally FERRSERHE AR AR (DI#RERD)
engaged in the integrated recycling and harmless %t EEEHEFRENESEES
disposal of hazardous waste business in the PRC, at ANAMEELREEEEER - B
a consideration of RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to ERZE-—NF—AZ+HBEK
approximately HK$206,120,000). The acquisition was MIEREREKRAARRARNKE A
completed on 25 January 2019 and Jiangsu Jiayuan Al e

has become a subsidiary of the Company.

Since the acquisition, Jiangsu Jiayuan contributed BWENUR  I&HEBERBE_Z
HK$63,505,000 to the Group’s revenue and a loss of —NF+_A=+—BILFEAAXE
HK$5,775,000 to the consolidated profit for the year B 5 g5 %63,505,0007T ¢ I A
ended 31 December 2019. A BRI R E 188 ¥ 5,775,000 7T °
* For identification purpose only * BB
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26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental
Technology Company Limited (Continued)

Had the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2019,
the consolidated revenue and profit for the year of the
Group would have been HK$9,282,913,000 and
HK$1,620,401,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019.

The acquisition had the following effect on the
Group’s assets and liabilities on the acquisition date:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

26 XAt (E)

(b)

KB IHKERREREARAT
(#&)

HEBREXIR -_T—NF—F—
H#ET » AEBEFRERE W kAT
15 9 Bl &7 #9,282,913,000 7T & &
#1,620,401,000T - EE F I E &
BE TEEBRIKMEBKER SN
—T-NF—A—B%4 - WERSE
BERBENRKRBEREMELEZAR
BEARDAER -

WEEHAEBMPNWERENEENE
B2HENT .

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

Uiy B B FE 3R

NRME

HK$’000

BT

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB M&E 61,888

Interests in leasehold land held for own use F{EER MG HiER 28,090

Intangible assets EILEE 34,512

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURERZ ~ b B EIE ~ 12 E K

prepayments AN 15,447

Deferred tax assets EEFIREE 8,712

Inventories FE 12,574

Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEED 27,655
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEATERIR - HAERIE R BT &R

expenses (8,027)

Current taxation AERR IR (593)

Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE (14,353)

Net identifiable assets acquired BT U B 0] 3% B & B SRR 170,905

Non-controlling interests FEE AR 4 2 (32,055)

Net assets acquired BT i i B 22 F R 138,850

Goodwill recognised EEREE 67,270

Total consideration RERLE 206,120

Goodwill is mainly attributable to the synergies
expected to be achieved from integrating Jiangsu
Jiayuan into the Group’s existing businesses.

HETIEREAMIAERELAEE
RBEXBREEMESZHRME

FEEXGBRERERAT 759
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental
Technology Company Limited (Continued)

Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of
the acquisition for the year ended
31 December 2019

26 =*
(b)

MR BBEBREEC
+tZ-A=+—8” JJ:$T£Z
BEmEFEON

XAt (E)

W EB T R FEER
(&)

RENRERAF

HK$’000
BETT

—hE

Total cash consideration ReREBE 206,120
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired BFTRERe MRS EED (27,655)
Consideration payable at 31 December RZZE—NF+=A
2019 =t+—HEMNRKE (61,836)
116,629
(c) Acquisition of Zhangjiagang Gelin (c) WEBRXBEMREIBRARALD
Environmental Engineering Company Limited Al

On 29 July 2019, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with certain independent third
parties to acquire 100% of the equity interest in
Zhangjiagang Gelin Environmental Engineering Co.,
Ltd* (“Zhangjiagang Gelin”),
engaged in sewage water treatment business in the
PRC, at a consideration of RMB68,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$75,772,000). The
acquisition was completed on 4 September 2019 and

which is principally

Zhangjiagang Gelin has become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Since the acquisition, Zhangjiagang Gelin contributed
HK$253,000 to Group’s revenue and a loss of
HK$1,383,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

*

For identification purpose only
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R—B—-AE+A-+NE ~&£E
MEFHILE= AR L REEER
& AR E AR #68,000,0007T (49
HERABE75,772,00070) W BE R K
BEMIREIRAR AR ([RRES
M) 100% % EX B R BENE
EIKEBER - WEERZZT—NF
NAWATRK  MERRBEAREKA
RABEEN B R A

\

BUWELR - RRBEHRREZ_Z
—NEF+ZA=+—RHLEFEARLE
B & B U 5 #5253,0007T ¢ I A 4R
& 2B F %5 2R 518 4 51,383,000 7T ©
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26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Zhangjiagang Gelin
Environmental Engineering Company Limited
(Continued)

Had the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2019,
the consolidated revenue and profit for the year of the
Group would have been HK$9,280,964,000 and
HK$1,619,140,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019.

The acquisition had the following effect on the
Group’s assets and liabilities on the acquisition date:

26
(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

#7500 ()

Uy 8 R SR B AR MR
8 (&)

RETIRARD

HEBURBRIN _T—NF—A—
HiET - ARBEFANGE WEREF
15 9 Bl &% #9,280,964,000 7T & 7%
#1,619,140,000c - EE T E &
B EEEBRIMWRERERIZRN

—hWE—A—B%E  WEMB
BEERBBERWEBEMEEZAR
BEFAEDMARMER -

WEHAEERKEEHNEERA
BZHEWT

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition

e B B 32
ARE
HK$'000
BT

Property, plant and equipment e N 10,890
Interests in leasehold land held for own use #{EE A2 HE bz 72,764
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURERZ ~ b B EIE ~ 12 E K

prepayments T8 1 k18 2
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 293
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBESEED 47
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEATERIR - EAbERIE R BT E R

expenses (5,996)
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIAR G (18,185)
Net assets acquired B i i B 22 H AR 59,815
Goodwill recognised B iR E 15,957
Total consideration RERLE 75,772

FEEXGBRERERAT 2%
ZE-NFFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 36 R % M &
26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 26 EBast (&)
(c) Acquisition of Zhangjiagang Gelin (c) WEBRXBEMREIRARAL

Environmental Engineering Company Limited 7 (&)
(Continued)
Goodwill is mainly attributable to the synergies PETFERETEARRBEMERE
expected to be achieved from integrating BB EXBREBMES ZHREAK
Zhangjiagang Gelin into the Group’s existing J& -
businesses.

HK$’000
BE T

Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of the FZWENEE-—ZT— N4

acquisition for the year ended 31 December +-A=+—HLFEZ
2019 BWEMAFEDN
Total cash consideration ReRELBE 75,772
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired BTBERe RIS EFEY 47
Consideration payable at 31 December RZZE—NLF+=A
2019 =t+—HENKE (75,772)

47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R 3 Bt &F
26 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 26 EBEH(E)
(d) Measurement of fair value (d 2D2AREFE
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair BARETEMEENEREEZ ANE
value of material assets acquired were as follows: HEERMYI R T

Assets acquired

Valuation technique

PR 8 E B

Property, plant and
equipment

ME - BB RRE

Intangible assets

BVEE

R ERM

Market comparison technique and cost technique: The valuation model
considers quoted market prices for similar items when they are available, and
depreciated replacement cost when appropriate. Depreciated replacement
cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as well as functional and
economic obsolescence.

MIGLHLBOARKAE  AEEAGF RBURERAIRABNMEHRERTERS
ERA (HER) - EREEKRANRRE G BFEIA KT R B RREFE
Y 2 o

The income approach and excess cash flow method, through the use of a
discounted cash flow,is that the value of an intangible asset is equal to the
present value of the cash flow attributable only to that intangible asset.

The excess cash flow method provides an estimate of the fair value of an
intangible asset by deducting operating expenses and economic charges
(contributory asset charges) from the revenue expected to be generated by
the underlying asset. The projected cash flows are then discounted to their
present value equivalent and summed.

WANERBREREREE(EERTRRERE) NELEENEBERBSER
EEE;/Zlgﬁﬁ/é{FFE{ﬁmfﬁﬁumézfﬁfﬁ°

HBRERSREEZREREERPELANKRARKEERARKBEER (BEEM
g) "RENEERHEAAEMRR BARSREERTAZRMEILAM-

PEAKEGBIRRARAT 263
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT AR EE

27 ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING 27 B A =
INTERESTS
In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non- RZE—NF - AEEHEFFARREEN
controlling shareholders of Suntime Environmental FEERR AR R ET S R - R - FEIEERAR R A
Remediation, pursuant to which, the non-controlling EHE MALEEREZEWE EHREEE
shareholders agreed to sell and the Group agreed to 11.12% 8 ik #& - K& & A R #27,800,000
purchase 11.12% equity interest in Suntime Environmental TC (4948 S R B #32,502,0007T) °

Remediation at a consideration of RMB27,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$32,502,000).

The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling RNEE D RIFERIETE IR 2 M E A R R
interests and other reserve of HK$23,887,000 and 7 #23,887,0007T K 5 #8,615,0007T °

HK$8,615,000 respectively.

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 H#BtA+ 7B ARX S

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed MR BHRREMBOMBEE 2R 5 MEH
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered Gh - ANEEEBR A TET TIEARS

into the following material related party transactions:

2019 2018
—E-hLF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(a) Transactions with fellow (a) HEEZMEBEARZRS
subsidiaries
Purchase of machineries and HERSRETER

design fees 34,535 38,028
Interest expenses AEBFAX 12,328 11,373
Acquisition of right-of-use assets W AEEE (M)

(Note) 8,003 —
Steam purchase expenses HAKBER 4,721 315
Rental expenses HERX 3,871 5,593
Hazardous and solid waste BN ERERE WA

processing income 247 2,757

(b) Transaction with an (b) E—XHEERAQ A
intermediate holding company KR 5
Interest expenses FMEFRZ 11,555 -

(c) Transaction with a joint venture (c) EE—REX ¥R F

Management service income BB RIS U A 4,863 1,110
Note: The Group leased a property from a fellow subsidiary. At 31 sk NEBR—RERMNEARBER - -
December 2019, lease liability of HK$5,772,000 was due to RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—H Ef—X
a fellow subsidiary. Interest on lease liability to a fellow REMBARNBEEAEABS5,772,000
subsidiary amounted to HK$237,000 during the year ended ToBEZT-NF+ZA=+—HILHF
31 December 2019. BN —RARMBAREEESENF

B REH237,0007T ©
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Key management personnel remuneration

The Group paid key management personnel
compensation,
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in

including amounts paid to the

note 9, as follows:

Salaries and other short-term

28

1

(d)

FekEtEREERN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

IMALTZERR S (&)

TEEEEBAEMS

AEBDXNEIEEEEAB M
(BEXNTHESRENAARES
R EORENE TRSHMER 2
BB

2019 2018
—E—N\EF
HK$'000

BT

—E—-hEF
HK$°000
BET T

employee benefits 84,996 59,542
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 6,449 3,689
91,445 63,231

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of purchase
of machineries and design fees and rental expenses of
HK$3,092,000 as disclosed in note 28(a) above
constitute continuing connected transactions and
acquisition of right-of-use assets disclosed in note
28(a) as connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures defined by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in
sections “Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

The related party transactions in respect of purchase
of steam and rental expenses (including hospitality
expenses) of HK$779,000 as disclosed in note 28(a)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

(e)

FaEma AIE IXRARI(RM=E
6(0)) °

EREXZAERN LELHRAUNE
At

X sE28(a) T FE B B PRI B8 &
RET B R KB #3,092,0007T 8 % 5
TRREBALIRSBRFERER
5 DA K MI5E28(a) AT 1 55 2 e BE (5 FR
BEEBKRBAER S (EERLTR
AIZE14AE) - EARIZE14AEFTR
EHEBESENEZTTRE(HERS]
MIBERERS]—& -

X8 T E A B EE AR &
B 779,000 AT (BREERR
BRAX)ZEBALRSERITER
HXH(EER EMMRAIF14AE) -
WZERFERRET EMHRAE
VUAZEFEMHETERTE BEHER L
THRBIE14AT6()IEE T 2 F A RIK
REXKFHR 5 2P -

PEEXGERRARLT O
—TNEEH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R 2 Y

29 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the
Group’s construction contracts not provided for in the
financial statements of HK$1,934,256,000 (2018:
HK$1,578,260,000).

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of the Group
were payable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

29 EIE

(a) R=ZZ—hhF+=-_A=+—8 %&
B AREMBRRTBEEEELAEE
BEAGNZABITRERESK
1,934,256,0007T (= F — )\ F : B
1,578,260,0007T) °

b) R=ZE—NE+=ZB=+—8H"
AEERBEFUHERNEERS
REBRENHWREEESHELE
W

2018

—E-N\F
HK$’000
BE T

—FR
—FRERAFA
RFR

5,995
4,492
6,719

17,206
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29 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

30

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of the Group
were payable as follows: (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties and land held under leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances

retrospective approach. Under this

at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating
to these leases (see note 1(c)). From 1 January 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(i), and
the details
payments are disclosed in note 23.

regarding the Group’s future lease

At 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to an associate not provided for in the financial
statements of HK$33,148,000 (2018: HK$56,216,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The aggregate net book value of assets pledged amounted
to HK$14,193,658,000 (2018: HK$7,597,951,000) as at 31
December 2019 in connection with the secured bank loans
as set out in note 20.

29

30

A

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

(&)

R-ZB-NF+ZA=+—H"
AEERBERUHBRNELEHEE

REBRENNREHEENSREEHE
mr ()
$%l%mﬁ%mﬁwﬁﬁ TR

wﬁ“*%m“ﬁﬁmﬂhHﬁm
ZEWMER AR A - AEEF
BEBB A RN EAB B BR
EREANE165E - BEFBW X - ANEE
HAR-_T-NF-A—BNFVE
% UHEREEZSHENHEAR
(RMtFF1C) BT —NF—A—
B RARFHEERNFAREM 1) FTE
HERVMBRAKRABRRREE
& BEAEERKRAERNS Mﬁﬁ
R sE23 4 2 -

b

RZZE—-—NAF+=—A=+—H 4%
BRI BHREE BREE AR

B 7 B ARE B #33,148,000 7T 1E
B#H(ZZT— N\ F : 156,216,000
TT) °

BERA

A

NE+-_A=+—8  wK7E20

Fralc BEEBZETEREE ZE KT
EERIREFEARE A5 14,193,658,000

T(ZF—N\EF:

75 #7 597,951,0007T) °

PEEXGERRARLE g
—T-NFFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 B AR MY AR

31

COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

NGV ETRE RS e

2019
—E-NEF
Note HK$°000
Mo aE BET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 13 2,336,994 2,336,994
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE R 5,881,301 4,308,529
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE R&E 677 1,414
e ._..__.5218972 = 6,646,937
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments F b JE YRIE K
T 5RIR 2,396 859
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEEEY 870,988 483,840
I 873,384 484,699
Current liabilities EAE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EIEH 520,494 —
Other payables b fE A 3RIE 23,770 25,007
I, 544,264 25,007
Netcurrentassets == #"BREERE 829,120 459,692 _
Total assets less current liabilities ®REERFBER 8,548,092 7,106,629
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EIEH 2,827,956 995,354
Net assets EEFHE 5,720,136 6,111,275
Capital and reserves B R &FE 24(a)
Share capital LN 1,608,029 1,608,029
Reserves ER 4,112,107 4,503,246
Total equity B 5,720,136 6,111,275

R-E-_EF-_A -+ AEESSHH
AR HE T2

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 26 February 2020

QIAN Xiaodong YANG Zhigiang

SRR BER
Director Director
=) o)
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32

33

34

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Since early January 2020, the pneumonia epidemic caused
by the novel coronavirus has been spreading in China
which impacted the Group’s operations. As of the report
date, most of the projects have resumed normal operation,
except for certain projects of the Group with operations
temporarily suspended. While the circumstances of the
outbreak is evolving rapidly, an estimate of its financial
impact to the Group at the current stage may not be
appropriate as it will be subject to the evolution of the
epidemic in China.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in note 1(c).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

At 31 December 2019,
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the

the directors consider the

Group to be China Everbright Green Holdings Limited and
China Investment Corporation, which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and the PRC
intermediate holding company, China Everbright International

respectively. The

Limited, produces financial statements available for public
use.

32

33

34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 R I o

s RO FHESE
A-Z-TF— Rk aHEBREES
B AREEFEGE  HAREEY
BREE  RREEH - ﬁ%\ﬁaar@
EREYS HAEEETEEELNEAR
Wﬁ%°@$\ﬂE%L§“ ﬁ%&ﬁ$
AMEYUASENHBYE AAZR
E¢lm*“%%go

H B R

REBER —hNWF-—A—-—RERKE
ETL/%/%%/AJEE\)EHé/’%ﬂﬁ%#&%ﬁgljéﬁ'IG
5% o IRIBUE A - LEER W EED - BREE
BETBRNEEFIBHNMT(C)

BERMERIERALT

RZE—NWF+ZA=1t—8 EFREA

REEZBEESRRREEIERA TS
Fﬂﬂlytjiif‘@T BERAB A REE
BREER {&E’\%lw‘ﬁ%)}iﬁﬁ%
&qﬂafﬂ%}ﬂz_uqﬂ)ﬁ UNSIEEETD N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBERME

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8,
Definition of material

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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BN B REEAFIFRZIER]
REZEE

BEGHERBIRRBFBGTE
IS8R ZIBR] - EAZEH

EAMERBE_ZT-NAF+=
A=+ —BHIEFERRERZE
Rl HTERIRRB AR E

BEEAPBHRERTNEAH L BESE
NEEAMBIRER] k— B ER (FEH
BREERNEATH - REEA) - ZRFER]
M EARBE_ZE-NAF+_A=+—
B LEF 2 A R AR - AN B 75 R 5 O 4 R
AFEET KA AR - AL E AR B AR
BREETIIEE-

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
BT BHsk &
Fta 2 &5t B AR

1 January 2020
e =
1 January 2020
—E-TF—H—H

AEBEFGEZSFERNERERHEE
MEANTE - 25/ AEERSEN
BRAZRIAAEHGAMBBRRELE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE

Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and

EERAR

M= BENRERE

HK$’000
BT

2018
—T-N\F
(Note)

(B %E)
HK$'000
BT

At 31 December

R+=-A=+—H”
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF

HK$'000
BRI

HK$'000
BRI

HK$’000
BRI

equipment and interests in IEFHIEERZ

leasehold land held for HE RS

own use 3,047,230 2,502,054 2,282,648 1,834,542 1,716,724
Goodwil SRS 149,079 - - - -
Intangible assets A E 10,781,335 7,486,422 5,131,608 2975814 1,661,629
Interest in an associate —FREENRER 76,621 56,216 — — —
Interest in a joint venture —RAEDLEER 61,177 57,446 51,841 33,651 14,361
Contract assets BHEE 3,962,637 2,852,061 1,766,507 824,581 334,264
Other receivables, deposits HEWHIE - e

and prepayments K Fa A 602,982 425,957 370,729 189,269 222,999
Deferred tax assets BEEFEEE 29,396 34,797 34,942 21,127 12,314
Net current assets BB EFE 2,471,322 1,832,332 2,576,616 289,783 828,996
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 10,594,427 5,816,211 3,448,845 1,968,185 1,870,152
Net assets BERE 10,587,352 9,431,074 8,766,046 4,200,582 2,921,135
Share capital [ 1,608,029 1,608,029 1,608,029 3 2
Other reserves Hib 8,738,190 7,730,823 7,140,023 4,187,218 2,906,945
Total equity attributable to AN B Rk A SR PR

equity shareholders of the T AR

Company 10,346,219 9,338,852 8,748,052 4,187,221 2,906,947
Non-controlling interests RS 241,133 92,222 17,994 13,361 14,188
Total equity BB 10,587,352 9,431,074 8,766,046 4,200,582 2,921,135

e ARBEER T —NF—A—BEBEEEN
FERERE BN REENF16T - RIFULT
A HBERLEES -

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative is not restated.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZZE-NF ZT—+tF ZT-—RF ZT—-aF
(Note)
(BisE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Results E
Revenue Wz 9,279,555 7,001,820 4,581,352 3,000,131 1,203,198
Profit from operations AR 2,476,468 1,870,961 1,314,044 851,977 369,409
Finance costs HBER (376,891) (202,384) (125,565) (67,715) (41,202)
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint ~ FifE—FRA LM
venture &R/ (B#E) 9,890 (158) (891) (867) (461)
Profit before taxation BR % A& R 2,109,467 1,668,419 1,187,588 783,395 327,746
Income tax Fie®i (462,362) (337,068) (230,289) (153,873) (56,302)
Profit for the year FEREF| 1,647,105 1,331,351 957,299 629,522 271,444
Attributable to: FEEER D
Equity shareholders of the KRN EzRRER
Company 1,621,477 1,324,871 953,823 629,222 271,953
Non-controlling interests FEFRAR I i 25,628 6,480 3,476 300 (509)
Profit for the year FEREF 1,647,105 1,331,351 957,299 629,522 271,444
Basic and diluted earnings BREAREEEF
per share*
(HK cents) () 78.48 64.12 51.70 43.70 18.89

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative is not restated.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for that year and the weighted
average number of 1,440,000 ordinary shares, taking into
consideration the effect of share split and the capitalisation issue
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Mzt - AEEER T -hF— A - BEREEIEH
EERERATBMBREERNE 165 - RIFULTT
o RERLEED -

* HE-_Z-—AhE+_A=+t-HILFEZEKRE
ABFTEA NG RSB EFNEEAT LR
F% Nt 5 A% 881,440,0000% (K RREHZE —F
—+tF+ A=+ BUEFERNBROFARE
TACBEIT 2 B)TE -
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